


































La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars Note  As at  As at 

No.  31 March 2025  31 March 2024 
ASSETS

I. Non-current assets 17,093.08 14,241.01 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 12,103.82 1,871.73 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1 34.32 5,330.08 
(c) Right-of-use assets 1b 3,811.58 3,575.44 
(d) Goodwill 2 253.64 253.64 
(e) Other Intangible assets 2 114.39 241.39 
(f) Intangible assets under development 2 78.17 31.74 
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments 3 - 441.00 
(ii) Other financial assets 4 381.17 1,562.06 

(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 89.20 151.83 
(i) Income tax assets (net) 6 185.04 - 
(j) Other non-current assets 7 41.75 782.10 

II.Current assets 16,586.69 20,225.06 
(a) Inventories 8 6,537.53 10,410.38 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 9 6,985.92 6,558.92 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10a 2.06 1.91 
(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 10b 1,226.81 341.81 
(iv) Other financial assets 11 348.38 862.57 

(c) Other current assets 12 1,485.99 2,049.47 
III. Asset classified as held for sale 13 - 2,088.37 
Total Assets 33,679.77 36,554.44 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 10,608.57 10,206.63 
(a) Equity share capital 14 107.60 107.60 
(b) Other equity

Capital redemption reserve 15 139.00 139.00 
Securities premium 15 678.40 678.40 
General reserve 15 411.21 411.21 
Retained earnings 15 9,272.36 8,870.42 

Liabilities 
I. Non-current liabilities 11,573.09 9,522.95 

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 10,566.16 9,262.83 
(ii) Lease liabilities 17 474.33 - 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 27.11 24.45 

(b) Provisions 19 505.49 235.67 

II.Current liabilities 11,498.11 16,824.86 
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 20 3,063.64 5,653.92 
(ii) Trade and other payables 21
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises

3,001.64 4,989.60 

b) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

1,492.59 1,827.54 

(iii) Lease liabilities 22 75.89 242.41 
(iv) Other financial liabilities 23 1,186.75 1,175.49 

(b) Other current liabilities 24 391.73 546.43 
(c) Provisions 25 2,285.87 2,389.47 

Total Equity and Liabilities 33,679.77 36,554.44 
Material accounting policies 36
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars Note No. 2024-25 2023-24
Income
Revenue from operations 26 50,690.33     55,294.06         
Other income 27 941.34           470.19 

Total Income 51,631.67     55,764.25        

Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 28 25,240.76     31,935.26         
Purchase of traded goods 29 3,382.88        3,215.76           
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 
traded goods

30 2,372.23       (2,373.26)         

Employee benefits expense 31 3,816.14        3,812.37           
Finance costs 32 1,255.10        765.72 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 33 1,235.05        980.73 
Other Expenses 34 13,766.48     14,077.75         

Total Expenses 51,068.64     52,414.33        

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 563.03          3,349.92          

Exceptional Items [Income/(Expense)] - - 

Profit/(loss) before tax 563.03          3,349.92          

Tax expense 91.12             939.54 
Current tax 35 - 925.24 
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years 35 4.96 - 
Deferred tax 35 86.16             14.30 

Profit/(loss) for the year 471.91          2,410.38          

Other comprehensive income

A. Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods: (69.97)           (34.77) 
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (93.50)           (46.47) 

Income tax effect on above 23.53             11.70 

(69.97)           (34.77) 

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A] (69.97)           (34.77) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 401.94          2,375.61          

Earnings per equity share [nominal value per share ₹ 10/- (31 
March 2024: ₹ 10/- )]
Basic 43.86             224.01 
Diluted 43.86             224.01 
Material accounting policies 36
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

₹ in Lakhs
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 563.03           3,349.92        
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Add:
Depreciation and Amortisation 1,235.05        980.73             
Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off 0.69 0.70 
Inventories written down 104.46           123.01            
Loss / (Profit) on Revalorisation on Exports 41.62 (12.60)             
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 82.47 130.74            
Finance cost 1,255.10        765.72             
Provisions for share based payments (ESOP's) 23.61 6.50 

2,743.00       1,994.80        
Less :
Profit / ( Loss ) on sale of investment 219.16           - 
Net Gain/(loss) on lease modifications 6.61 20.00 
Unwinding of interest on deposits 53.17 98.40 
Profit / (Loss) on Revalorisation on Imports 0.42 0.06 
Surplus on sale of assets 398.15           68.46 
Interest / Dividend received (Finance income) 32.13 71.73 
Sundry Credit Balances Appropriated 10.63 2.99 
Provisions no longer required written back 47.86 16.19 

768.13           277.83            
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,537.90       5,066.89        

Working Capital Adjustments
(Increase) / Decrease  in Trade and Other Receivables 874.27           (245.53)          
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 3,768.39        (3,296.54)       
Increase / ( Decrease ) in Trade and other Payables (2,273.58)      1,272.73        
Increase / ( Decrease ) in Provisions 278.87           520.82            

2,647.95       (1,748.52)       
Net Cash generated from operations 5,185.85 3,318.37

Direct taxes paid (348.29)          (818.42)          

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,837.56 2,499.95

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Add :
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 2,694.79        1,522.30        
Proceeds from Sale of investments ( Net ) 660.16           - 
Interest & dividend received (Finance income) 3.69 55.86 

3,358.64       1,578.16        
Less :
Payments for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 5,394.16        6,239.28        

5,394.16       6,239.28        

NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,035.52) (4,661.12)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bill discounting & borrowings 3,261.67        5,393.68        
Repayment of Lease Liability (302.81)          (455.82)          
Interest paid (finance cost) (1,212.13)      (526.09)          
Repayment of borrowing (4,548.62)      (2,252.40)       

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY (2,801.89) 2,159.37

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 0.15 (1.80)

Opening Cash and Cash equivalents 1.91 3.71 

Closing Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 10a) 2.06 1.91 

As per our attached report of  even date.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.
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Company Secretary
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Statement of changes in Equity for the Year ended 31 March 2025
A. Equity Share Capital (Note 14)

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paidNo. of Shares Amount
As at 1st April 2023 10,76,000 107.60 
Issue/Reduction, if any during the year - - 
As At 31 March 2024 10,76,000 107.60 
Issue/Reduction, if any during the year - - 
As At 31 March 2025 10,76,000 107.60 

B. Other Equity (Note 15)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

 Capital Redemption 
Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium 

 General 
Reserve 

 Retained Earnings 

As at 1st April 2023 139.00 678.40 411.21             6,494.81 7,723.42 
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - 2,410.38 2,410.38 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (34.77) (34.77) 
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - - 2,375.61 2,375.61 

Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve - - - - - 
As At 31 March 2024 139.00 678.40 411.21 8,870.42 10,099.03 

As At 31 March 2024 139.00 678.40 411.21             8,870.42 10,099.03 
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - 471.91 471.91 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (69.97) (69.97) 
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - - 401.94 401.94 

Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve - - - - - 

As at 31 March 2025 139.00 678.40 411.21 9,272.36 10,500.97 

Material accounting policies 36
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. - 

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors

AKSHAY SAHNI
Director
DIN:00791744
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AMRUTA THIGALE
Company Secretary
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Chartered Accountants
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Partner
Membership Number : 117695
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29-04-2025
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1 : Property, Plant and equipment ₹ in Lakhs
Particulars Leasehold 

Improvement
Buildings - 

Road, Factory & 
Non Factory

Plant & Equipment Furniture & 
Fixture

Vehicles Office Equipment Computers Electrical 
Installation

Total               Capital Work-in-
Process

Gross Block
As at 1st April 2023 373.65                        -                                   3,534.83                   175.25                    52.62                    73.58                      372.59                     61.98                      4,644.50                       207.64                        
Additions -                                   -                                   367.17                       5.01                         -                             13.73                      3.51                          21.04                      410.46                          5,334.58                    
Acquired in business combination -                                   -                                   -                                -                               -                             -                             -                                -                               -                                      -                                   
Deductions /written off/ Held for disposal 62.63                           -                                   235.11                       -                               22.51                    2.66                         24.23                       1.69                         348.83                          212.14                        
As at 31 March 2024 311.02                        -                                   3,666.89                   180.26                    30.11                    84.65                      351.87                     81.33                      4,706.13                       5,330.08                    
Additions 155.01                        8,033.68                     1,231.86                   365.40                    59.90                    432.49                    272.40                     588.12                    11,138.86                     5,843.07                    
Acquired in business combination -                                   -                                   -                                  -                               -                             -                               -                                -                               -                                      -                                   
Reclassified on account of Adoption of Ind AS 116 311.01                        (263.72)                          -                                  (2.47)                          -                             (44.82)                        -                                -                               (0.00)                                 -                                   
Assets written off / Scrapped (Net) -                                   -                                   -                                  -                               -                             -                               -                                -                               -                                      -                                   
Deductions /written off/ Held for disposal -                                   246.54                        361.77                       54.56                      30.10                    19.52                      39.33                       45.96                      797.78                          11,138.83                  
As at 31 March 2025 155.02                        8,050.86                     4,536.98                   493.57                    59.91                    542.44                    584.94                     623.49                    15,047.21                     34.32                          
Depreciation
As at 1st April 2023 361.70                        -                                   1,969.87                   96.44                      30.11                    58.31                      260.12                     25.36                      2,801.91                       -                                   
For the year 7.91                             -                                   192.18                       15.27                      2.32                      7.36                         64.88                       7.84                         297.76                          -                                   
Acquired in business combination -                                   -                                   -                                -                               -                             -                             -                                -                               -                                      -                                   
Deductions /written off/ Held for disposal 62.60                           -                                   171.68                       -                               3.05                      2.13                         24.15                       1.66                         265.27                          -                                   
As at 31 March 2024 307.01                        -                                   1,990.37                   111.71                    29.38                    63.54                      300.85                     31.54                      2,834.40                       -                                   
For the year 10.27                           246.50                        239.63                       55.07                      4.62                      61.92                      83.46                       39.20                      740.67                          -                                   
Acquired in business combination -                                   -                                   -                                  -                               -                             -                               -                                -                               -                                      -                                   
Reclassified on account of Adoption of Ind AS 116 307.01                        (259.72)                          -                                  (2.47)                          -                             (44.82)                        -                                -                               (0.00)                                 -                                   
Assets written off / Scrapped (Net) -                                   -                                   -                                  -                               -                             -                               -                                -                               -                                      -                                   
Deductions /written off/ Held for disposal -                                   246.54                        237.12                       42.66                      30.05                    19.39                      39.33                       16.59                      631.68                          -                                   
As at 31 March 2025 10.27                           259.68                        1,992.88                   126.59                    3.95                      150.89                    344.98                     54.15                      2,943.39                       -                                   
Net Block
As at 1st April 2023 11.95                           -                                   1,564.96                   78.81                      22.51                    15.27                      112.47                     36.62                      1,842.59                       207.64                        

As at 31 March 2024 4.01                             -                                   1,676.52                   68.55                      0.73                      21.11                      51.02                       49.79                      1,871.73                       5,330.08                    

As at 31 March 2025 144.75                        7,791.18                     2,544.10                   366.98                    55.96                    391.55                    239.96                     569.34                    12,103.82                     34.32                          
  

Notes :
1. For Depreciation, amortisation and security refer accounting policy Note 36.4.3
2. Refer Note - 36.4.11 on policies for Right-of-Use Assets

3. The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1a :  Aging analysis of Capital working in progress (CWIP)

CWIP aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress                  34.32                         -                           -                           -                    34.32 
Project : Plant New Consolidation                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery                  34.32                         -                           -                           -                    34.32 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Projects temporarily suspended                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Plant Project Consolidation                         -                           -                           -                           -   -                     
TOTAL AMOUNT 34.32                 -                     -                     -                     34.32                 

CWIP completion schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Plant New Consolidation                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   -                     
Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery 34.32                 -                     -                     -                     34.32                 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
TOTAL AMOUNT 34.32                 -                     -                     -                     34.32                 

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
To be completed in

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 25



CWIP aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress             5,214.36                115.72                         -                           -               5,330.08 
Project : Plant New Consolidation             5,117.75                115.72                         -                           -               5,233.47 

Project : Plant Consolidation - Land                313.84                  40.68                         -                           -                  354.52 
Project : Plant Consolidation - Building             4,388.82                  75.04                         -                           -               4,463.86 
Project : Plant Consolidation - Electric fittings                325.47                         -                           -                           -                  325.47 
Project : Plant Consolidation - Plant Machinery                  89.62                         -                           -                           -                    89.62 

Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery                  50.05                         -                           -                           -                    50.05 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer                  46.56                         -                           -                           -                    46.56 
Projects temporarily suspended                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Plant Project Consolidation                         -                           -                           -                           -   -                     
TOTAL AMOUNT 5,214.36           115.72              -                     -                     5,330.08           

CWIP completion schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Plant New Consolidation                   5,233.47                                -                                  -                                  -   5,233.47           
Project : Plant Consolidation - Land 354.52              -                     -                     -                     354.52              
Project : Plant Consolidation - Building 4,463.86           -                     -                     -                     4,463.86           
Project : Plant Consolidation - Electric fittings 325.47              -                     -                     -                     325.47              
Project : Plant Consolidation - Plant Machinery 89.62                 -                     -                     -                     89.62                 

Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery 46.56                 -                     -                     -                     46.56                 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer 50.05                 -                     -                     -                     50.05                 
TOTAL AMOUNT 5,330.08           -                     -                     -                     5,330.08           

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2024

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 24

CWIP
To be completed in



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1b : Right-of-use assets
 ₹ in Lakhs 

particulars Land Building Plant & 
Equipment Total

As at 1st April 2023 3,181.13                 857.65                         4,038.78                  
Addition 156.69                     -                                -                         156.69                      
Deletion -                           75.92                            -                         75.92                        
Amortisation 33.77                       510.34                         -                         544.11                      
As At 31 March 2024 3,304.05                 271.39                         -                         3,575.44                  

Addition -                           632.33                         -                         632.33                      
Deletion -                           35.56                            -                         35.56                        
Amortisation 33.77                       326.86                         -                         360.63                      
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3,270.28                 541.30                         -                         3,811.58                  



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2  : Other Intangible assets ₹ in Lakhs
Particulars Computer Software Customer 

Relationships
Technical Knowhow

-Acquired
Brands Total                     Goodwill acquired under 

Business Combination
Intangible assets under 

development

Gross Block
As at 1st April 2023 646.76                             0.56                                 29.64                               42.18                               719.14                             253.64                                      -                                             
Additions 21.53                               -                                   -                                   -                                   21.53                               -                                             31.98                                         
Recoupment / Adjustment -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                             -                                             
Deductions -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                             0.24                                           
As At 31 March 2024 668.29                             0.56                                 29.64                               42.18                               740.67                             253.64                                      31.74
Additions 6.75                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   6.75                                 -                                             53.18                                         
Recoupment / Adjustment -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                             -                                             
Deductions 0.43                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   0.43                                 -                                             6.75                                           
As At 31 March 2025 674.61                             0.56                                 29.64                               42.18                               746.99                             253.64                                      78.17                                         
Amortisation
As at 1st April 2023 340.33                             0.22                                 11.61                               8.26                                 360.42                             -                                             -                                             
For The Year 128.60                             0.11                                 5.93                                 4.22                                 138.86                             -                                             -                                             
Recoupment / Adjustment -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                             -                                             
Deductions -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                             -                                             
As At 31 March 2024 468.93                             0.33                                 17.54                               12.48                               499.28                             -                                             -                                             
For The Year 123.49                             0.11                                 5.93                                 4.22                                 133.75                             -                                             -                                             
Inter Transfers -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                             -                                             
Deductions 0.43                                 -                                   -                                   -                                   0.43                                 -                                             -                                             
As At 31 March 2025 591.99                             0.44                                 23.47                               16.70                               632.60                             -                                             -                                             
Net Block
As at 1st April 2023 306.43                             0.34                                 18.03                               33.92                               358.72                             253.64                                      -                                             

As At 31 March 2024 199.36                             0.23                                 12.10                               29.70                               241.39                             253.64                                      31.74                                         

As At 31 March 2025 82.62                               0.12                                 6.17                                 25.48                               114.39                             253.64                                      78.17                                         

Notes :
1. For Depreciation and amortisation refer  accounting policy Note 36.4.3



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2a :  Aging analysis of Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress                  46.43                  31.74                           -                           -                  78.17 
Project : Routine Capex - Intangible                  46.43                  31.74                           -                           -                  78.17 

Projects temporarily suspended                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 
TOTAL AMOUNT                  46.43 31.74                 -                          -                                           78.17 

Intangible assets under development completion schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Routine Capex - Intangible                  78.17 -                          -                          -                                           78.17 
TOTAL AMOUNT                  78.17 -                          -                          -                                           78.17 

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress                  31.74                           -                           -                           -                  31.74 
Project : Routine Capex - Intangible                  31.74                           -                           -                           -                  31.74 

Projects temporarily suspended                           -                           -                           -                           -                           - 
TOTAL AMOUNT                  31.74 -                          -                          -                                           31.74 

Intangible assets under development completion schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Routine Capex - Intangible                  31.74 -                          -                          -                                           31.74 
TOTAL AMOUNT                  31.74 -                          -                          -                                           31.74 

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
To be completed in

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 25

As at 31 March 2024

CWIP
To be completed in

As at 31 March 2024

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 24
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Note 3 : Non-current Investments
Par Value / Face 
Value Per Unit

Nos. ₹ in Lakhs In ₹ Nos. ₹ in Lakhs In ₹

(i) At Cost
Investment
Investment in equity shares of joint venture

10.00                       -                       -                -                          44,10,000         441.00              4,41,00,000        

-                    -                       
Total -                -                          441.00              4,41,00,000        

Notes :

As at 31 March 2024Particulars As at 31 March 2025

4410000 fully paid up equity shares of ₹ 10 each of ESVA Pumps India 
Private Limited

 1. Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments as at 31 March, 2025 is NIL ( ₹ 441.00 Lakhs as at 31 March, 2024) 

 2. Face value per unit in Rupees unless otherwise stated. 

 3. In accordance with Ind As 27 "Separate Financial statement" the company has valued its investment in associate at cost. 

 4. Refer Note - 36.5.13 on Risk Management objectives and policies for Financial Instruments. 

 5. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th August 2024 approved the acceptance of the buyback offer. Further, the Joint Venture termination agreement was executed  on 28th 
September 2024 and post execution of the said agreement, 21,71,494 (32.12%) equity shares held by the Company in ESVA were sold to  Mr. V Baranitharan and Ms. C. Shanthi, the Promoters of ESVA.
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Note 4 : Other financial assets (non current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 372.80                1,553.56            
Doubtful 29.50                  88.46                  
Less :Loss Allowance for doubtful deposits (29.50)                (88.46)                
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 8.37                    8.50                    
Total 381.17                1,562.06            

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

1. Other financial assets are measured at amortised cost. Refer note 36.5.12
2. Refer Note - 36.5.13 on Risk Management objectives and policies for Financial Instruments.
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Note 5 :  Deferred tax Asset (net)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Deferred Tax Asset 89.20                    151.83                    
Depreciation (135.28)                 (5.56)                       
Deferred tax asset on long term capital loss -                              19.23                       
Loss -current financial year 35.15                     -                                
Disallowances u/s 43 B of Income Tax Act 114.98                   101.27                     
Provision for Doubtful debts & advances 67.36                     31.76                       
ROU Asset Net of Lease Liability and PV of Deposit 4.27                       5.95                        
Others incl Amalgamation Exps. 2.72                       (0.82)                       

Less : Deferred Tax Liability -                              -                                
Depreciation -                              -                                
Others -                              -                                
Total 89.20                     151.83                    

1. Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net  ₹ in Lakhs 

Opening balance as of 1 April                    151.83                     154.43 
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss

                   (86.16)                      (14.30)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI                      23.53                        11.70 
MAT Credit Utilization                             -                                 -   
Closing balance as at 31 March                      89.20                     151.83 

2. Tax Losses  ₹ in Lakhs 

Unused tax losses for which no Deferred Tax Assets have been 
recognised- Long Term capital loss on sale of Land

-                         1,470.47                

Potential Tax benefit -                         349.09                    

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2024Particulars As at 31 March 2025

3. The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority.

4. Deferred tax is measured on temporary differences at the rate of 25.168% (Refer note 35)

5. The unused tax losses were incurred by the company on sale on Land. Which is partially adjusted during the current
financial year against long term capital gain likely to be generated in next financial years. Further deferred tax asset is not
created for balance unused tax losses against which company is not likely to generate taxable income in the foreseeable
future. The losses can be carried forward as per the provisions of Income Tax Act .

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 6  :  Income tax assets (net)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Tax paid in advance (net of provision) 185.04                      -                            

Total                       185.04                                - 

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 7 :  Other non-current assets
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Capital advances 41.75                          782.10                       

Total                          41.75                        782.10 

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 8 :  Inventories
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Raw materials 2,086.75                    3,660.78                    
Raw materials and components 2,086.75                    3,660.78                    

Work-in-progress 1,855.18                    3,292.70                    
Finished goods 1,991.39                    2,691.11                    
Traded goods 440.91                       675.90                       
Stores and spares 163.30                       89.89                         

Total 6,537.53                    10,410.38                 

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

2. Refer Note 16 for information on inventory hypothication with bankers for the purpose of Working Capital facilities.

1. Inventories written down to net realisable value during the year ended on 31 March 2025 is Rs. 0.74 Lakhs were recognised
as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the year. (₹ 2.35 Lakhs on 31 March 2024).

Particulars



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 9 :  Trade receivables
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Total Trade Receivables 6,985.92                    6,558.92                    
Trade receivables [Refer note (1) below] 6,985.92                    6,558.92                    

Break-up for security details: 6,985.92                    6,558.92                    
Unsecured considered good 6,985.92                    6,558.92                    
Doubtful 267.64                       126.20                       
Loss Allowance  (for expected credit loss under simplified 
approach) (267.64)                     (126.20)                     

Total 6,985.92                    6,558.92                    

3. Trade receivables secured by letter of credit are considered as secured.

4. Movement of impairment Allowance (allowance for expected credit loss under simplified approach)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Opening Balance 126.20                      91.21                         
Provided During the year 168.81                      69.82                         
Written off -                             -                             
Provision written back                         (27.37)                         (34.83)
Closing Balance 267.64                      126.20                      

6. The carrying amount of the trade receivables include receivables which are subject to the export sales bill discounting 
arrangement. However, where the Company has retained the credit risks, it continues to recognise these assets in entirety in 
its Balance sheet, while bills discounted without recourse have been derecognised.  The amount repayable under this 
arrangement is presented as secured borrowings. 

5. Refer Note 36.5.13 on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Company manages and measures credit
quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired.

1. Trade receivables are measured at amortised cost.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk: ₹ NIL (₹ NIL in FY 2023-24)
Trade receivable - credit impaired : ₹ NIL (₹ NIL in FY 2023-24)

2. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any
other person. Trade and other receivable due from firms and private companies respectively in which any director is a
partner, a director or a member as on 31 March, 2025 is ₹ NIL (₹ NIL as on 31 March 2024). Refer Note 36.5.9 for terms and
conditions related to Related party receivables.
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Note 9a :  Aging analysis of Trade Receivables

Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 
year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

                    3.64              6,274.01                     557.71                   20.10                 195.92                   19.38                 180.75                  7,251.51 

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                       2.05                         2.05 

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                 3.64           6,274.01                 557.71                20.10              195.92                19.38              182.80              7,253.56 

                         -                             -                                -                     14.57                 195.92                   19.36                   37.79                     267.64 

                 3.64           6,274.01                 557.71                  5.53                      -                    0.02              145.01              6,985.92 

* Disputed Trade Receivables represents legal cases with customers

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables–considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

Gross Trade Receivables

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars
Unbilled 

dues Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

Less: Loss Allowance  (for expected 
credit loss under simplified 
approach)

Net Trade Receivables
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Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 
year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

                  12.11              5,500.63                     881.82                   75.00                   32.85                   58.56                 122.10                  6,683.07 

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                       2.05                         2.05 

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

               12.11           5,500.63                 881.82                75.00                32.85                58.56              124.15              6,685.12 

                         -                             -                           0.80                   45.71                   36.89                   27.87                   14.93                     126.20 

               12.11           5,500.63                 881.02                29.29                (4.04)                30.69              109.22              6,558.92 

* Disputed Trade Receivables represents legal cases with customers

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars
Unbilled 

dues Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Net Trade Receivables

Less: Loss Allowance  (for expected 
credit loss under simplified 

Gross Trade Receivables

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables–considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired
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Note 10a :  Cash and cash equivalents
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Balance with Bank
Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 2.06                            1.69                            

Cash on hand -                                   0.22                            

Total 2.06                            1.91                            

Note 10b :  Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but 
less than 12 months

1,226.81                    341.81                       

Total 1,226.81                    341.81                       

2. Refer Note 36.5.13 for further details

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

1. Fixed Deposits are pledged with the banks as margin money against Letter of Credit / Bank Guarantee.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 11 :  Other financial assets ( Current )
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Export incentive receivable 170.40                       753.04                       
Other Receivables 177.98                       106.18                       
Mark to Market Derivative Asset -                                   3.35                            
Total 348.38                       862.57                       

1. Other financial assets are measured at amortised cost.

4. Refer Note 36.5.13 for further details.

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

2. Others includes interest receivable on FDR and accrued revenue.
3. Other receivables due from private companies in which director of the company is, a director or a member as at 31 March
2025 ₹ Nil. (31 March 2024 : ₹ NIL)
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Note 12 :  Other current assets
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Advance to suppliers 140.56                60.72                   
Sales tax / VAT / GST receivable 1,158.67             1,805.30             
Prepaid expenses 139.63                150.96                
Others 47.13                   32.49                   

Total 1,485.99             2,049.47             

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 13 :  Asset classifed as held for Sale
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Land -                           2,088.37             

Total -                           2,088.37             

1. The Company has identified Land at Bavla acquired for the purpose of consolidation of existing manufacturing
set up however later the Company has decided otherwise and acquired new land for setting up plant at Sanand
GIDC, hence Bavla land was classified as held for sale. During the year the Company has completely disposed off
the said land at Bavla.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 14 :  Share capital

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs 10 each

Authorised equity share capital (Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As at 1st April 2023 52,40,000                          524.00                               
Increase/(decrease) during the year 90,00,000                          900.00                               
As At 31 March 2024 1,42,40,000                      1,424.00                            
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                                      -                                      
As At 31 March 2025 1,42,40,000                      1,424.00                            

As at 1st April 2023 10,76,000                          107.60                                
Changes during the year -                                      -                                           
As At 31 March 2024 10,76,000                          107.60                                
Changes during the year -                                      -                                           
As At 31 March 2025 10,76,000                          107.60                                

Particulars As At 31 March 2025 As At 31 March 2024
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.

                          10,75,999                           10,75,999 
                                107.60                                 107.60 

Equity share holding (%) 100.00% 100.00%

Particulars Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.

As At 31 March 2024
      No. of Shares 10,75,999                          
      % of Shareholding 100.00%
As At 31 March 2025
      No. of Shares                           10,75,999 
      % of Shareholding 100.00%

*One equity share is in the name of individual. However beneficial interest vest with body corporate. Hence not incorporated separately.
4. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

1. The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10/- each. Each equity shareholder is entitled to one vote 
per share and has a right to receive dividend as recommended by Board of Directors subject to the necessary approval from the 
shareholders.
2. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.
3. Shares held by holding company 

 ₹ in Lakhs 

No. of Equity shares of ₹ 10 each*
Face value of Equity share holding (₹ in Lakhs)

 Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

Issued, subscribed and  fully paid up equity share capital
(Shares of ₹ 10 each)

Particulars No. of shares



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 14a :  Shareholding of promotors

S. No Promoter Name No. of 
Shares held

% 
Change 
during 
the year

% of total 
shares Promoter Name No. of 

Shares held

% 
Change 
during 
the year

% of total 
shares

1 Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd. 1075999 0.00% 100.00% Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd. 1075999 0.00% 100.00%
Total 1075999 100.00% 1075999 100.00%

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

One equity share is in the name of individual. However beneficial interest vest with body corporate. Hence not incorporated separately.
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Note 15 :  Other Equity
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars

CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE 139.00                       139.00                        
Opening Balance 139.00                       139.00                        
Add : Transferred during the year -                             -                              

SECURITIES PREMIUM 678.40                       678.40                        
Opening Balance 678.40                       678.40                        
Add : Transferred during the year -                             -                              

GENERAL RESERVE 411.21                       411.21                        
Opening Balance 411.21                       411.21                        
Add : Transferred from Retained earnings -                             -                              

RETAINED EARNINGS 9,272.36                   8,870.42                    
Opening Balance 8,870.42                    6,494.81                     
Add : Profit/(loss) for the year 471.91                       2,410.38                     
Add : Other Comprehensive income / (Loss) (69.97)                        (34.77)                         

401.94                       2,375.61                    

Total 10,500.97                 10,099.03                  

Other reserves

Particulars

Capital redemption reserve 139.00                        139.00                         
General reserve 411.21                        411.21                         
SECURITIES PREMIUM 678.40                        678.40                         
Retained Earnings 9,272.36                                         8,870.42 
Total other reserves 10,500.97                  10,099.03                   

3. General reserve is created by setting aside amount from the Retained Earnings of the company for general purposes which is
freely available for distribution.

1. The Capital Redemption Reserve is created for redemption of preference shares as per statutory requirement.

2. Securities premium is received against the issuance of Equity Shares and can be utilised in accordance with provisions of
Companies Act, 2013.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025
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Note 16 :  Borrowings (Non-current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Secured loans from bank 6,566.16                4,412.83                
Term loans 6,566.16               4,412.83               

Unsecured 4,000.00                4,850.00                
8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares -                         850.00                  
8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares 4,000.00               4,000.00               
Total 10,566.16             9,262.83               

Period
                            -                               -   
                1,108.33                             -   
                3,800.00                 1,401.74 

More than Three Years Up to Five Years                 2,766.16                 1,765.15 
                            -                   1,245.94 

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

2. Term Loans from Banks

1. Loans are measured at amortised cost.

(i) The term Loans availed from Federal Bank and Axis Bank are secured by a First Pari Passu charge by way of
Hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets and second charge on entire current assets of the
company. Further Term Loans from Federal Bank and Axis Bank are secured by way of creation of Equitable
Mortgage on Land, Building, Plant & Machinery and other assets at the new plant at Sanand to the extent
applicable.

(ii) Working Capital Term Loan of ₹ 1400 Lakhs to be repaid in 60 monthly instalments of ₹ 23.33 Lakhs each
starting from May 2018. Accordingly, a total ₹ 23.33 Lakhs have been repaid in the year 2023-24 and the loan
is totally repaid as on April 23.

Maturity profile of Term Loans from Banks (Current and Non-Current)

(iii) Sanctioned Term Loan of ₹ 4750 Lakhs from Axis Bank and drawn till 31-03-2025 to the extent of 4110.30
Lakhs to be repaid in 60 monthly instalments of ₹ 79.17 Lakhs each starting from August 2025 at rate of
interest 8.15%. The Loan carries a moratorium period of 24 months starting from 1st disbursement done in
August 23.
(iv) Sanctioned Term Loan of ₹ 4750 Lakhs from Federal Bank and drawn till 31-03-2024 to the extent of
3564.39 Lakhs to be repaid in 60 monthly instalments of ₹ 79.17 Lakhs each starting from October 2025 at
rate of interest 8.05%. The Loan carries a moratorium period of 24 months starting from 1st disbursement
done in September 23.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Upto Three Months
More than Three Months Up to One Year
More than One Year Up to Three Years

More than Five Years
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Period
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.                 4,850.00                 4,850.00 
Interest on Cumulative Preference Shares                    398.00                    398.00 
Total                 5,248.00                 5,248.00 

Period
                            -                               -   
                   850.00                             -   
                            -                      850.00 
                            -                               -   
                            -                               -   

Period
                            -                               -   
                            -                               -   
                            -                               -   
                4,000.00                             -   
                            -                   4,000.00 

More than Three Years Up to Five Years

7. 8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
The Company has issued 4,00,00,000 preference shares at the face value of ₹ 10 in the month of February'23 
at the rate of 8.25% which are redeemable at the end of the term of 84 months from the date of issue. (Refer 
Note 36.4.8)

Maturity profile of 8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (Current and Non-Current)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Terms : Unsecured preference shares to related party

The procedural compliances related to Preference shares issue was completed on 27 April 2021.

More than One Year Up to Three Years

More than Five Years

Maturity profile of 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (Current and Non-Current)
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Upto Three Months
More than Three Months Up to One Year

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Upto Three Months
More than Three Months Up to One Year
More than One Year Up to Three Years

More than Five Years

More than Three Years Up to Five Years

6. 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

3. Borrowings from banks have been utilized for the specific purpose for which it were taken.

4. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank.
5. There has been no  default in repayment of interest and principal amount for year ended 31 March 2025 
and 31 March 2024.

The Company has issued 85,00,000 preference shares at the face value of ₹ 10 in the month of March'21 at
the rate of 8% which are redeemable at the end of the term of 60 months from the date of issue. (Refer Note
36.4.8)
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Particulars
Authorised 8.25% cumulative redeemable
preference shares capital (Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As at 1st April 2023           4,00,00,000 4,000.00               
Increase/(decrease) during the year                               - -                             
As at 31 March 2024           4,00,00,000 4,000.00               
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                             
As at 31 March 2025           4,00,00,000 4,000.00               
Authorised 8% cumulative redeemable preference
shares capital (Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As at 1st April 2023              85,00,000 850.00                  
Increase/(decrease) during the year                               - -                             
As at 31 March 2024              85,00,000 850.00                  
Increase/(decrease) during the year                               - -                             
As at 31 March 2025              85,00,000 850.00                  
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 8.25%
cumulative redeemable preference shares capital
(Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As at 1st April 2023           4,00,00,000 4,000.00               
Increase/(decrease) during the year                               - -                             
As at 31 March 2024           4,00,00,000 4,000.00               
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                             
As at 31 March 2025           4,00,00,000 4,000.00               
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 8% cumulative
redeemable preference shares capital (Shares of ₹
10 each)
As at 1st April 2023              85,00,000 850.00                  
Increase/(decrease) during the year                               - -                             
As at 31 March 2024              85,00,000 850.00                  
Increase/(decrease) during the year                               - -                             
As at 31 March 2025              85,00,000 850.00                  

Particulars
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.
      No. of Shares           4,00,00,000           4,00,00,000 
      % of Shareholding 100.00% 100.00%

Particulars
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.
      No. of Shares              85,00,000              85,00,000 
      % of Shareholding 100.00% 100.00%

Number of 8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 
5% Shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares ₹ in Lakhs
The break-up of the company's Preference share capital is as follows

Number of 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% 
Shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 17 :  Lease liabilities  (Non-current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Lease liabilities                        474.33                                    - 

Total 474.33                       -                                   

1. Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

3. Also refer Note 36.4.11.

2. For explanations on the Company's Interest risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer to Note
36.5.13

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 18 :  Other financial liabilities ( Non current )
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Deposits/ Retentions from customers and others 27.11                   24.45                       

Total 27.11                   24.45                       

1. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
2. For explanations on the company's Interest risk, Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer
Note 36.5.13

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 19 :  Provisions (Non current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits                    197.55                         86.96 
Provision for gratuity                    197.55                         86.96 

Other provisions                    307.94                      148.71 
Provision for warranty                    307.94                      148.71 

Total 505.49                   235.67                     

1. Refer Note 25 - Provisions (Current)

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 20 :  Borrowings
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Secured loans from bank
Working Capital Demand Loan 3,000.00                    4,710.83                    
Cash credit (1,894.69)                  (128.66)                     
Current maturities of Non-Current Borrowings
Long term loans - Secured 1,108.33                    -                                   
8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - Unsecured 850.00                       -                                   
Unsecured loans
Loan from Holding Company -                                   1,071.75                    
Total 3,063.64                    5,653.92                    

5. Borrowings from banks have been utilized for the specific purpose for which it were taken.

6. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank.

7. Working Capital demand loan is sublimit of cash credit.

8. There has been no  default in repayment of interest and principal amount for year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 
2024.
9. The company has availed Inter-Corporate Loan from its holding company - Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited (KOEL) of Rs. 2185
crores (for the business purpose including re-payment of working capital term loan availed from ICICI Bank) repayable on
demand with 30 days prior notice from KOEL not exceeding 3 years at Rate of Interest 8.725%. In FY 24 out of 2185 Lakhs of
loan, 1913.25 Lakhs has been repaid and balance amount of 271.75 Lakhs repaid in FY 25.

10. The subsidiary company (which merged with the company in FY 24) has also availed Inter-Corporate Loan from its holding
company - Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited (KOEL) of Rs. 800 Lakhs (for the business purpose including re-payment of working
capital term loan availed from ICICI Bank) repayable on demand with 30 days prior notice from KOEL not exceeding 5 years at
Rate of Interest 10.25% which is fully repaid in FY 25.

1. Borrowings are measured at amortised cost.

2. Company's fund and non fund based working capital facilities of ₹ 16427 Lakhs are secured by first charge by way of
hypothecation on the whole of the current assets of the Company both present and future and also the second charge on the
whole of the movable Plant and machinery and other fixed assets of the Company in favour of the consortium of banks
(Federal Consortium) comprising of The Federal Bank Limited - Ahmedabad (Lead Bank), ICICI Bank Limited - Ahmedabad, Yes
Bank Limited - Pune and HDFC Bank Limited - Ahmedabad.

3. The unutilised portion of the company's Cash Credit Limit is ₹ 11394.69 Lakhs (₹ 4933.22 Lakhs  in FY 2023-2024).

4. For explanations on the company's Interest risk, Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer Note 
36.5.13.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 20a : Reconciliation of quarterly statement submitted to banks :
As at 31 March 2025
Quarter Name of the bank Particulars of 

securities provided
Amount as per 
statement 
submitted to 
bank/FI

Amount as per 
financials

Difference Reason for difference

Inventory 12,544.79             12,544.79             -                        
Receivables 7,668.55               7,668.55               -                        
Payables 7,364.76               7,364.76               -                        
Inventory 9,603.79               9,603.79               -                        
Receivables 6,223.14               6,223.14               -                        
Payables 2,951.73               2,951.73               -                        
Inventory 9,142.22               9,142.22               -                        
Receivables 4,386.57               4,386.57               -                        
Payables 5,245.22               5,245.22               -                        
Inventory 6,537.53               
Receivables 6,985.92               
Payables 4,494.23               

As at 31 March 2024
Quarter Name of the bank Particulars of 

securities provided
Amount as per 
statement 
submitted to 
bank/FI

Amount as per 
financials

Difference Reason for difference

Inventory 6,675.59               6,675.59               -                        
Receivables 9,548.91               9,548.91               -                        
Payables 4,075.48               4,075.48               -                        
Inventory 7,666.64               7,666.64               -                        
Receivables 9,693.08               9,693.08               -                        
Payables 3,422.81               3,422.81               -                        
Inventory 7,237.30               7,237.30               -                        
Receivables 8,143.38               8,143.38               -                        
Payables 3,596.94               3,596.94               -                        
Inventory 10,410.39             10,410.39             -                        
Receivables 6,558.92               6,558.92               -                        
Payables 6,817.14               6,817.14               -                        

Mar-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Jun-23 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Sep-23 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Dec-23 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Jun-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Sep-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Dec-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Mar-25 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

 Not yet 
submitted NA



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 21 :  Trade and other payables
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Due to micro and small enterprises 3,001.64                    4,989.60                    
Due to other than micro and small enterprises 1,492.59                    1,827.54                    

Total 4,494.23                    6,817.14                    

1. Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost.
2. Due to Mico, Small and Medium Entrprises includes provision for Interest to MSME of ₹ 235.77 Lakhs (₹ 235.77 Lakhs in FY
2023-24)
3. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer Note 36.5.9

4. For explanations on Company's Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processses, refer Note 36.5.13

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 21a :  Aging analysis of Trade Payables

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

                  70.37             2,676.08                14.36              5.06               0.09              235.68             3,001.64 

                363.35                 982.05              128.15            19.04                      -                   0.00             1,492.59 

                           -                            -                         -                    -                      -                         -                            - 

                           -                            -                         -                    -                      -                         -                            - 

                           -                            -                         -                    -                      -                         -                            - 

                433.72             3,658.13              142.51            24.10               0.09              235.68             4,494.23 

* Disputed dues represents legal cases with vendors

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

                  21.06             4,698.99                34.29              0.09             10.36              224.81             4,989.60 

                285.14             1,168.95              262.95         110.50                      -                         -             1,827.54 

                           -                            -                         -                    -                      -                         -                            - 

                           -                            -                         -                    -                      -                         -                            - 

                           -                            -                         -                    -                      -                         -                            - 

                306.20             5,867.94              297.24         110.59             10.36              224.81             6,817.14 

Particulars Unbilled dues Not Due

Micro and Small Enterprises ("MSME")

As at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment Total

Unbilled dues

Total

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars Unbilled dues Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment Total

Others

Disputed dues – Micro and Small Enterprises ("MSME")

Disputed dues - Others

Unbilled dues

Total

Micro and Small Enterprises ("MSME")

Others

Disputed dues – Micro and Small Enterprises ("MSME")

Disputed dues - Others



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 22 :  Lease liabilities (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Lease liabilities                           75.89                        242.41 

Total 75.89                         242.41                       

1. Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

3. Also refer Note 36.4.11

2. For explanations on the Company's Interest risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer to Note
36.5.13

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 23 :  Other financial liabilities (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Interest Accrued but Not Due 398.00                      398.00                       
Payable for capital purchases 149.37                      352.04                       
Retention Money 239.17                      
Employee benefits payable 247.04                      311.91                       
Mark to Market Derivative Liability 2.08                           -                                  
Other Payables 151.09                      113.54                       

Total 1,186.75                   1,175.49                   

4. Payable for capital purchase includes MSME creditors to the extent they are of capital nature amounting Rs. 132.35 
Lakhs (Rs. 77.11 lakhs in FY 23-24).

3. For explanations on Company's Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processses, refer Note 36.5.13

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

2.Interest accrued but not due include dividend payable on 8% redeemable preference shares & 8.25% redeemable
preference shares recognised as Borrowing.

1. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 24 :  Other Current liabilities (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Advance from customers 251.34                       106.96                       
Advance against asset held for sale -                                   321.86                       
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 140.39                       117.61                       
Total 391.73                      546.43                      

1. For explanations on Company's Revenue Recognition policies, refer Note 36.4.18

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 :  Provisions (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits 299.25                       305.00                       
Provision for gratuity 110.47                       114.39                       
Provision for compensated absence 188.78                       190.61                       

Others 1,986.62                    2,084.47                    
Provision for warranty 1,986.62                    1,926.18                    
Tax provision (Net of tax paid in advance) -                                   158.29                       

Total 2,285.87                    2,389.47                    

Particulars ₹ in Lakhs
 As at 31 March 2024                     2,074.89 

Arising during the year (Net) 1,654.44                    
Utilised 1,434.77                    
As at 31 March 2025                     2,294.56 

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current 1,986.62                   1,926.18                   
Non-current 307.94                      148.71                      
Total 2,294.56                   2,074.89                   

b. Breakup of Warranty Provisions

Warranty is given to customers at the time of sale of Pumps, Motors and Pumpsets manufactured. Warranty cost includes
expenses in connection with repairs, free replacement of parts and after sales services during warranty period.

Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of
reporting period. It is expected that majority of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year and balance will be
incurred in following years. Management estimates the provision based on historical warranty claim information and any
recent trends that may suggest future claims could differ from historical amounts.

b. Compensated absences
The leave obligation cover the Company's liability for earned leaves which is expected to be paid-off in next 12 months

2. Other Provisions
a. Warranty

The Company provides gratuity for  employees as per the Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a 
period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity is payable on retirement or termination whichever is 
earlier.  The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The gratuity 
plan is a funded plan. Refer Note 36.5.6

Particulars As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

1. Employee benefits obligations
a. Gratuity



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 26 :  Revenue from operations
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Sales and services                  49,343.73                  54,003.43 
Sale of products (Refer Note 36.5.11)                  49,343.73                  54,003.43 

Other operating income                    1,346.60                    1,290.63 
Sale of scrap                       888.92                       831.11 
Export incentives (Refer Note 36.5.4)                       398.58                       436.96 
Sundry credit balances written back                         10.63                           2.99 
Provisions no longer required written back                         47.86                         16.19 
Miscellaneous receipts                           0.61                           3.38 

Total 50,690.33                 55,294.06                 

1. For explanations on Company's Revenue Recognition policies, refer Note 36.4.18



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 27 :  Other income
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Interest on income Tax and Sales Tax Refund -                                  3.50                           
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 
      (i)   Bank Deposits 32.13                         18.11                         
     (ii)  Unwinding of interest on security deposits 53.17                         98.40                         
     (iii)  other financial assets 39.49                         77.13                         
Gain on Sale of Investment 219.16                       -                                  
Net Gain/(loss) on lease modifications 6.61                           20.00                         
Net Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant & Equipment 398.15                       68.46                         
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of assets and liabilities -                                  43.62                         
Dividend Income from Equity Investments -                                  50.12                         
Miscellaneous income 192.63                       90.85                         

Total 941.34                       470.19                       



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 28 :  Cost of raw materials and components consumed
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Raw materials and components consumed 25,240.76          31,935.26          

Total 25,240.76          31,935.26          

Particulars



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 29 :  Purchases of Traded goods
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Monoblock 2,216.47           2,690.76           

Others 1,166.41           525.00               

Total 3,382.88           3,215.76           

Particulars



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30 :  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Opening inventory 6,659.71                   4,286.45                   
Work-in-process 3,292.70                   1,698.68                   
Finished goods 2,691.11                   1,764.73                   
Traded goods 675.90                      823.04                      

Closing Inventory 4,287.48                   6,659.71                   
Work-in-process 1,855.18                   3,292.70                   
Finished goods 1,991.39                   2,691.11                   
Traded goods 440.91                      675.90                      

(Increase)/decrease in inventory 2,372.23                  (2,373.26)                 

Total                    2,372.23                  (2,373.26)

Particulars



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 31 :  Employee benefits expense
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Salaries, wages, bonus, commission, etc. 3,249.98                   3,320.37                   
Gratuity (Refer Note 36.5.6) 69.34                         56.55                         
Contribution to provident and other funds 176.64                       170.41                       
Welfare and training expenses 285.69                       247.88                       
Provident and other funds' expenses 10.88                         10.66                         
Share Based Payment to employees 23.61                         6.50                           
Total                    3,816.14                    3,812.37 

Particulars



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 32 :  Finance costs
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Interest & discounting charges 1,169.79                   683.89                       
Interest on Lease Liability 42.97                         38.99                         
Other Finance cost 42.34                         42.84                         

Total 1,255.10                   765.72                       

Particulars



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 33 :  Depreciation and amortization expense
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,235.05                   980.73                       
Depreciation on Tangible & ROU Asset 1,101.30                   841.87                       
Amortization on Intangible assets 133.75                       138.86                       

Total 1,235.05                   980.73                       

Particulars



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 34 :  Other expenses
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Manufacturing expenses 7,783.26                   7,798.23                   
Stores consumed 1,572.95                   1,732.80                   
Power and fuel 276.07                      278.29                      
Repairs to machinery 249.31                      167.97                      
Job work charges 1,855.18                   2,217.21                   
Labour charges 3,760.73                   3,364.35                   
Cost of services 5.51                           12.46                        
Other manufacturing expenses 63.51                        25.15                        

Selling expenses 3,159.67                   3,687.92                   
Commission 36.35                        136.38                      
Freight and forwarding 960.33                      984.36                      
Warranty 1,654.44                   1,800.62                   
Advertisement and publicity 234.45                      361.14                      
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) (Including 
expected credit loss) 82.47                        130.74                      
Others selling expenses 191.63                      274.68                      

Administration expenses 2,823.55                   2,591.60                   
Rent 257.93                      224.82                      
Rates and taxes 44.79                        46.32                        
Insurance 21.98                        24.59                        
Repairs to building 16.38                        18.51                        
Other repairs and maintenance 696.43                      672.86                      
Travelling and conveyance 696.46                      818.42                      
Communication expenses 72.86                        66.34                        
Printing and stationery 22.35                        17.04                        
Professional charges* 800.21                      585.24                      
Auditor's remuneration (Refer Note 36.5.3) 24.72                        26.62                        
Spend on CSR activities (Refer Note 36.5.15) 27.52                        22.69                        
Non Executive Directors’ fees & commission 5.95                           19.40                        
Miscellaneous expenses 129.90                      48.05                        
Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off 0.69                           0.70                           
Loss on Exchange difference 5.38                           -                             
Total 13,766.48                14,077.75                

Particulars

*For terms and conditions with related parties, refer Note 36.5.9
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Note 35 :  Income tax
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Current tax                                4.96                           925.24 
Current income tax                                       -                           925.24 
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years                                4.96                                     -   

Deferred tax                              86.16                              14.30 
Relating to origination and reversal or temporary difference                              86.16                              14.30 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 91.12                            939.54                          

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)  ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses                            (23.53)                            (11.70)

Deferred tax charged to OCI (23.53)                          (11.70)                          

Current tax  ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

Accounting profit before income tax expense                           563.03                        3,349.92 

Tax @ 25.168% (31 March 2024 : 25.168%) 141.70                          843.11                          

Tax effect of adjustments in calculating taxable income:                            (50.58)                              96.43 
Disallowance Under IT                            (82.02)                              35.05 
LTCG as per IT on sale of land                              36.03                                     -   
Change in tax rate of CG - Op Bal of DTA on loss                                7.42                                     -   
LTCG as per IT on sale of shares                              21.74                                     -   
Difference between Opening and Closing WDV of IT                              (0.41)                                0.01 
Others                              12.09                              24.15 
Fixed Assets - found non -existent debited to P & L                                9.59                                     -   
TDSCPC 24Q notice -disallowance of TDS                                2.18                                     -   
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years                                4.96                                     -   
Reversal of deferred tax asset on tax loss for the LY                                     -                                35.44 
Others-opening adjustment for Merger with Optiqua                                     -                                  1.77 
Setoff of Loss on which DTA not created                            (45.97)                                     -   
Loss on write off / sales of Items relating to Leasehold Improvement                                     -                                  0.01 
Provision for doubtful deposits - allowed out of amount disallowed last year                            (16.19)                                     -   
At the effective income tax rate of 16.18% (31 March 2024 : 28.05%) 91.12                            939.54                          

Deferred Tax on Long Term Capital Loss                                     -                                       -   
Income Tax Reported in Statement of Profit & Loss 91.12                            939.54                          

During the year 2019-20, new section 115BAA is introduced by the CBDT. As per this section, option is given to all existing companies to either
pay Income tax as per the existing rates (i.e. 25% or 30% plus applicable surcharge and cess) or as per concessional rate of 22% plus applicable
surcharge and cess. This new rate is available only if company forgoes certain exemptions and deductions. Since this new rate is beneficial,
company has adopted the new tax rate of 25.168% (i.e. 22% including surcharge and cess) for computing Income tax & deferred tax for year
ended 31 March 2025 (the rate for 31 March 2024 was 25.168%).

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate as notified under Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India
for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
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1

2 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

3

3.1 Judgements

Lease

(ii)                defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company continually
evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information. The management believes that
the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, the management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements:

Note 36: Notes to and forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Corporate Information

The company is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act
1956. The registered office and principal place of business of the company is located at Plot No. SM - 33, 34, 35, 36/1, Sanand -
II Industrial Estate, Sanand GIDC, Sanand, Ahmedabad -382110. The books of accounts are maintained at the above mentioned
registered office. The equity shares of the company are not listed on any stock exchanges in India.

The company is a subsidiary company of Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.

The company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sales of Submersible Pumps, Electric Motors, Electrical panels,
wires, cables, pipe and spares thereof.

The standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 29-04-2025.

The Company’s standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and amendments thereof issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read
with rule 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied.

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for,
(i)                 the investments which have been measured at fair value as they are classified as fair value through profit or loss
or fair value through other comprehensive income.

The company had applied provisions of Ind AS 116 effective 01st April, 2019. The said standard provides for certain recognition 
exemptions for short term leases as well as provides for certain criteria when the lease contracts are non-enforceable. The 
determination of lease term for the purpose of availing such exemptions and evaluation of such criteria for non-enforceability 
of a contract involves significant judgment.



Revenue Recognition

3.2 Estimates and assumptions

Defined benefit plans

Deferred Tax

Warranty

Impairment of Goodwill recognized under Business Combination

The company generally recognizes revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the control is
transferred i.e. either on shipment or upon delivery in domestic and in case of export on the date of bill of lading. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The company bases its assumptions and estimates on information available till the date of approval of
these standalone financial statements. The assumptions and estimates, however, may change based on future developments,
due to market conditions or due to circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions and estimates when they occur.

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the obligation are
determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and
future post-retirement medical benefit increase. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The most sensitive parameter is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and
extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are mainly based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences including the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.

The Group recognises provision for warranties in respect of the products that it sells. The estimates are established using
historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding
possible future incidences based on actions on product failures.

The company estimates whether goodwill accounted under business combination has suffered any impairment on annual basis.
For this purpose, the recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on value in use calculations which require the use
of assumptions.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 36.5.6



4 Material Accounting Policies

4.1 Current Vs Non-Current Classification

An asset is current when it is:

A liability is current when it is:

4.2 Fair value measurement

The company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification.

a.      Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
b.      Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c.       Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d.     Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non - current.

d.      There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are treated as non - current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non - current assets and liabilities.

a.      Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b.      Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c.       Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

         In the principal market for the asset or liability, Or
         In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
           Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
          Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable.

The Company measures the fair value of an asset or a liability assuming that market participants would use it when pricing the
asset or liability and that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.



4.3 Property , Plant and Equipment

Depreciation and Amortization

Asset Category Life in 
Years Basis for useful life

Leasehold improvements Lease 
Period Amortised over lease period

Factory Building 30 Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

Non-Factory building 60 Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

Plant & Equipment including Pattern Tooling 15 Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

Jigs & Fixtures 8 Lower useful life considered based on past history of
usage and supported by Technical Evaluation

Computers
Network 6
End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, etc. 3
Servers 6

Electrical Installations 10 Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

c.    Own manufactured assets are capitalised at cost including an appropriate share of allocable expenses.

Depreciation is charged on the basis of useful life of assets on Straight Line method which are as follows:

The company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. 

External valuation experts are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuation
experts is decided upon annually by the management.

Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistently followed.

a.   The company has adopted Ind AS from transition date 1st April 2016. Accordingly the company has elected to continue
with the carrying value of all of its Property, plant and equipment measured as per the Indian GAAP as at 31 March 2016 and
use those values as deemed cost.

          Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment; and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or
accumulated impairment losses, if any, other than those acquired in a business combination. Cost represents all expenses
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition capable of operating in the manner intended. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the Property, Plant and
Equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

b.   Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet installed and ready for their
intended use at the balance sheet date.



Furniture & Fixture

Furniture, Fixtures and Electrical Fittings 10 Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

AC, Refrigerators and Water coolers - Company and
Guest House Premises 5 Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,

2013

Office Equipment 5 Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

Vehicles
Motorcars, Jeep 8
Two Wheelers 10
Other Vehicles 8

4.4

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies Act,
2013

-         Used assets obtained under Business Combination are measured based on their remaining useful life as on the date of
acquisition.
-          Depreciation on additions is provided from the beginning of the month in which the asset is ready to use.

As at 31 March 2025, Properties, Plant & Equipment with a carrying amount of ₹2544.1 Lakhs (31 March 2024 ₹ 1676.52 Lakhs)
are subject to first charge to secure bank loan. Refer note 16 Borrowings.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria
are met. When significant parts of the property are required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss as incurred.

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or on permanent withdrawal from use or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. Transfers between investment
property, owner-occupied property and inventories are at carrying amount of the property transferred.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Security:

-         Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided at their respective rates on pro-
rata basis up to the end of the month prior to the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished.

-         Foreign exchange fluctuation gain/ loss on imported plant and equipment were charged to Profit & Loss statement up to
transition date of Ind AS.

The company, based on technical assessments made by technical experts and management estimates and depreciates certain
items of plant and equipment over a useful lives which is different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when the
asset is derecognized.



4.5

Asset category
1. Computer Software
2. Customer Relationship
3. Brands
4. Technical Knowhow-Acquired

4.6

4.7

Intangible Assets

3 - 5 years

5 years

The amortisation period and amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, if any are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Borrowing Cost 

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for its acquisition. In case of internally generated intangible assets,
expenditure incurred in development phase, where it is reasonably certain that the outcome of development will be
commercially exploited to yield future economic benefits to the company, is considered as an intangible asset. Such
developmental expenditure is capitalized at cost including a share of allocable expenses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised by using Straight Line method over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset maybe impaired. Amortisation of Intangible assets is
included in the depreciation and amortisation in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Life in years

5 years
10 years

Borrowing Costs net of any investment income from temporary investment of related borrowings that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized till the month in which the asset is ready to
use, as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which these are
incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication due to internal or external factors that an
asset or a group of assets comprising a Cash Generating Unit (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. If such recoverable amount of the assets or the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs is less than the carrying amount of the assets or the CGU as the case may be, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the profit
and loss account. If at any subsequent balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at recoverable amount subject to a maximum of
depreciated historical cost and is accordingly reversed in the profit and loss account.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 'An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if,
and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised or relates to a
change in the estimate of the recoverable amount in the previous periods.



4.8

a) Financial assets

(i)         Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(ii)       Subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
         Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured by applying the effective interest rate (EIR) to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset if applicable. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

            Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
-        the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and
-        the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets, until they are derecognised or reclassified, are subsequently measured at fair
value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income except for interest income, impairment gains
or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

         Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

         Financial assets at amortised cost :
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:

-      the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, and

-      the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

            Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Equity Instruments

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiary are measured at cost.

In addition, the company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.



or

Original classification
Revised 

classificatio
n

Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL
Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost and fair value is
recognised in the statement of Profit and loss.

FVTPL Amortised 
Cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross
carrying amount.

Amortised cost FVOCI

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortised cost and fair value is
recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to
reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised 
cost

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.

(iii)     Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

-         the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

-        The company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party and either (a) the company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

(iv)  Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for



FVTPL FVOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL
Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to
statement of profit and loss at the reclassification date.

         Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVOCI
         Lease receivables under Ind AS 116
         Trade receivables under Ind AS 115

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

        Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 115, if they do not contain a significant financing
component

        Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 115 that contain a significant
financing component, if the company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money, and

(v)      Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

         Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.

         Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of
profit and loss. This amount is reflected in a separate line in the P&L as an impairment gain or loss. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

         All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

        All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.



b)         Financial Liabilities

        Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance,
i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not derecognize impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount. 
         Loan commitments: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit
risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are
credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

            Loans and Borrowings at amortised Cost

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividend on these
preference shares are recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

(i)         Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

(ii)       Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified and measured as follows:

         Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.



4.9.

4.10.

a. Initial Recognition

b. Conversion

c. Exchange Differences

4.11. Leases

a. Company as a lessee

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian currency, by applying the exchange rate between the Indian currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement and conversion of foreign currency transactions are recognised as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise.

Current assets and current liabilities, Secured Loans, being monetary items, designated in foreign currencies are revalorized at
the rate prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet or forward contract rate or other appropriate rate. 

Lease is a contract that provides to the customer (lessee) the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

A lessee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases and to recognise depreciation of leased assets separately
from interest on lease liabilities in the statement of Profit and Loss. The Company uses the practical expedient to apply the
requirements of this standard to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics if the effects on the financial statements of
applying to the portfolio does not differ materially from applying the requirement to the individual leases within that portfolio.

(iii)     Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when, and only when, it is
extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Derivatives

Company uses derivative contracts to hedge its exposure against movements in foreign exchange rates. The use of derivative
contracts is intended to reduce the risk or cost to the company. Derivative contracts are not used for trading or speculation
purpose. 

All derivatives are measured at fair value through the profit or loss unless they form part of a qualifying cash flow hedge, in
which case the fair value is taken to reserves and released into the statement of profit and loss at the same time as the risks on
the hedged instrument are recognised therein. Any hedge ineffectiveness will result in the relevant proportion of the fair value
remaining in the statement of profit and loss. Fair values are derived primarily from discounted cash-flow models, option-
pricing models and from third-party quotes. Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair values are positive and as liabilities
when their fair values are negative. All hedging activity is explicitly identified and documented by the company.

However, when the lessee and the lessor each have the right to terminate the lease without permission from the other party
with no more than an insignificant penalty the Company considers that lease to be no longer enforceable. Also according to Ind
AS 116, for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and for leases for which the underlying asset is of
low value, the lessee is not required to recognize right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The Company applies both recognition
exemptions. The lease payments associated with those leases are generally recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term or another systematic basis if appropriate.



Right-of-use Asset

Lease Liability

Lease Modification

b.  Company as a lessor

4.12. Inventories 

4.13. Cash and cash equivalents

b.    Work-in-process including finished components and finished goods are valued at cost or realisable value whichever is
lower. Cost includes direct materials, labour costs and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating
capacity.
c. Materials-in-transit and materials in bonded warehouse are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet.

d. Unserviceable, damaged and obsolete inventory is valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.

Cost of Inventory is ascertained using weighted average cost formula.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Right-of-use assets, which are included under property, plant and equipment, are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and, if necessary, any accumulated impairment. The cost of a right-of-use asset comprises the present value of the
outstanding lease payments plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling or removing the underlying asset. In this
context, the Company also applies the practical expedient that the payments for non-lease components are generally
recognized as lease payments. If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term
or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the right-of-use asset is depreciated to the end of
the lease term.

Lease liabilities, which are assigned to financing liabilities, are measured initially at the present value of the lease payments.
Subsequent measurement of a lease liability includes the increase of the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the company accounts for the re-measurement of the
lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments received under operating leases are recognised in the
Statement of profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

a. Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes all
cost of purchase and incidental expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.



4.14. Taxes

Current income tax

Deferred tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities; on the basis of the taxable profits computed for the current accounting period in accordance with Income Tax Act,
1961 and book profit in case of minimum alternate tax under section 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961 if applicable. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

     When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss;

     In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Current income tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognised in other
comprehensive income or in equity, respectively, and not in the statement of Profit and Loss. The Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

     When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

     In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
arrangements, deferred tax liabilities are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences including, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:



Sales tax / GST

4.15.

B. Discontinuing operations

4.16.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. This condition is regarded as met only when
the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate use in its present condition. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Discontinuing operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit
or loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss account.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for distribution are presented separately from others assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and:

a)      Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

b)      Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except:

     When the GST incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case,
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

      When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of Sales tax / GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Non-Current Assets held for sale and Discontinuing operations

A. Non-Current Assets held for sale

Or
c)      Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

An entity does not depreciate (or amortise) a non-current asset while it is classified as held for sale or while it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale.

Employee Benefits

a)      Short Term Employee Benefits

The distinction between short term and long term employee benefits is based on expected timing of settlement rather than the
employee’s entitlement benefits. All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia,
performance pay etc. and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 



4.17.

4.18.

b)      Post-Employment Benefits

(i)      Defined contribution plan

The company makes payment to state government provident fund scheme and employee state insurance scheme which are
defined contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The company has no further obligations under these
schemes beyond its periodic contributions.

(ii)    Defined benefit plan

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme is Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of
the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined
benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on a net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the profit or loss in subsequent 
periods.

(iii) Other than the Defined contribution plan and Defined benefit plan disclosed above, the company does not offer any other
Long term employment benefits or Termination benefits to its employees.

Provisions and Contingencies

Necessary provisions are made for the present obligations that arise out of past events entailing future outflow of economic
resources. Such provisions reflect best estimates based on available information. 

However a disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Revenue Recognition 

The company recognizes revenue, when or as control over distinct goods or services is transferred to the customer; i.e. when
the customer is able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services and obtains substantially all of the remaining
benefits, provided a contract with enforceable rights and obligations exists and amongst others collectability of consideration is
probable taking into account our customer’s creditworthiness.

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

         The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
         The date that the company recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The company recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

        Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and 
         Net interest expense or income.

Revenue is the transaction price the company expects to be entitled to. Variable consideration is included in the transaction
price if it is highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are resolved.



4.19.

Trade Receivable

The amounts billed on customer for work performed and are unconditionally due for payment i.e. only passage of time is
required before payment falls due, are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables.

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised when the company
performs under the contract.

Other Income

Interest Income from a Financial Asset

The amount of variable consideration is calculated by either using the expected value or the most likely amount depending on
which is expected to better predict the amount of variable consideration.

Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer of goods or services and the receipt of
payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit either to the customer or the company. If a contract
contains more than one distinct good or service, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on
relative stand-alone selling prices. If stand-alone selling prices are not observable, the company reasonably estimates those.
Revenue is recognized for each performance obligation either at a point in time or over time.

Performance obligations are identified based on individual terms of contract. If a contract contains more than one distinct good
or service, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on relative stand-alone selling prices. If stand-
alone selling prices are not observable, the company reasonably estimates them. Revenue is recognized for each performance
obligation either at a point in time or over time.

The incremental cost to obtain a contract are recognised as an asset if the company expects to recover those cost over the
period of contract. Company recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense, when incurred, if the
amortisation period of the asset that the entity otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.

Contract Balances

Interest Income from a Financial Asset is recognized using effective interest rate method.

Others

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Government Grant

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized if the following conditions are satisfied, 
-       There is reasonable assurance that the company will comply with the conditions attached to it.
-       Such benefits are earned and reasonable certainty exists of the collection.



4.20.

4.21.

4.22.

4.23.

4.24.

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports as grant related to
income and is recognized as other operating income in the statement of profit and loss if the entitlements can be estimated
with reasonable accuracy and conditions precedent to claim are fulfilled.

Cash dividend

The company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to the equity holders of the company when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the company. As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, a
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions, if any, are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

c.       Unallocated items
Corporate assets and liabilities, income and expenses which relate to the company as a whole and are not allocable to
segments, are included under other reconciling items.

Business combinations 

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by
the company, liabilities incurred by the company to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
company in exchange for control of the acquire. Acquisition related costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of cash flows exclude items which are not
available for general use as at the date of the Balance sheet.

Segment Reporting 

a.      Identification of Segments 
The company has identified Wires & Cables, Pipes, and Pumpsets Business as its reportable segments. The company is engaged
in the business of manufacturing and sales of Submersible Pumps, Electric Motors, Electrical panels, wires, cables, pipe and
spares thereof.
b.      Allocation of common costs
Common allocable costs are allocated to the Wires & Cables, Pipes, and Pumpsets based on sales of respective business
segment to the total sales of the company.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of
the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non cash nature and any deferral or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular operating,
investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

Export Incentives



Business combinations under common control will be accounted as per IND AS 103, wherein where there are two entities under 
the common control of a main entity and one of the two entities gets amalgamated with the other entity, the transferee entity
is required to restate the comparative figures from the first day itself.

-          over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

When the consideration transferred by the company in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or liability is re-
measured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments or Ind AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of,
-         the sum of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
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5 Additional notes to the Financial Statements

5.1 Contingent Liabilities
 ₹ in Lakhs 

a Contingent liability provided for 2024-25 2023-24
                 298.58                  294.76 

                           -                    24.47 

             1,025.41              1,039.55 
                     1.28                      1.28 
             1,325.27              1,360.06 

5.2 Commitments
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
(i) 

129.42              2,444.58 

(ii) 

(iii) Leases
a Profit and Loss information

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets:
 ₹ in Lakhs 

 2024-25 2023-24
                 326.86                  510.34 

Land                    33.77                    33.77 
                 360.63                  544.11 

 ₹ in Lakhs 
 2024-25 2023-24

                   42.97                    38.99 
                   42.97                    38.99 

iv. Disputed Case Pending under Consumer Forum

Aggregate amount of Bank Guarantees other than the Performance Guarantees outstanding as on 31st March 
2025 is ₹ 0.00 (₹ 0.00 lakhs as on 31st March 2024).

Interest expense on lease liabilities:

Buildings

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 
and not provided for (net of advances)

Buildings

 Total 

Particulars

 Total 

Particulars

i.    Disputed Sales Tax and GST Demands
(₹ 30.71 Lakhs paid as deposit)
ii.   Disputed ESI Demands
(₹ Nil paid as deposit)
iii. Performance Bank Guarantee Outstanding
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b Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

 ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

                   75.89                  242.41 
                 200.16                            - 
                 274.17                            - 

* Refer Note d extension and termination options for more details.

c Total cash outflow for leases
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24
                 302.81                  455.82 

                         -                            -   
                 302.81                  455.82 

d Other information
Nature of leasing activity

Extension and termination options

5.3 Payment to Auditors (Net of taxes)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Sr. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
a Statutory Auditor
i As auditors 20.00                   21.70                   

Audit fees                    13.75                    15.75 
Tax audit fees                      3.25                      3.25 
Limited review                      3.00                      2.70 

ii Certification fees  & assurance services                      1.95                      2.69 
iii Reimbursement of expenses                      0.52                      0.48 

Total (a) 22.47                   24.87                   
b Cost Auditor
i As auditors                      2.25                      1.75 
ii In other capacity

Certification fees                            -                            - 
Reimbursement of expenses                            -                            - 

Total (b) 2.25                     1.75                     
Grand total (a+b) 24.72                   26.62                   

Particulars
Less than 1 year

The Company has leases for Office Building and Factory Buildings. Certain lease contracts provide for payments to
increase each year by inflation or and in others to be reset periodically to market rental rates. While other lease
contracts comprise only fixed payments over the lease terms.

The use of extension and termination options gives the Company added flexibility in the event it has identified
more suitable premises in terms of cost and/or location or determined that it is advantageous to remain in a
location beyond the original lease term. An option is only exercised when consistent with the Company’s regional
markets strategy and the economic benefits of exercising the option exceeds the expected overall cost.

Total

Between 1 year to 5 years*
More than 5 years

Particulars
Amortization of the lease liabilities (including advance payments)
Short term leases and low-value asset leases not included in the measurement 
of the liabilities
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5.4

5.5

 ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

             2,898.22              4,830.94 

             1,418.50              1,634.19 

                           -                            - 

                           -                            - 

                 235.77                  235.77 

The Information has been given in respect of such vendors on the basis of information available with the company.

Interest due on principle amount remaining unpaid as on year end date

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers
under MSMED Act

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for the payments
already made

Principal outstanding to MSME suppliers 
Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day,
during the year

The Company’s exports qualify for export benefits offered in the form of duty credit scrips and duty drawback
under foreign trade policy framed by Department General of Foreign Trade (DGFT). Income accounted towards
such export incentives and duty drawback amounts to ₹ 398.58 Lakh in FY 2024-25 (2023-24 ₹ 436.96 Lakh)
included in revenue from operations.

Particulars

The company has amounts due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act
2006 (MSMED Act) as at 31 March 2025. The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under.
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5.6 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plans:
Amount of Rs. 187.52 Lakhs (31 March 2024 : Rs. 181.07 Lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note No. 31 “Employee Benefits Expense”

B. Defined benefit plans:
The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans:
(a) Gratuity

March 31, 2025 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets ₹ in Lakhs

April 1, 2024 Service cost Net interest 
expense

Sub-total 
included in 

statement of 
profit and loss 

(Note 31)

Benefit paid Benefit Paid 
Directly by the 

Employer

Return on plan 
assets (excluding 

amounts 
included in net 

interest 
expense)

Actuarial 
changes arising 
from changes in 

demographic 
assumptions

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
changes in 
financial 

assumptions

Experience 
adjustments

Sub-total 
included in 

OCI

Contributions 
by employer

March 31, 2025

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation                      (481.93)          (54.78)                   (34.85)                   (89.63)                    60.57                           -                              -               (75.48)               (13.78)           (89.26)                          -                     (600.25)
Fair value of plan assets 280.58                                         -                      20.29                    20.29                  (60.57)                     (4.24)                            -                       -                          -               (4.24)                   56.17                     292.23 

Benefit liability                      (201.35)          (54.78)                   (14.56)                   (69.34)                           -                             -                       (4.24)                            -               (75.48)               (13.78)           (93.50) 56.17                                    (308.02)

Total benefit liability                      (201.35)          (54.78)                   (14.56)                   (69.34) -                       -                                           (4.24) -                                   (75.48)               (13.78)           (93.50) 56.17                                    (308.02)

March 31, 2024 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets ₹ in Lakhs

April 1, 2023 Service cost Net interest 
expense

Sub-total 
included in 

statement of 
profit and loss 

(Note 31)

Benefit paid Benefit Paid 
Directly by the 

Employer

Return on plan 
assets (excluding 

amounts 
included in net 

interest 
expense)

Actuarial 
changes arising 
from changes in 

demographic 
assumptions

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
changes in 
financial 

assumptions

Experience 
adjustments

Sub-total 
included in 

OCI

Contributions 
by employer

March 31, 2024

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation                      (377.22)          (46.68)                   (28.28)                   (74.96)                    12.65                      0.38                           -                              -               (12.75)               (30.03)           (42.78)                          -                     (481.93)
Fair value of plan assets                        245.50                   -                      18.41                    18.41                  (12.65)                           -                       (3.68)                            -                       -                          -               (3.68)                   33.00                     280.58 

Benefit liability                      (131.72)          (46.68)                     (9.87)                   (56.55)                           -                        0.38                     (3.68)                            -               (12.75)               (30.03)           (46.46)                   33.00                   (201.35)

Total benefit liability                      (131.72)          (46.68)                     (9.87)                   (56.55) -                       0.38                                         (3.68) -                                   (12.75)               (30.03)           (46.46)                   33.00                   (201.35)

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit 
and loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit 
and loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
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₹ in Lakhs

 Year ended    31 
March 2025 

 Year ended    
31 March 2024 

Rs. Rs.

Special Deposit Scheme -                        -                       
(%) of total plan assets -                        -                       
Insured managed funds 292.24                 280.58                
(%) of total plan assets 100% 100%
Others -                        -                       
(%) of total plan assets -                        -                       

 Year ended    31 
March 2025 

 Year ended    
31 March 2024 

Discount rate 6.61% 7.23%
Future salary increase 10.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.61% 7.23%
Expected average remaining working lives (in years) 6 12

Withdrawal rate (based on grade and age of employees)
For service 4 years and below 30.00% 15.00%
For service 5 years and above 9.00% 3.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Gratuity ₹ in Lakhs

Particulars Sensitivity level

1% increase 38.91                   44.68                   
1% decrease                   (44.22)                  (52.28)

1% increase                   (34.47)                  (45.48)
1% decrease 32.93                   40.76                   

1% increase                     (7.38)                    (2.10)
1% decrease 8.14                      2.28                     

Discount rate

Future salary increase

Withdrawal rate

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit 
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets of Gratuity are as follows:

Particulars

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s 
plans are shown below:

Particulars

(increase) / decrease in defined benefit obligation (Impact)
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The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan : ₹ in Lakhs

Rs. Rs.

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 70.40                   35.16                   

Between 2 and 5 years 212.24                 116.47                

Beyond 5 years 767.55                 1,021.59             

Total expected payments 1,050.19              1,173.22             

Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)

Years Years

Gratuity 8.36                      12.00                   

The followings are the expected contributions to planned assets  for the next year:

Rs. Rs.

Gratuity 110.47 114.39                

Particulars  Year ended 31 March 2025  Year ended 31 March 2024 

Particulars  Year ended 31 March 2025  Year ended 31 March 2024 

Particulars  Year ended 31 March 2025  Year ended 31 March 2024 
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C. Funding Policy

D. Risk Exposure

Mortality risk : Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk : Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very low as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory
guidelines which mitigate risk.

Salary Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Investment Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this
rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk : The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.

The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk : A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the
duration of asset.
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5.7 Segment Information
Segment information has been provided under the Notes to the Consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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5.8

5.9 (A) Description of Related Parties
i) Name of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists:

Sr. 
No. Related Party Category

1 Holding Company
2 Entity Controlled by Company
3 Post- Employment benefit plan of Company

Paragon Greensutra Private Limited w.e.f. 8 Sep 2023

Kirloskar Energen Private Limited upto 11 March 2025
Kirloskar Solar Technologies Private Limited
Indifour Consult Private Limited w.e.f. 27 April 2023
Alotoxl Ventures LLP w.e.f. 10 May 2023

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - IV LLP  w.e.f. 21 Sep 2022 upto 22 March 2024

6
One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

ii) Key Management Personnel of the holding company and their relatives:

Sr. 
No. Name Relationship

Husband
Daughter
Daughter
Father
Mother

a Gauri Kirloskar w.e.f. 20th May 2022

Christopher Kolenaty
Maya Kolenaty
Pia Kolenaty
Atul Kirloskar
Arti Kirloskar

Engines LPG LLC, dba Wildcat  Power Gen w.e.f. 29th November 2023

Beluga Whale Capital Management Pte. Ltd.Entity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel

Related parties have been identified as defined under paragraph 9 of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, “Related Party Disclosures”

Company

4

Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited
Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Pvt. Ltd. upto 25th March 2024
La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt. Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity Trust
Snow Leopard Technology Ventures, LLP

Snow Leopard Lever Boost LLP w.e.f. 24th March 2023

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - V LLP  w.e.f. 27 Feb 23 upto 24 March 2025

Gumtree Capital Advisors LLP 
Snow Leopard Infrastructure-1 LLP 

Binaza Consult Private Limited (earlier known as Binaza Travels Private 
Limited) w.e.f. 31 Aug 2023

Kirloskar International ME FZE w.e.f. 7th January 2025

7 Fellow Subsidiaries

Kirloskar Americas Corp., USA (earlier known as KOEL Americas Corp., USA) 
name change w.e.f. 21 May 2021

Navsai Opportunities Pvt Ltd (formerly known as Navsai Investments Pvt Ltd) 
name change w.e.f. 22 Feb 2025

5 Entity controlled by close member of Key Managerial 
Personnel

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - VI LLP  w.e.f. 4th March 2024 upto 24 March 2025

Name of Relatives 

ESVA Pumps India Private Limited w.e.f. 4th Oct 2021 upto 28th September 
2024

Arka Fincap Limited (earlier known as Kirloskar Capital Limited)
Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited w.e.f 13 July 2021
Arka Investment Advisory Services Private Limited w.e.f. 30 March 2022

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - VII LLP  w.e.f 3 October 2024
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iii) Key Management Personnel of entity and their relatives:

Sr. 
No. Name 

e Rahul Sahai w.e.f. 24th January 2025

(B) Transactions with Related Parties 
₹ in Lakhs

Amount Amount from 
major parties Amount Amount from major 

parties
1 Gross Sales (Net of sales return)

Holding Company 6,120.71           7,346.09                    
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 6,120.71      7,346.09                 
Total 6,120.71           6,120.71               7,346.09                    7,346.09                          

2 Warranty Returns
Holding Company -                          17.95                         
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited -                     17.95                       
Total -                          -                              17.95                         17.95                                

3 Rendering of Services from
Key Management Personnel 3.00                   13.00                         
Gauri Kirloskar 1.30              1.50                         
Akshay Sahni 1.30              11.50                       
Sachin Kejriwal 0.40              
Total 3.00                   3.00                       13.00                         13.00                                

4 Expenses paid to
Holding Company 545.96      304.67              
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 545.96         304.67                     
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of Entity 2.75                   -                                  
Indifour Consult Private Limited 2.75              -                                
Total 548.71      548.71         304.67              304.67                     

5 ESOP Issued to LGM Employees
Holding Company 23.61        6.50                   
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 23.61            6.50                         
Total 23.61        23.61            6.50                   6.50                         

Wife – Geetu Sehgal (Sahai)

Aseem Srivastav w.e.f. 16th Sep 2022 (up to 31st Dec 2024)a

Sachin Kejriwal w.e.f. 18 October 2024d

Daughter – Pia Kolenaty
Daughter – Maya Kolenaty

Sr. 
No. Nature of the transaction / relationship / major parties

2024-25 2023-24

Name of Relatives 

Wife – Alka Srivastav
Son – Sanchit Srivastav
Son – Shivalik Srivastav

Husband – Christopher Kolenaty

Son – Arjun Sahni
Daughter – Anoushka Sahni

c Akshay Sahni w.e.f. 28 Jan 2022

b Gauri Kirloskar

Father-Atul Kirloskar
Mother-Arti Kirloskar

Wife – Aditi Kirloskar (Sahni)

Wife – Ruchi Kejriwal
Son – Krishang Kejriwal
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6 Loan repaid to Holding company
Holding Company 1,071.75           1,913.25                    
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 1,071.75      1,913.25                 
Total 1,071.75           1,071.75               1,913.25                    1,913.25                          

7 Interest paid / (recovered)
Holding Company 402.34               586.09                       
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 402.34         586.09                     
Total 402.34               402.34                  586.09                       586.09                              

8 Contributions Paid
Post-Employment benefit plan of the Company 56.17        33.00                
La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt. Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity
Trust

56.17            33.00                       

Total 56.17        56.17            33.00                33.00                       
9 Divestment in equity shares *

Associates 291.01               -                                  
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 291.01         -                                         
Total 291.01      291.01         -                         -                                

10 Purchase of Goods
Associates 118.99               1,889.04
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 118.99         1,889.04                 
Total 118.99      118.99         1,889.04           1,889.04                 

11 Purchase Return of Goods
Associates 70.59                 -                                  
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 70.59            
Total 70.59        70.59            -                         -                                

12 Purchase of Services
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of Entity 73.48                 -                                  
Indifour Consult Private Limited 73.48            -                                
Total 73.48        73.48            -                         -                                

13 Capital Advance
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of Entity -                          31.74                         
Indifour Consult Private Limited 31.74                       
Total -                 -                     31.74                31.74                       

14 Reimbursement of Expenses for Deputed Employees
Holding Company 193.45     90.63
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 193.45         90.63                       
Associates 4.18         6.42
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 4.18              6.42                         
Total 197.63     197.63        97.05 97.05

15 Dividend income received
Associates -           50.11                
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited -                     -                             50.11                       
Total -           -               50.11                50.11                      

16 Interest paid to
Fellow Subsidiaries -           4.83                  
Arka Fincap Limited -                     4.83                         
Total -           -               4.83                  4.83                        

17 Acceptances
Fellow Subsidiaries -           477.44             
Arka Fincap Limited -                     477.44                     
Total -           -               477.44             477.44                    
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₹ in Lakhs

Outstanding 
1 Accounts Receivable

Holding Company 267.16      1,410.34           
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 267.16         1,410.34                 
Associates 0.64          6.42                   
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 0.64              6.42                         
Total 267.80      267.80         1,416.76           1,416.76                 

2 Accounts Payable
Key Management Personnel -                          9.00                            
Commission
Akshay Sahni -                     9.00                         
Associates -                 21.60                
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited -                     21.60                       
Holding Company 184.97      95.82                
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 184.97         95.82                       
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of Entity 29.45        -                         
Indifour Consult Private Limited 29.45            -                                
Total 214.42      214.42         126.42              126.42                     

3 Carrying value of Investment in equity shares
Associates -                 441.00              
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited -                     441.00                     
Total -                 -                     441.00              441.00                     

4 Outstanding Cumulative Preference Shares
Holding Company 4,850.00  4,850.00           
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 4,850.00      - 4,850.00                 
Total 4,850.00  4,850.00      4,850.00           4,850.00                 

5 Loan from Holding company
Holding Company -                 1,071.75           
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited -                     1,071.75                 
Total -                 -                     1,071.75           1,071.75                 

6 Interest payable on preference shares
Holding Company 398.00      398.00              
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 398.00         398.00                     
Total 398.00      398.00         398.00              398.00                     

7 Payable towards ESOP to LGM employees
Holding Company 33.95        18.09                
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 33.95            18.09                       
Total 33.95        33.95            18.09                18.09                       

8 Payable
Post-Employment benefit plan of the Company 145.18      82.53                
La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt. Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity
Trust

145.18         82.53                       

Total 145.18      145.18         82.53                82.53                       

Sr.No
. Nature of the transaction / relationship / major parties As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Commitments with related parties

Compensation of key management personnel of the company
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24
                                -                                          -   

3.00                                      3.0 
0.00                                   10.0 

3.00 13.00

* The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th August 2024 approved the participation for the buyback offer of
22,38,506 fully paid-up equity shares at a price of Rs. 13/- per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- per share) of ESVA Pumps India Private
Limited (ESVA) to the extent of Company’s entitlement and equity shares renounced by other shareholders of ESVA, as per the terms and
conditions mentioned in the ‘Letter of Offer’ dated 28th August 2024 issued by ESVA to the Company. Accordingly, 22,38,506 fully paid-up
equity shares were bought back by ESVA from the Company and the consideration amount of Rs. 2,91,00,578/- (Rupees Two Crore Ninety
One Lakh Five Hundred and Seventy Eight only) was received by the Company on 6th September 2024. 

Further the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28th September 2024 approved the termination of Joint Venture
arrangement with ESVA Pumps India Private Limited. In pursuant to the Joint Venture Termination Agreement 21,71,494 (32.12%) equity
shares held by the Company in ESVA were sold to Mr. V Baranitharan and Ms. C. Shanthi, the Promoters of ESVA for consideration
amounting to Rs. 3,69,15,398/- (Rupees Three Crore Sixty Nine Lakh Fifteen Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety Eight only) on 30th
September 2024. Consequentially, the aforesaid Joint Venture arrangement has been terminated w.e.f. 28th September 2024.

The above figures do not include provision for leave encashment and gratuity, as actuarial valuation of such provision for the Key 
Management Personnel is included in the total provision for Leave encashment & gratuity.

Transactions entered into with related party are made in ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s
length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been
no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the company has not
recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2024: ₹ Nil). This assessment is undertaken
during each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

As at 31 March 2025, commitments with related parties is 45.91 Lakhs. (31 March 2024: ₹ NIL).

Transactions with key management personnel

Particulars
Short-term employee benefits
Sitting Fees

The above figures do not include provision for leave encashment and gratuity, as actuarial valuation of such provision for the Key
Management Personnel is included in the total provision for Leave encashment & gratuity.

Commission

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management 
personnel.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
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5.10 Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted)

2024-25  2023-24 
471.91                 2,410.38           

10,76,000 10,76,000

10,76,000 10,76,000

43.86                    224.01               

10,76,000 10,76,000

43.86                    224.01               

5.11 Revenue Recognition

₹ in Lakhs
Domestic 
Business Export Business Total

33,113.81 16,229.92 49,343.73

₹ in Lakhs
2024-25 2023-24

50,781.29 55,571.47
1,437.56 1,568.04

49,343.73 54,003.43

5.12 Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities

5.13 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Audit Committee and Board review financial risks and the appropriate risk governance framework for the company’s financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for
speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

(A) Set out below is the disaggregation of the company’s revenue from contracts with its customers :

Particulars
Profit/(Loss) for the year after tax (₹ in Lakhs)
Total number of equity shares at the end of the year 
(One Equity share of face value of ₹ 10/- each)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of computing Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share (in ₹)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of computing Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share (in ₹)

Particulars

Revenue from contracts with customers

The company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support the company’s operations. The company’s principal financial assets include
investments, loans, trade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits and other financial assets that have been derived directly from its
operations. At 31 March 2025, out of the total receivables of 48.72 Lakhs USD, the company has booked forward cover of 15 Lakhs USD against forex
trade receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged). At 31 March 2024, out of the total receivable of 33.99 Lakhs USD, the company has booked forward cover of
10 Lakhs USD against forex trade receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged).

(B) The company has generated revenue of ₹ 0.00 Lakhs during the year from its Contract Liabilities as on 1 April, 2024. (Rs. NIL in P.Y.)

(C) The company generally recognizes revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the control is transferred i.e. either
on shipment or upon delivery in domestic and in case of export on the date of bill of lading. The payment is due from the date of sales and are
generally on terms of 30 days to 120 days.

(D) The company is in the business of manufacturing and trading of Electric Pumpsets, Motors, Pipes, Wires, Cables and related spares and has a single
obligation of delivery of goods as per the commercial contract terms with its customers. In some cases the company also provides extended warranty
to its customers.

(E) The company provides to its customers warranties in the forms of repairs or replacement under its standard terms and recognizes it as warranty 
provision as per Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

(F) As on 31st March, 2025, the company has unsatisfied performance obligation of ₹17.02 Lakhs and will be recognized as revenue in financial year 
2024-25 onwards based on contractual terms (31st March, 2024 : ₹41.63 Lakhs).

(G) Reconciliation of the company’s revenue from contract price with revenue recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss is as follows : 

Particulars
Revenue as per Contract
Less : Discounts and Incentives
Revenue from contracts with customers

The management believes that the fair values of non-current financial assets (e.g., investments at FVPL, loans and others),current financial assets (e.g.,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans), non-current financial liabilities and current financial liabilities(e.g. Trade payables and
other payables and others) approximate their carrying amounts.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

a) Market risk

i) Interest rate risk
a. Exposure

₹ in Lakhs
2024-25 2023-24

               4,000.00             4,850.00 
                  850.00             1,071.75 
               6,566.16             4,412.83 
               2,213.64             4,582.17 

b. Interest Rate Sensitivity
₹ in Lakhs

Change in 
Interest rate

Effect on profit 
before tax

Effect on pre-
tax equity

+50 bps (44.44)                  (44.44)               
-50 bps 44.44                    44.44                 
+50 bps (32.30)                  (32.30)               
-50 bps 32.30                    32.30                 

ii) Foreign currency risk (Hedged and Unhedged)

Amounts in Foreign Currencies
Currency 2024-25 2023-24
USD 48,72,067.46           33,99,473.46 
EUR -  - 
USD 10,395.00                       66,759.00 
EUR 13,400.00                       33,200.00 

The sensitivity is calculated only in respect of floating interest rate loan. It is calculated by changing the interest rates by 50 bps keeping all other 
factors constant.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense
is denominated in a foreign currency).

The company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions related to sales & purchases.

Nature of Exposure

Receivable

Payable

 Financial Year 

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Short Term Floating Interest Loans

Particulars

Short Term Fixed Interest Loans
Long Term Floating Interest Loans

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

Long Term Fixed Interest Loans

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risk include borrowings, deposits, investments, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity provisions.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the
financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
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₹ in Lakhs

Change in USD 
rate

Effect on profit 
before tax

Effect on pre-
tax equity

5% 207.91 207.91
-5%                 (207.91)               (207.91)
5% 138.88 138.88

-5%                 (138.88)               (138.88)

₹ in Lakhs

Change in 
EURO rate

Effect on profit 
before tax

Effect on pre-
tax equity

5%                      (0.62)                   (0.62)
-5%                        0.62                     0.62 
5% (1.49)                    (1.49)                  

-5% 1.49                      1.49                   

iii) Commodity price risk

iv) Other Price Risk

b) Credit risk

Trade receivables

 Financial Year 

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

The company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the on-going purchase and manufacture of Pumps 
& Motors, Wire, Cable & Pipe and therefore require a continuous supply of copper, steel and Iron. However, Company being the indirect user of these
commodities, volatility in price of such commodity does not have direct or immediate impact on the profitability of the company. Hence, the company
does not foresee any direct or immediate risk with respect to such commodity price fluctuation.

The company does not hold investments in equity or mutual fund as on the date of Balance Sheet and hence it is not exposed to any such risks.

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Receivables are reviewed, managed and controlled for each class of customers separately. Credit exposure risk is mainly influenced by class / type of
customers, depending upon their characteristics.  Credit risk is managed through credit approval process by establishing credit limits along with
continuous monitoring of credit worthiness of customers to whom credit terms are granted. Wherever required, credit risk of receivables is further
covered through letter of credit, bank guarantee, business deposits and such other forms of credit assurance schemes.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables
are combined into homogenous category and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The
company does not hold collateral as security. The company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its
customers are spread over vast spectrum.

 Financial Year 

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD & EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.
The impact on the company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The impact on the company’s pre-
tax equity is due to changes in profit before tax. The company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

At 31 March 2025, out of the total receivables of 48.72 Lakhs USD, the company has booked forward cover of 15 Lakhs USD against forex trade
receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged). At 31 March 2024, out of the total receivable of 33.99 Lakhs USD, the company has booked forward cover of 10
Lakhs USD against forex trade receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged).

Foreign currency sensitivity
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c) Liquidity risk

Excessive risk concentration

₹ in Lakhs

Particulars On demand less than 3 months 3 months to 1 
year 

 1 year to 5 
years 

 more than 5 
years 

Total

Year ended 31 March 2025
Interest bearing borrowings 1,105.31                   -                                    1,958.33               10,566.16         -                             13,629.80          
Lease Liability -                                 17.86                            58.03                     200.16               274.17                  550.22               
Other financial liabilities 452.57                       554.54                         179.64                   27.11                 -                             1,213.86            
Trade payables 402.38                       4,091.85                      -                             -                          -                             4,494.23            

1,960.26 4,664.25 2,196.00 10,793.43 274.17 19,888.11
Year ended 31 March 2024
Interest bearing borrowings 5,653.92                   -                                    -                             4,008.19            5,254.64               14,916.75          
Lease Liability -                                 109.23                         133.18                   -                          -                             242.41               
Other financial liabilities 133.12                       497.69                         544.68                   24.45                 -                             1,199.94            
Trade payables 643.00                       6,174.14                      -                             -                          -                             6,817.14            

6,430.04 6,781.06 677.86 4,032.64 5,254.64 23,176.24

(ii) Net Debt Reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for the year ended 31 March 2025

2024-25 2023-24
2.06                                     1.91 

(3,063.64)                 (5,653.92)
(10,566.16)               (9,262.83)
(13,627.74)             (14,914.84)

Particulars Cash and cash 
equivalents

Current 
borrowings

Non-current 
borrowings

Total

Net debt as on 31 March 2024 1.91                       (5,653.92)                (9,262.83)          (14,914.84)    
Cash flows 0.15                        2,590.28                  (1,303.33)          1,287.10        
Net debt as on 31 March 2025 2.06                       (3,063.64)                (10,566.16)        (13,627.74)    

Current borrowings

The company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans. The
company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other
conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a
diversified portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the company to
manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels.

(i) The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars
Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the company in accordance with the company’s policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made as per the approved investment policy. Investment limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss if any.

The company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Non-current borrowings
Net Debt



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

5.14 Capital management

5.15 Expenditure on CSR Activities

2024-25 2023-24
27.32                            22.69                  

27.52                            22.69                     

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset -                                    -                             
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 27.52                            22.69                     

(0.20)                            -                             
-                                    -                             

(e) Related party transaction -                                    -                             
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Details of CSR Activities of FY 2024-25
Nature of CSR Activities

Details of Expenditure:
The above expenditure of CSR was paid to an implementing agency "Saath Charitable trust".

1. Training programme for women for livelihood enhancement and distribution of kits.
2. RO plant setup at public places / panchayat office in the villages, Creating awareness about health and hygiene through wall paintings, 
Distribution of sport equipment's, etc.
3. STEM Lab Setup in Schools, DIY Kits for Saath STEM Classes, benches & tables for students and teachers etc.

Particulars
(a) Amount required to be spent by the company
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred (Nature of CSR 
activities)

(c) Shortfall / (Surplus) at the end of the year
(d) Total of previous year shortfall / (Surplus)

(f) Provision if any

There are no CSR transaction with Related Party.

For the purpose of the company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the company. The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current year ended 31 March 2025 in comparison to the
previous year ended 31 March 2024.

As per provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company was required to spend ₹ 27.32 Lakhs (31 March 2024: ₹22.69 Lakhs) being 2% of
average net profits made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy on the
activities specified on Schedule VII of the Act, which has been provided for in the books.
The Company has spent ₹27.52  Lakhs (31 March 2024: ₹ 22.69 Lakhs) towards activities in line with its CSR policy.
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5.16   Statement of registration and satisfaction of charges :

The Company has not created or satisfied any registration or satisfaction of charge as on 31 March 2024.

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

As at the reporting date, non of the charges or satisfaction of charges or yet to registered with ROC beyond the statutory time limit.



5.17 Details of Benami 
Properties :

Name of the Struck off 
Company

Nature of Transactions 
with Struck off Company

Relationship with the 
struck off company, if 
any

Balance O/s as on 
31st Mar 25

Balance O/s as on 
31st Mar 24

EXCELSERV INDIA PRIVATE 
LIMITED

Accounts Receivable Not Related 0.00 0.00

FEDROL ELECTRIC PRIVATE 
LIMITED

Accounts Receivable Not Related 0.00 0.00

GATRAD KNOWLEDGE CENTRE 
PVTLTD

Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

NAGPAL CARGO MOVERS Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

OM SAI CARS INDIA (P) LTD Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

BENGAL CITY NIRMAN 
PRIVATE LIMITED

Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

USHA NETCOPVT LTD Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00

5.20
Compliance with 
number of layers of 
Companies :

5.21
Compliance with 
approved scheme of 
Arrangements :

La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Company does not hold any Benami properties. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made
thereunder.

a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th August 2024 approved the acceptance of the buyback
offer. Further, the Joint Venture termination agreement was executed on 28th September 2024 and post execution of the
said agreement, 21,71,494 (32.12%) equity shares held by the Company in ESVA were sold to Mr. V Baranitharan and Ms. C.
Shanthi, the Promoters of ESVA.

During FY 2023-24, La-Gajjar Machineries Private Limited (LGM/Transferee Company) and Optiqua Pipes and Electricals
Private Limited (OPEPL/Transferor Company) have approved the draft scheme of arrangement in their respective meetings
of Board, Shareholders and Creditors. This scheme has been further approved by the Regional Director, Ahmedabad (North
Western Region) on 22nd March 2024. OEPEL and LGM has filed the order copy issued by Regional Director, Ahmedabad
(North Western Region) with Ministry of Corporate Affairs / Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat on 26th March
2024 which is the effective date of said Scheme. Pursuant to the approval of Scheme of Amalgamation, OPEPL amalgamated
with LGM and accordingly, OPEPL ceased to be the wholly owned subsidiary of LGM. 

Further ESVA Pumps India Private Limited (ESVA) is a Joint Venture (JV) formed on 4th October 2021 between Mr. V
Bharanitharan (25.5%), Mrs. C Shanthi (25.5%) and Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited (49%). Consequent to the
aforesaid Scheme, OPEPL’s interest of 49% in ESVA is transferred to LGM.

During FY 2023-24, two entities La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd (LGM) and Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited
(OPEPL) (both under common control of KOEL) wherein OPEPL got amalgamated into LGM as per the scheme of
amalgamation, the transferee Company (LGM) post merger has restated the comparative figures in the financial statements
as required under Appendix C of IND AS 103 and as stated in the accounting policy.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

End use of Funds :

(Amount in Lakhs)

5.18

Details of struck off 
companies :

5.19

Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956,below are the details of balances as of 31 March 2025 with Struck off companies
which pertain to transaction of previous years.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements

5.22 Undisclosed income :

5.23
Details of Crypto 
Currency or Virtual 
currency :

5.24
loans to promoters, 
directors, KMPs and 
the related parties:

The Company has not granted any loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies 
Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:
(a) repayable on demand; or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

There are no transactions that has been not recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

There are no any transaction/holding of crypto or virtual currency.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 5.25: Disclosure of Ratios

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Ratio Ratio

 Current Ratio                 Current Assets Current Liability
The current ratio indicates Company’s overall 
liquidity position 1.44 1.20 20.0%

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt
Shareholder's 
Equity

Debt-to-equity ratio compares Company’s total 
debt to shareholders equity 1.28 1.46 -12.1%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt 
service Debt service

Debt Service coverage ratio is used to analyse the 
Company's ability to payoff current interest and 
instalments 1.15 1.41 -18.9%

Return on Equity Ratio Net profits after taxes - 
Preference Dividend(if any)

Average 
Shareholder's 
Equity

It measures the profitability of equity funds 
invested in the Company 4.5% 26.7% -83.0% Reduction in profit after tax as compared to previous year.

Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold or sales Average Inventory
This ratio measures the efficiency with which a 
Company utilizes or manages its inventory 3.66 3.71 -1.5%

Trade Receivables turnover ratio Net credit Sales Average accounts 
Receivable

This ratio measures the efficiency at which the firm 
is managing the receivables 7.29 7.76 -6.1%

Trade Payables turnover ratio Net credit Purchases Average trade 
Payable

This ratio indicates the number of times sundry 
creditors have been paid during a period 5.48 5.26 4.2%

Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales Working Capital
This ratio indicates a company's effectiveness in 
using its working capital 9.70 15.88                          -38.9%

Reduction in sales and increase in net working capital as 
compared to previous year.

Net profit ratio Net Profit 
Net Profit/Net 
Sales

This ratio measures the relationship between net 
profit and sales of the business 1.0% 4.5% -78.6% Reduction in profit after tax compared to previous year.

Return on Capital employed Earning before Interest & 
Tax (PBIT)

Capital Employed

Return on capital employed indicates the ability of 
a company’s management to generate returns for 
both the debt holders and the equity holders 7.5% 16.4% -8.9%

Ratios Numerator Denominator Description Variance Reason for variance



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Note 37 :  Standards issued but not yet effective :

There are no standard which are isuued but not yet effective.



RAHUL SAHAI AKSHAY SAHNI
Managing Director Director
DIN: 10909570 DIN:00791744
Place- Pune Place-Pune

AKASH SHAH AMRUTA THIGALE
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place-Pune Place-Pune
29-04-2025 29-04-2025

Note 38: Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those of the 
current year.

All amounts disclosed in financial statements and notes are presented in “Rupees Lakhs” and have been rounded off to two decimal places 
as per the requirement of Division II of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

Signatures to Note 1 to 38, forming part of the Financial Statements.
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars Note  As at  As at 

No.  31 March 2025  31 March 2024 
ASSETS

I. Non-current assets 17,093.08 14,340.84 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 12,103.82 1,871.74 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1 34.32 5,330.08 
(c) Right-of-use assets 1b 3,811.58 3,575.43 
(d) Goodwill 2 253.64 253.64 
(e) Other Intangible assets 2 114.39 241.39 
(f) Intangible assets under development 2 78.17 31.74 
(g)  Financial assets

(i) Investments 35.5.16 - 568.88 
(ii)  Other financial assets 3 381.17 1,562.06 

(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 89.20 123.78 
(i) Income tax assets (net) 5 185.04 - 
(j) Other non-current assets 6 41.75 782.10 

II.Current assets 16,586.69 20,225.05 
(a) Inventories 7 6,537.53 10,410.38 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 8 6,985.92 6,558.92 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9a 2.06 1.91 
(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 9b 1,226.81 341.81 
(iv) Other financial assets 10 348.38 862.56 

(c) Other current assets 11 1,485.99 2,049.47 
III. Asset classified as held for sale 12 - 2,088.37 
Total Assets 33,679.77 36,654.26 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity 10,608.57 10,306.43 
 (a) Equity share capital 13 107.60 107.60 
 (b) Other equity

Capital redemption reserve 14 139.00 139.00 
Securities premium 14 678.40 678.40 
General reserve 14 411.21 411.21 
Retained earnings 14 9,272.36 8,970.22 

Liabilities 
I. Non-current liabilities 11,573.09 9,522.95 

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 10,566.16 9,262.83 

(ii) Lease liabilities 16 474.33 - 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 27.11 24.45 
(b) Provisions 18 505.49 235.67 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

II.Current liabilities 11,498.11 16,824.88 
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 19 3,063.64 5,653.92 
(ii) Trade and other payables 20
a) total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

3,001.64 4,989.60 

b) total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

1,492.59 1,827.54 

(iii) Lease liabilities 21 75.89 242.41 
(iv) Other financial liabilities 22 1,186.75 1,175.50 

(b) Other current liabilities 23 391.73 546.44 
(c) Provisions 24 2,285.87 2,389.47 

Total Equity and Liabilities 33,679.77 36,654.26 
Material accounting policies 35
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars Note No. 2024-25 2023-24
Income
Revenue from operations 25 50,690.33   55,294.05         
Other income 26 785.04         420.05 

Total Income 51,475.37   55,714.10        

Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 27 25,240.76   31,935.27         
Purchase of traded goods 28 3,382.88     3,215.76           
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 
traded goods

29 2,372.23     (2,373.26)         

Employee benefits expense 30 3,816.14     3,812.35           
Finance costs 31 1,255.10     765.72 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 1,235.05     980.74 
Other Expenses 33 13,766.48   14,077.75         

Total Expenses 51,068.64   52,414.33        

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 406.73        3,299.77          

Share of profit from joint ventures (net of tax) 28.55           130.09 

Profit/(loss) before tax 435.28        3,429.86           

Tax expense 63.06          960.03 
Current tax 34 - 925.24 
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years 34 4.96            - 
Deferred tax 34 58.10          34.79 

Profit/(loss) for the year 372.22        2,469.83          

Other comprehensive income

A. Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods: (70.08)         (33.26) 
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (93.50)         (46.47) 

Income tax effect on above 23.53          11.70 
Share of Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit 
plans from joint ventures (net of tax)

(0.11)           1.51 

(70.08)         (33.26) 

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax [A] (70.08)         (33.26) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 302.14        2,436.57          

Earnings per equity share [nominal value per share ₹ 10/- (31 
March 2024: ₹ 10/- )]
Basic 34.59          229.54 
Diluted 34.59          229.54 
Material accounting policies 35
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors

RAHUL SAHAI AKSHAY SAHNI
Managing Director Director
DIN: 10909570 DIN:00791744
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 435.28                     3,429.86           
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Add:
Depreciation and Amortisation 1,235.05                  980.74               
Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off 0.69                          0.70                   
Inventories written down 104.46                     123.02               
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 82.47                       130.74               
(Profit) / Loss on Revalorisation on Exports 41.62                       (12.60)                
Finance cost 1,255.10                  765.72               
Provisions for share based payments (ESOP's) 23.61                       6.50                   

2,743.00                 1,994.82           
Less :
Profit / ( Loss ) on sale of investment 62.86                       -                     
Net Gain/(loss) on lease modifications 6.61                          20.00                 
Unwinding of interest on deposits 53.17                       98.40                 
Loss / ( Profit ) on Revalorisation on Imports 0.42                          0.06                   
Surplus on sale of assets 398.15                     68.46                 
Interest received (Finance income) 32.13                       21.62                 
Sundry Credit Balances Appropriated 10.63                       2.99                   
Provisions no longer required written back 47.86                       16.19                 
Share of profit from joint ventures 28.55                       128.31               

640.38                     356.03               
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,537.90                 5,068.65           

Working Capital Adjustments
(Increase) / Decrease  in Trade and Other Receivables 874.27                     (245.52)              
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 3,768.39                  (3,296.53)          
Increase / ( Decrease ) in Trade and other Payables (2,273.58)                1,272.73           
Increase / ( Decrease ) in Provisions 278.87                     520.82               

2,647.95                 (1,748.50)          
Net Cash generated from operations 5,185.85 3,320.15 

Direct taxes paid (348.29)                   (818.42)             

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4,837.56 2,501.73 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Add :
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 2,694.79                  1,522.30           
Proceeds from Sale of investments ( Net ) 660.16                     -                     
Interest & dividend received (Finance income) 3.69                          55.86                 

3,358.64                 1,578.16           
Less :
Investment in subsidiary/Joint Venture -                            1.78                   
Payments for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 5,394.16                  6,239.28           

5,394.16                 6,241.06           

NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,035.52) (4,662.90) 



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bill discounting & borrowings 3,261.67 5,393.68           
Repayment of Lease Liability (302.81) (455.82)              
Interest paid (finance cost) (1,212.13) (526.09)              
Repayment of borrowing (4,548.62) (2,252.40)          

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY (2,801.89) 2,159.37

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 0.15 (1.80)

Opening Cash and Cash equivalents 1.91 3.71 
Closing Cash and Cash equivalents (Refer Note 9a) 2.06 1.91 

As per our attached report of  even date.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital (Note 13)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of Shares Amount
As At 1 April 2023 10,76,000 107.60 
Issue/Reduction, if any during the year - - 
As At 31 March 2024 10,76,000 107.60 
Issue/Reduction, if any during the year - - 
As At 31 March 2025 10,76,000 107.60 

B. Other Equity (Note 14)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

 Securities 
Premium 

 General Reserve  Retained Earnings 

As At 1 April 2023 139.00 678.40 411.21 6,533.65 7,762.26 
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - 2,469.83 2,469.83 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (33.26) (33.26) 
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - - 2,436.57 2,436.57 
Expenses Incurred on Issuance of Equity Shares - - - - - 

As At 31 March 2024 139.00 678.40 411.21 8,970.22 10,198.83 

As At 1 April 2024 139.00 678.40 411.21 8,970.22 10,198.83 
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - 372.22 372.22 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - (70.08) (70.08) 
Total Comprehensive income for the year - - - 302.14 302.14 
Expenses Incurred on Issuance of Equity Shares - - - - - 

As At 31 March 2025 139.00 678.40 411.21 9,272.36 10,500.97 

Material accounting policies 35
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the board of directors
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La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 : Property, Plant and equipment ₹ in Lakhs
Particulars Leasehold 

Improvement
Buildings Plant & 

Equipment
Furniture & 

Fixture
Vehicles Office Equipment Computers Electrical 

Installation
Total               Capital Work-in-

Process
Gross Block
As At 1 April 2023 373.65                    -                               3,534.83                 175.25                    52.62                      73.58                       372.59                    61.98                         4,644.50                      207.64                      
Additions -                               -                               367.18                    5.01                        -                               13.73                       3.51                        21.04                         410.47                         5,334.58                   
Deductions / Amortization/written off 62.63                       -                               235.11                    -                               22.51                      2.66                         24.23                      1.69                           348.83                         212.14                       
As At 31 March 2024 311.02                    -                               3,666.90                 180.26                    30.11                      84.65                       351.87                    81.33                         4,706.14                      5,330.08                   
Additions 155.01                    8,033.68                 1,231.85                 365.40                    59.90                      432.49                    272.40                    588.12                       11,138.85                    5,843.07                   
Reclassified on account of Adoption of Ind 
AS 116 311.01                    (263.72)                  -                               (2.47)                      -                               (44.82)                     -                               -                                 (0.00)                            -                                 
Deductions / Amortization/written off -                               246.54                    361.77                    54.56                      30.10                      19.52                       39.33                      45.96                         797.78                         11,138.83                 
As At 31 March 2025 155.02                    8,050.86                4,536.98                493.57                   59.91                     542.44                    584.94                   623.49                      15,047.21                   34.32                        
Depreciation
As At 1 April 2023 361.70                    -                               1,969.87                 96.44                      30.11                      58.31                       260.12                    25.36                         2,801.91                      -                                 
For the year 7.91                         -                               192.18                    15.27                      2.32                        7.36                         64.88                      7.84                           297.76                         -                                 
Deductions / Amortization/written off 62.60                       -                               171.68                    -                               3.05                        2.13                         24.15                      1.66                           265.27                         -                                 
As At 31 March 2024 307.01                    -                               1,990.37                 111.71                    29.38                      63.54                       300.85                    31.54                         2,834.40                      -                                 
For the year 10.27                       246.50                    239.63                    55.07                      4.62                        61.92                       83.46                      39.20                         740.67                         -                                 
Reclassified on account of Adoption of Ind A 307.01                    (259.72)                  -                               (2.47)                      -                          (44.82)                     -                               -                                 (0.00)                            -                                 
Deductions / Amortization/written off -                               246.54                    237.12                    42.66                      30.05                      19.39                       39.33                      16.59                         631.68                         -                                 
As At 31 March 2025 10.27                       259.68                    1,992.88                 126.59                    3.95                        150.89                    344.98                    54.15                         2,943.39                      -                                 
Net Block
As At 1 April 2023 11.95                       -                               1,564.96                 78.81                      22.51                      15.27                       112.47                    36.62                         1,842.59                      207.64                      

As At 31 March 2024 4.01                         -                               1,676.53                 68.55                      0.73                        21.11                       51.02                      49.79                         1,871.74                      5,330.08                   

As At 31 March 2025 144.75                    7,791.18                 2,544.10                 366.98                    55.96                      391.55                    239.96                    569.34                      12,103.82                    34.32                         
  

Notes :  
1. For Depreciation, amortisation and security refer accounting policy Note 35.4.3
2. Refer Note - 35.4.11 on policies for Right-of-Use Assets.
3. The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the 



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1a :  Aging analysis of Capital working in progress (CWIP)

CWIP Aging Schedule ₹ in Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress                  34.32                         -                           -                           -                    34.32 
Project : Plant New Consolidation                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery                  34.32                         -                           -                           -                    34.32 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Projects temporarily suspended                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Plant Project Consolidation                         -                           -                           -                           -   -                     
TOTAL AMOUNT 34.32                 -                     -                     -                     34.32                 

CWIP Completion Schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Plant New Consolidation                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery                  34.32                         -                           -                           -                    34.32 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
TOTAL AMOUNT 34.32                 -                     -                     -                     34.32                 

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
To be completed in

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 25



CWIP Aging Schedule ₹ in Lakhs

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress             5,214.36                115.72                         -                           -               5,330.08 
Project : Plant New Consolidation             5,117.75                115.72                         -                           -               5,233.47 

Project : Plant Consolidation - Land                313.84                   40.68                         -                           -                  354.52 
Project : Plant Consolidation - Building             4,388.82                   75.04                         -                           -               4,463.86 
Project : Plant Consolidation - Electric fittings                325.47                         -                           -                           -                  325.47 
Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery                   89.62                         -                           -                           -                     89.62 

Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery                  50.05                         -                           -                           -                    50.05 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer                  46.56                         -                           -                           -                    46.56 
Projects temporarily suspended                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
Plant Project Consolidation                         -                           -                           -                           -                           -   
TOTAL AMOUNT 5,214.36           115.72              -                     -                     5,330.08           

CWIP Completion Schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Plant New Consolidation 5,233.47           -                     -                     -                     5,233.47           
Project : Plant Consolidation - Land                354.52                         -                           -                           -   354.52               
Project : Plant Consolidation - Building             4,463.86                         -                           -                           -   4,463.86           
Project : Plant Consolidation - Electric fittings                325.47                         -                           -                           -   325.47               
Project : Plant Consolidation - Plant Machinery                   89.62                         -                           -                           -   89.62                 

Project : Routine Capex - Plant Machinery                  46.56                         -                           -                           -   46.56                 
Project : Routine Capex - Computer                  50.05                         -                           -                           -   50.05                 
TOTAL AMOUNT 5,330.08           -                     -                     -                     5,330.08           

As at 31 March 2024

CWIP
To be completed in

As at 31 March 2024

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 24



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1b : Right-of-use assets
 ₹ in Lakhs 

particulars Land Building Plant & 
Equipment

Total

As At 1 April 2023 3,181.13                 857.65                        -                        4,038.78              
Addition 156.69                    -                               -                        156.69                 
Deletion -                          75.92                           -                        75.92                   
Amortisation 33.77                      510.35                        -                        544.12                 
As At 31 March 2024 3,304.05                271.38                        -                       3,575.43              

Addition -                          632.34                        -                        632.34                 
Deletion -                          35.56                           -                        35.56                   
Amortisation 33.77                      326.86                        -                        360.63                 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3,270.28                541.30                        -                       3,811.58              



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2  : Other Intangible assets ₹ in Lakhs
Particulars Computer Software Customer 

Relationships
Technical Knowhow

-Acquired
Brands Total                     Goodwill acquired 

under Business 
Combination

Intangible assets 
under development

Gross Block
As At 1 April 2023 646.76                           0.56                                29.64                              42.18                              719.14                           253.64                      -                                 
Additions 21.53                              -                                  -                                  -                                  21.53                              -                            31.98                             
Deductions -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                            0.24                               
As At 31 March 2024 668.29                           0.56                                29.64                              42.18                              740.67                           253.64                      31.74                            
Additions 6.75                                -                                  -                                  -                                  6.75                                -                            53.18                             
Deductions 0.43                                -                                  -                                  -                                  0.43                                -                            6.75                               
As At 31 March 2025 674.61                           0.56                                29.64                              42.18                              746.99                           253.64                      78.17                             
Amortisation
As At 1 April 2023 340.33                           0.22                                11.61                              8.26                                360.42                           -                            -                                 
For The Year 128.60                            0.11                                5.93                                4.22                                138.86                            -                            -                                 
Deductions -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                                  -                            -                                 
As At 31 March 2024 468.93                           0.33                                17.54                              12.48                              499.28                           -                            -                                 
For The Year 123.49                            0.11                                5.93                                4.22                                133.75                            -                            -                                 
Deductions 0.43                                -                                  -                                  -                                  0.43                                -                            -                                 
As At 31 March 2025 591.99                           0.44                                23.47                              16.70                              632.60                           -                            -                                 
Net Block
As At 1 April 2023 306.43                           0.34                                18.03                              33.92                              358.72                           253.64                      -                                 

As At 31 March 2024 199.36                           0.23                                12.10                              29.70                              241.39                           253.64                      31.74                             

As At 31 March 2025 82.62                              0.12                                6.17                                25.48                              114.39                           253.64                      78.17                             

Notes :
1. For Depreciation and amortisation refer  accounting policy Note 35.4.3



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2a :  Aging Analysis of Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in Progress                  46.43                  31.74                          -                          -                  78.17 
Project : Routine Capex - Intangible                  46.43                  31.74                          -                          -                  78.17 

Projects temporarily suspended                          -                          -                          -                          -                          - 
TOTAL AMOUNT                  46.43 31.74                 -                         -                                          78.17 

Intangible assets under development completion schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Routine Capex - Intangible 78.17                 -                         -                         -                         78.17                 
TOTAL AMOUNT 78.17                 -                         -                         -                         78.17                 

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in Progress                  31.74 -                         -                         -                                          31.74 
Project : Routine Capex - Intangible                  31.74                          -                          -                          -                  31.74 

Projects Temporarily Suspended                          -                          -                          -                          -                          - 
TOTAL AMOUNT                  31.74 -                         -                         -                                          31.74 

Intangible assets under development completion schedule

Less Than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More than 3 year Total

Project : Routine Capex - Intangible                  31.74                          -                          -                          -                  31.74 
TOTAL AMOUNT                  31.74 -                         -                         -                                          31.74 

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
To be completed in

As at 31 March 2024

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 24

As at 31 March 2024

CWIP
To be completed in

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 25



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3 : Other financial assets (Non Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 372.80                1,553.56            
Doubtful 29.50                  88.46                 
Less :Loss Allowance for doubtful deposits (29.50)                (88.46)               

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 8.37                    8.50                    
Total 381.17               1,562.06            

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

1. Other financial assets are measured at amortised cost. Refer note 35.5.12
2. Refer Note - 35.5.13 on Risk Management objectives and policies for Financial Instruments.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4 :  Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Deferred Tax Asset 89.20                     156.46                    
Depreciation                  (135.28)                        (5.56)
Deferred tax asset on long term capital loss -                              19.23                       
Loss -current financial year 35.15                     -                               
Disallowances u/s 43 B of Income Tax Act 114.98                   101.28                    
Provision for Doubtful debts & advances 67.36                     31.76                       
ROU Asset Net of Lease Liability and PV of Deposit 4.27                      5.95                        
Others incl Amalgamation Exps. 2.72                       3.80                         

Less : Deferred Tax Liability -                              32.68                      
Undistributed reserves of equity accounted investees -                              32.68                      
Total 89.20                     123.78                    

1. Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net  ₹ in Lakhs 

Opening balance as of 1 April                   123.78                     146.87 
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss                    (58.10)                      (34.79)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI                      23.53                        11.70 
Closing balance as at 31 March                      89.20                     123.78 

2. Tax Losses  ₹ in Lakhs 

Unused tax losses for which no Deferred Tax Assets have been recognised- 
Long Term capital loss on sale of Land

-                        1,470.47                

Potential Tax benefit -                        349.09                   

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2024Particulars As at 31 March 2025

3. The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

4. Deferred tax is measured on temporary differences at the rate of 25.168% (Refer note 34).
5. The unused tax losses were incurred by the company on sale on Land. Which is partially adjusted during the current financial year
against long term capital gain likely to be generated in next financial years. Further deferred tax asset is not created for balance
unused tax losses against which company is not likely to generate taxable income in the foreseeable future. The losses can be carried
forward as per the provisions of Income Tax Act .

6. The deferred tax liability is not recognized by temporary difference between carrying amount and tax base of investments in
subsidiary as the parent company is not able to control the timing of reversal of temporary difference and it is probable that the
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Hence, the group has not recognized any deferred tax liability for taxes on
undistributed profits.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5 :  Income Tax Assets (Net)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Tax paid in advance (net of provision)                        185.04 -                              

Total                        185.04                                 - 

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6 :  Other Non-Current Assets
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Capital advances 41.75                         782.10                      

Total                          41.75                       782.10 

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7 :  Inventories
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Raw materials 2,086.75                   3,660.78                   
Raw materials and components 2,086.75                   3,660.78                   

Work-in-progress 1,855.18                   3,292.70                   
Finished goods 1,991.39                   2,691.11                   
Traded goods 440.91                      675.90                      
Stores and spares 163.30                      89.89                         

Total 6,537.53                   10,410.38                 

2. Refer Note 15 for information on inventory hypothication with bankers for the purpose of Working Capital facilities.

1. Inventories written down to net realisable value during the year ended on 31 March 2025 is Rs. 0.74 Lakhs were
recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the year. (₹ 2.35 Lakhs on 31 March 2024).

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8 :  Trade Receivables
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Total Trade Receivables 6,985.92                   6,558.92                   
Trade receivables [Refer note (1) below] 6,985.92                   6,558.92                   

Break-up for security details: 6,985.92                   6,558.92                   
Unsecured considered good 6,985.92                   6,558.92                   
Doubtful 267.64                      126.20                      
Loss Allowance  (for expected credit loss under simplified 
approach) (267.64)                    (126.20)                    

Total 6,985.92                   6,558.92                   

3. Trade receivables secured by letter of credit are considered as secured.
4. Movement of impairment Allowance (allowance for expected credit loss under simplified approach)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Opening Balance 126.20                      91.21                         
Provided During the year 168.81                      69.82                         
Written off -                            -                            
Provision written back (27.37)                       (34.83)                       
Closing Balance 267.64                      126.20                      

6. The carrying amount of the trade receivables include receivables which are subject to the export sales bill discounting
arrangement. However, where the Company has retained the credit risks, it continues to recognise these assets in entirety in
its Balance sheet, while bills discounted without recourse have been derecognised. The amount repayable under this
arrangement is presented as secured borrowings. 

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

5. Refer Note 35.5.13 on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Company manages and measures credit
quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired.

1. Trade receivables are measured at amortised cost.
2. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any
other person. Trade and other receivable due from firms and private companies respectively in which any director is a
partner, a director or a member as on 31 March, 2025 is ₹ NIL (₹ NIL as on 31 March 2024). Refer Note 35.5.9 for terms and
conditions related to Related party receivables.

Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk: ₹ NIL (₹ NIL in FY 2023-24)
Trade receivable - credit impaired : ₹ NIL (₹ NIL in FY 2023-24)



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8a :  Aging analysis of Trade Receivables

Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 
year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

                    3.64              6,274.01                  557.71                   20.10                 195.92                   19.38                 180.75                  7,251.51 

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                       2.05                         2.05 

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                 3.64           6,274.01               557.71                20.10             195.92                19.38             182.80              7,253.56 

                         -                             -                             -                     14.57                 195.92                   19.36                   37.79                     267.64 

                 3.64           6,274.01               557.71                  5.53                (0.00)                  0.02             145.01              6,985.92 
* Disputed Trade Receivables represents legal cases with customers.

Total

Less: Loss Allowance  (for expected 
credit loss under simplified 
approach)
Net Trade Receivables

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables–considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars
Unbilled 

dues Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
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Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 
year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

                  12.11              5,500.62                  881.82                   75.00                   32.85                   58.56                 122.10                  6,683.06 

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                       2.05                         2.05 

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

                         -                             -                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                                -   

               12.11           5,500.62               881.82                75.00                32.85                58.56             124.15              6,685.12 

                         -                             -                         0.80                   45.70                   36.89                   27.87                   14.93                     126.20 

               12.11           5,500.62               881.01                29.30                -4.04                30.69             109.22              6,558.92 
* Disputed Trade Receivables represents legal cases with customers.

Less: Loss Allowance  (for expected 
credit loss under simplified 
approach)

Net Trade Receivables

Total

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables–considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired

Particulars
Unbilled 

dues Not due
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9a :  Cash and Cash Equivalents
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Balance with Bank
Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 2.06                           1.69                           

Cash on hand -                                 0.22                           

Total 2.06                           1.91                           

Note 9b :  Other Bank Balances

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but 
less than 12 months 1,226.81                   341.81                      

Total 1,226.81                   341.81                      

2. Refer Note 35.5.13 for further details.
1. Fixed Deposits are pledged with the banks as margin money against Letter of Credit / Bank Guarantee.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10 :  Other Financial Assets ( Current )
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Export incentive receivable 170.40                       753.03                       
Other Receivables 177.98                       106.18                       
Mark to Market Derivative Asset -                                  3.35                           
Total 348.38                       862.56                       

1. Other financial assets are measured at amortised cost.

4. Refer Note 35.5.13 for further details

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

2. Others includes interest receivable on FDR and accrued revenue.
3. Other receivables due from private companies in which director of the company is, a director or a member as at 31 March 2025
₹ Nil. (31 March 2024 : ₹ NIL)



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11 :  Other Current Assets
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Advance to suppliers 140.56                60.72                   
Sales tax / VAT / GST receivable 1,158.67             1,805.30             
Prepaid expenses 139.63                150.96                
Others 47.13                   32.49                   

Total 1,485.99             2,049.47             

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 12 :  Asset Classifed as Held for Sale
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Land -                                   2,088.37             

Total -                                   2,088.37             

1. The Company has identified Land at Bavla acquired for the purpose of consolidation of existing manufacturing set
up however later the Company has decided otherwise and acquired new land for setting up plant at Sanand GIDC,
hence Bavla land was classified as held for sale. During the year the Company has completely disposed off the said
land at Bavla.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13 :  Share capital

Authorised equity share capital (Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As At 1 April 2023 52,40,000                          524.00                                
Increase/(decrease) during the year 90,00,000                          900.00                                
As At 31 March 2024 1,42,40,000                       1,424.00                            
Increase/(decrease) during the year -                                      -                                      
As At 31 March 2025 1,42,40,000                       1,424.00                            

As At 1 April 2023 10,76,000                          107.60                                
Changes during the year -                                      -                                            
As At 31 March 2024 10,76,000                          107.60                                
Changes during the year -                                      -                                            
As At 31 March 2025 10,76,000                          107.60                                

Particulars As At 31 March 2025 As At 31 March 2024
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.

                           10,75,999                            10,75,999 
                                 107.60                                  107.60 

Equity share holding (%) 100.00% 100.00%

Particulars Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.

As At 31 March 2024
      No. of Shares 10,75,999                          
      % of Shareholding 100.00%
As At 31 March 2025
      No. of Shares                            10,75,999 
      % of Shareholding 100.00%

 ₹ in Lakhs 

No. of Equity shares of ₹ 10 each
Face value of Equity share holding (₹ in Lakhs)

 Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares

Issued, subscribed and  fully paid up equity share capital
(Shares of ₹ 10 each)

Particulars No. of shares

1. The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10/- each. Each equity shareholder is entitled to one vote 
per share and has a right to receive dividend as recommended by Board of Directors subject to the necessary approval from the 
shareholders.
2. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders.
3. Shares held by holding company 

*One equity share is in the name of individual. However beneficial interest vest with body corporate. Hence not incorporated 
separately.

4. Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Company



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
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Note 13a :  Shareholding of Promotors

S. No Promoter Name No. of 
Shares held

% 
Change 
during 
the year

% of total 
shares Promoter Name No. of 

Shares held

% 
Change 
during 
the year

% of total 
shares

1 Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.    10,75,999 0.00% 100.00% Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.    10,75,999 0.00% 100.00%
Total 10,75,999   100.00% 10,75,999   100.00%

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

One equity share is in the name of individual. However beneficial interest vest with body corporate. Hence not incorporated separately.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
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Note 14 :  Other Equity
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars

CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE 139.00                        139.00                         
Opening Balance 139.00                        139.00                         
Add : Transferred during the year -                               -                               

SECURITIES PREMIUM 678.40                        678.40                         
Opening Balance 678.40                        678.40                         
Add : Transferred during the year -                               -                               

GENERAL RESERVE 411.21                        411.21                         
Opening Balance 411.21                        411.21                         
Add : Transferred from Retained earnings -                               -                               

RETAINED EARNINGS 9,272.36                    8,970.22                     
Opening Balance 8,970.22                     6,533.65                      
Add : Profit for the year 372.22                        2,469.83                      
Add : Other Comprehensive income / (Loss) (70.08)                         (33.26)                          

302.14                        2,436.57                     

Total 10,500.97                  10,198.83                   

Other reserves

Particulars

Capital redemption reserve 139.00                         139.00                          
General reserve 411.21                         411.21                          
Securities Premium 678.40                         678.40                          
Retained Earnings 9,272.36                                           8,970.22 
Total other reserves 10,500.97                   10,198.83                    

3. General reserve is created by setting aside amount from the Retained Earnings of the company for general purposes which is
freely available for distribution.

1. The Capital Redemption Reserve is created for redemption of preference shares as per statutory requirement.
2. Securities premium is received against the issuance of Equity Shares and can be utilised in accordance with provisions of
Companies Act, 2013.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
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Note 15 :  Borrowings (Non-current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Secured loans from bank 6,566.16               4,412.83               
Term loans 6,566.16               4,412.83               

Unsecured 4,000.00               4,850.00               
8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares -                        850.00                  
8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares 4,000.00               4,000.00               
Total 10,566.16            9,262.83               

Period
                           -                              -   
               1,108.33                            -   
               3,800.00                1,401.74 
               2,766.16                1,765.15 

More than Five Years                            -                  1,245.94 

2. Term Loans from Banks

1. Loans are measured at amortised cost.

(i) The term Loans availed from Federal Bank and Axis Bank are secured by a First Pari Passu charge by way of
Hypothecation of Plant & Machinery and other assets and second charge on entire current assets of the
company. Further Term Loans from Federal Bank and Axis Bank are secured by way of creation of Equitable
Mortgage on Land, Building, Plant & Machinery and other assets at the new plant at Sanand to the extent
applicable.

(ii) Working Capital Term Loan of ₹ 1400 Lakhs to be repaid in 60 monthly instalments of ₹ 23.33 Lakhs each
starting from May 2018. Accordingly, a total ₹ 23.33 Lakhs have been repaid in the year 2023-24 and the loan
is totally repaid as on April 23.

(iii) Sanctioned Term Loan of ₹ 4750 Lakhs from Axis Bank and drawn till 31-03-2025 to the extent of
4110.30 Lakhs to be repaid in 60 monthly instalments of ₹ 79.17 Lakhs each starting from August 2025 at
rate of interest 8.15%. The Loan carries a moratorium period of 24 months starting from 1st disbursement
done in August 23.

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Maturity profile of Term Loans from Banks (Current and Non-Current)

(iv) Sanctioned Term Loan of ₹ 4750 Lakhs from Federal Bank and drawn till 31-03-2024 to the extent of
3564.39 Lakhs to be repaid in 60 monthly instalments of ₹ 79.17 Lakhs each starting from October 2025 at
rate of interest 8.05%. The Loan carries a moratorium period of 24 months starting from 1st disbursement
done in September 23.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Upto Three Months
More than Three Months Up to One Year
More than One Year Up to Three Years
More than Three Years Up to Five Years

6. 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

3. Borrowings from banks have been utilized for the specific purpose for which it were taken.

4. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank.
5. There has been no  default in repayment of interest and principal amount for year ended 31 March 2025 
and 31 March 2024.

The Company has issued 85,00,000 preference shares at the face value of ₹ 10 in the month of March'21 at
the rate of 8% which are redeemable at the end of the term of 60 months from the date of issue. (Refer Note
35.4.8)

7. 8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
The Company has issued 4,00,00,000 preference shares at the face value of ₹ 10 in the month of February'23
at the rate of 8.25% which are redeemable at the end of the term of 84 months from the date of issue. (Refer
Note 35.4.8)

The procedural compliances related to Preference shares issue was completed on 27 April 2021.



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Period
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.                4,850.00                4,850.00 
Interest on Preference Shares                    398.00                    398.00 
Total                5,248.00                5,248.00 

Period
                           -                              -   
                   850.00                            -   
                           -                      850.00 
                           -                              -   

Period
                           -                              -   
                           -                              -   
                           -                              -   
               4,000.00                            -   
                           -                  4,000.00 

Particulars
Authorised 8.25% cumulative redeemable
preference shares capital (Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As At 1 April 2023      4,00,00,000.00                4,000.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                            -                              -   
As At 31 March 2024      4,00,00,000.00                4,000.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                            -                              -   
As At 31 March 2025     4,00,00,000.00                4,000.00 
Authorised 8% cumulative redeemable preference
shares capital (Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As At 1 April 2023         85,00,000.00                    850.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                            -                              -   
As At 31 March 2024         85,00,000.00                    850.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                            -                              -   
As At 31 March 2025         85,00,000.00                    850.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 8.25%
cumulative redeemable preference shares capital
(Shares of ₹ 10 each)
As At 1 April 2023           4,00,00,000                4,000.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                              -                              - 
As At 31 March 2024           4,00,00,000                4,000.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                              -                              - 
As At 31 March 2025           4,00,00,000                4,000.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 8% cumulative
redeemable preference shares capital (Shares of ₹
10 each)
As At 1 April 2023         85,00,000.00                    850.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                            -                              -   
As At 31 March 2024         85,00,000.00                    850.00 
Increase/(decrease) during the year                            -                              -   
As At 31 March 2025         85,00,000.00                    850.00 

More than One Year Up to Three Years
More than Three Years Up to Five Years
More than Five Years

Maturity profile of 8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (Current and Non-Current)
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Upto Three Months
More than Three Months Up to One Year

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Upto Three Months
More than Three Months Up to One Year

No. of shares ₹ in Lakhs

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

The break-up of the company's Preference share capital is as follows

Terms : Unsecured Preference shares to Related Party

More than One Year Up to Three Years
More than Three Years Up to Five Years

Maturity profile of 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (Current and Non-Current)



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
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Particulars
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.
      No. of Shares      4,00,00,000.00      4,00,00,000.00 
      % of Shareholding 100.0% 100.0%

Particulars
Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd.
      No. of Shares         85,00,000.00         85,00,000.00 
      % of Shareholding 100.0% 100.0%

Number of 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% 
Shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Number of 8.25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 
5% Shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
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Note 16 :  Lease liabilities  (Non-Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Lease liabilities                       474.33                                  - 

Total 474.33                      -                                 

1. Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

3. Also refer Note 35.4.11.

2. For explanations on the Company's Interest risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer to
Note 35.5.13

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 17 :  Other financial liabilities ( Non Current )
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Deposits/ Retentions from customers and others 27.11                   24.45                       

Total 27.11                   24.45                       

1. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
2. For explanations on the company's Interest risk, Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer
Note 35.5.13

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 18 :  Provisions (Non Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits                    197.55                        86.96 
Provision for gratuity                    197.55                        86.96 

Other provisions                    307.94                      148.71 
Provision for warranty                    307.94                      148.71 

Total 505.49                   235.67                     

1. Refer Note 24 Provisions (current).

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
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Note 19 :  Borrowings
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Secured loans from bank
Working capital demand loans 3,000.00                   4,710.83                   
Cash credit (1,894.69)                 (128.66)                    
Current maturities of Non-Current Borrowings
Long term loans - Secured 1,108.33                   
8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - Unsecured 850.00                      
Unsecured loans from Related Party
Inter-Corporate Loan - KOEL -                                 1,071.75                   
Total 3,063.64                   5,653.92                   

10. The subsidiary company (which merged with the company in FY 24) has also availed Inter-Corporate Loan from its holding
company - Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited (KOEL) of Rs. 800 Lakhs (for the business purpose including re-payment of working
capital term loan availed from ICICI Bank) repayable on demand with 30 days prior notice from KOEL not exceeding 5 years at
Rate of Interest 10.25% which is fully repaid in FY 25.

9. The company has availed Inter-Corporate Loan from its holding company - Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited (KOEL) of Rs. 2185
crores (for the business purpose including re-payment of working capital term loan availed from ICICI Bank) repayable on
demand with 30 days prior notice from KOEL not exceeding 3 years at Rate of Interest 8.725%. In FY 24 out of 2185 Lakhs of
loan, 1913.25 Lakhs has been repaid and balance amount of 271.75 Lakhs repaid in FY 25.

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

1. Borrowings are measured at amortised cost.

3. The unutilised portion of the company's Cash Credit Limit is ₹ 11394.69 Lakhs (₹ 4933.22 Lakhs  in FY 2023-2024).

4. For explanations on the company's Interest risk, Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer Note
35.5.13.

2. Company's fund and non fund based working capital facilities of ₹ 16427 Lakhs are secured by first charge by way of
hypothecation on the whole of the current assets of the Company both present and future and also the second charge on the
whole of the movable Plant and machinery and other fixed assets of the Company in favour of the consortium of banks
(Federal Consortium) comprising of The Federal Bank Limited - Ahmedabad (Lead Bank), ICICI Bank Limited - Ahmedabad, Yes
Bank Limited - Pune and HDFC Bank Limited - Ahmedabad.

5. Borrowings from banks have been utilized for the specific purpose for which it were taken.

6. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank.

7. Working Capital demand loan is sublimit of cash credit.

8. There has been no default in repayment of interest and principal amount for year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March
2024.
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Note 19a : Reconciliation of quarterly statement submitted to banks :
For the year ended 31 March 2025
Quarter Name of the bank Particulars of 

securities provided
Amount as per 
statement 
submitted to 
Bank/FI

Amount as per 
Financials

Difference Reason for Difference

Inventory 12,544.79                12,544.79            -                        
Receivables 7,668.55                   7,668.55              -                        
Payables 7,364.76                   7,364.76              -                        
Inventory 9,603.79                   9,603.79              -                        
Receivables 6,223.14                   6,223.14               -                        
Payables 2,951.73                   2,951.73              -                        
Inventory 9,142.22                   9,142.22              -                        
Receivables 4,386.57                   4,386.57              -                        
Payables 5,245.22                   5,245.22              -                        
Inventory 6,537.53              
Receivables 6,985.92              
Payables 4,494.23              

For the year ended 31 March 2024
Quarter Name of the bank Particulars of 

securities provided
Amount as per 
statement 
submitted to 
Bank/FI

Amount as per 
Financials

Difference Reason for Difference

Inventory 6,675.59                   6,675.59              -                        
Receivables 9,548.91                   9,548.91              -                        
Payables 4,075.48                   4,075.48              -                        
Inventory 7,666.64                   7,666.64              -                        
Receivables 9,693.08                   9,693.08              -                        
Payables 3,422.81                   3,422.81              -                        
Inventory 7,237.30                   7,237.30              -                        
Receivables 8,143.38                   8,143.38              -                        
Payables 3,596.94                   3,596.94              -                        
Inventory 10,410.38                10,410.38            -                        
Receivables 6,558.92                   6,558.92              -                        
Payables 6,817.14                   6,817.14              -                        

 Not yet submitted NA

Jun-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Sep-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Dec-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Mar-25 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Sep-23 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Dec-23 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Mar-24 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank

Jun-23 Federal/HDFC/ICICI
/Yes Bank
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Note 20 :  Trade and Other Payables
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Due to micro and small enterprises 3,001.64                   4,989.60                   
Due to other than micro and small enterprises 1,492.59                   1,827.54                   

Total 4,494.23                   6,817.14                   

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

1. Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost.
2. Due to Mico, Small and Medium Entrprises includes provision for Interest to MSME of ₹ 235.77 Lakhs (₹ 235.77 Lakhs in FY
2023-24).
3. For terms and conditions with related parties, refer Note 35.5.9
4. For explanations on Company's Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processses, refer Note 35.5.13
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Note 20a :  Aging analysis of Trade Payables

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

                 70.37            2,676.08               14.36             5.06              0.09             235.68            3,001.64 

               363.35                982.05             128.15           19.04                    -                  0.00            1,492.59 

                         -                          -                        -                   -                    -                        -                          - 

                         -                          -                        -                   -                    -                        -                          - 

                         -                          -                        -                   -                    -                        -                          - 

               433.72            3,658.13             142.51           24.10              0.09             235.68            4,494.23 

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years

                 21.06            4,698.99               34.29             0.09            10.36             224.81            4,989.60 

               285.14            1,168.95             262.95         110.50                    -                        -            1,827.54 

                         -                          -                        -                   -                    -                        -                          - 

                         -                          -                        -                   -                    -                        -                          - 

                         -                          -                        -                   -                    -                        -                          - 

               306.20            5,867.94             297.24         110.59            10.36             224.81            6,817.14 

Micro and Small Enterprises 
("MSME")

Unbilled dues

Total

Others

Disputed dues – Micro and Small 
Enterprises ("MSME")

Disputed dues - Others

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Unbilled dues Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment Total

Disputed dues - Others

Unbilled dues

Total

Micro and Small Enterprises 
("MSME")

Others

Disputed dues – Micro and Small 
Enterprises ("MSME")

As at 31 March 2025

Particulars Unbilled dues Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment Total
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Note 21 :  Lease liabilities (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Lease liabilities                          75.89                       242.41 

Total 75.89                         242.41                      

1. Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

3. Also refer Note 35.4.11.

2. For explanations on the Company's Interest risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processes, refer to
Note 35.5.13

Particulars
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 22 :  Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Interest Accrued but Not Due 398.00                      398.01                      
Payable for capital purchases 149.37                      352.04                      
Retention Money 239.17                      -                                 
Employee benefits payable 247.04                      311.91                      
Mark to Market Derivative Liability 2.08                          -                                 
Other Payables 151.09                      113.54                      

Total 1,186.75                  1,175.50                   

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

4. Payable for capital purchase includes MSME creditors to the extent they are of capital nature amounting Rs. 132.35 
Lakhs (Rs. 77.11 lakhs in FY 23-24).

3. For explanations on Company's Foreign currency risk and liquidity risk management processses, refer Note 35.5.13

2.Interest accrued but not due include dividend payable on 8% redeemable preference shares & 8.25% redeemable
preference shares recognised as Borrowing.

1. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
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Note 23 :  Other Current Liabilities (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Advance from customers 251.34                      106.96                      
Advance against asset held for sale -                                 321.87                      
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 140.39                      117.61                      

Total 391.73                      546.44                      

1. For explanations on Company's Revenue Recognition policies, refer Note 35.4.18

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
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Note 24 :  Provisions (Current)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits 299.25                       305.00                       
Provision for gratuity 110.47                       114.39                       
Provision for compensated absence 188.78                       190.61                       

Others 1,986.62                   2,084.47                   
Provision for warranty 1,986.62                   1,926.18                   
Tax provision (Net of tax paid in advance) -                                  158.29                       
Total 2,285.87                   2,389.47                   

Particulars ₹ in Lakhs
As at 31 March 2024                    2,074.89 
Arising during the year (Net)                    1,654.44 
Utilised 1,434.77                   
As at 31 March 2025                    2,294.56 

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current 1,986.62                   1,926.18                   
Non-current 307.94                      148.71                      
Total 2,294.56                  2,074.89                  

Particulars As at 31 March 2024As at 31 March 2025

1. Employee benefits obligations
a. Gratuity
The Company provides gratuity for employees as per the Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity is payable on retirement or termination whichever is
earlier.The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The gratuity
plan is a funded plan. Refer Note 35.5.6

b. Breakup of Warranty Provisions

Warranty is given to customers at the time of sale of Pumps, Motors and Pumpsets manufactured. Warranty cost includes
expenses in connection with repairs, free replacement of parts and after sales services during warranty period.

Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of
reporting period. It is expected that majority of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year and balance will be
incurred in following years. Management estimates the provision based on historical warranty claim information and any
recent trends that may suggest future claims could differ from historical amounts.

b. Compensated absences
The leave obligation cover the Company's liability for earned leaves which is expected to be paid-off in next 12 months.

2. Other Provisions
a. Warranty
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Note 25 :  Revenue from Operations
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Sales and services                  49,343.73                  54,003.43 
Sale of products (Refer Note 35.4.18)                  49,343.73                  54,003.43 

Other operating income                    1,346.60                    1,290.62 
Sale of scrap                       888.92                       831.11 
Export incentives (Refer Note 35.5.4)                       398.58                       436.96 
Sundry credit balances written back                         10.63                            2.99 
Provisions no longer required written back                         47.86                         16.18 
Miscellaneous receipts                            0.61                            3.38 

Total 50,690.33                 55,294.05                 

1. For explanations on Company's Revenue Recognition policies, refer Note 35.4.18
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Note 26 :  Other Income

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Interest on income Tax and Sales Tax Refund -                                 3.50                           
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 
      (i)   Bank Deposits 32.13                        18.11                        
     (ii)  Unwinding of interest on security deposits 53.17                        98.40                        
     (iii)  other financial assets 39.49                        77.13                        
Gain on Sale of Investment 62.86                        -                                 
Net Gain/(loss) on lease modifications 6.61                           20.00                        
Net Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant & Equipment 398.15                      68.45                        
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of assets and liabilities -                                 43.62                        
Miscellaneous income 192.63                      90.84                        

Total 785.04                      420.05                      
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Note 27 :  Cost of raw materials and components consumed
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Raw materials and components consumed 25,240.76              31,935.27          

Total 25,240.76              31,935.27          

Particulars
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Note 28 :  Purchases of Traded Goods
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Monoblock 2,216.47                2,690.76           

Others 1,166.41                525.00               

Total 3,382.88                3,215.76           

Particulars
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Note 29 :  Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Opening inventory 6,659.71                   4,286.45                   
Work-in-process 3,292.70                   1,698.68                   
Finished goods 2,691.11                   1,764.73                   
Traded goods 675.90                      823.04                      

Closing Inventory 4,287.48                   6,659.71                   
Work-in-process 1,855.18                   3,292.70                   
Finished goods 1,991.39                   2,691.11                   
Traded goods 440.91                      675.90                      

(Increase)/decrease in inventory 2,372.23                  (2,373.26)                 

Total                    2,372.23                  (2,373.26)

Particulars
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Note 30 :  Employee Benefits Expense
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Salaries, wages, bonus, commission, etc. 3,249.98                   3,320.37                   
Gratuity (Refer Note 35.5.6) 69.34                        56.54                        
Contribution to provident and other funds 176.64                      170.41                      
Welfare and training expenses 285.69                      247.88                      
Provident and other funds' expenses 10.88                        10.65                        
Share Based Payment to employees 23.61                        6.50                           
Total                    3,816.14                    3,812.35 

Particulars
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Note 31 :  Finance Costs
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Interest & discounting charges 1,169.79                   683.89                      
Interest on Lease Liability 42.97                        38.99                        
Other Finance cost 42.34                        42.84                        

Total 1,255.10                   765.72                      

Particulars
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Note 32 :  Depreciation and Amortization Expense
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,235.05                   980.74                      
Depreciation on Tangible & ROU Asset 1,101.30                   841.88                      
Amortization on Intangible assets 133.75                      138.86                      

Total 1,235.05                   980.74                      

Particulars
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Note 33 :  Other Expenses
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Manufacturing expenses 7,783.26                  7,798.23                  
Stores consumed 1,572.95                  1,732.80                  
Power and fuel 276.07                      278.29                      
Repairs to machinery 249.31                      167.97                      
Job work charges 1,855.18                  2,217.21                  
Labour charges 3,760.73                  3,364.35                  
Cost of services 5.51                          12.46                        
Other manufacturing expenses 63.51                        25.15                        

Selling expenses 3,159.67                  3,687.92                  
Commission 36.35                        136.38                      
Freight and forwarding 960.33                      984.36                      
Warranty 1,654.44                  1,800.62                  
Advertisement and publicity 234.45                      361.14                      
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) (Including 
expected credit loss) 82.47                        130.74                      
Others selling expenses 191.63                      274.68                      

Administration expenses 2,823.55                  2,591.60                  
Rent 257.93                      224.82                      
Rates and taxes 44.79                        46.32                        
Insurance 21.98                        24.59                        
Repairs to building 16.38                        18.51                        
Other repairs and maintenance 696.43                      672.86                      
Travelling and conveyance 696.46                      818.42                      
Communication expenses 72.86                        66.34                        
Printing and stationery 22.35                        17.04                        
Professional charges* 800.21                      585.24                      
Auditor's remuneration (Refer Note 35.5.3) 24.72                        26.62                        
Spend on CSR activities (Refer Note 35.5.15) 27.52                        22.69                        
Non Executive Directors’ fees & commission 5.95                          19.40                        
Miscellaneous expenses 129.90                      48.05                        
Bad debts and irrecoverable balances written off 0.69                          0.70                          
Loss on Exchange difference 5.38                          -                            
Total 13,766.48                14,077.75                

Particulars

*For terms and conditions with related parties, refer Note 35.5.9
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Note 34 :  Income Tax
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24

Current tax                               4.96                           925.24 
Current income tax                                     -                           925.24 
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years                               4.96                                   -   

Deferred tax                             58.10                             34.79 
Relating to origination and reversal or temporary difference                             58.10                             34.79 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 63.06                           960.03                         

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)  ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Net loss/(gain) on actuarial gains and losses                           (23.53)                           (11.70)

Deferred tax charged to OCI (23.53)                          (11.70)                          

Current tax  ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

Accounting profit before income tax expense                           435.28                        3,429.86 

Tax @ 25.168% (31 March 2024 : 25.168%) 109.55                         863.23                          

Tax effect of adjustments in calculating taxable income:                           (46.49)                             96.80 
Disallowance Under IT                           (82.02)                             35.05 
LTCG as per IT on sale of land                             36.03                                   -   
Change in tax rate of CG - Op Bal of DTA on loss                               7.43                                   -   
LTCG as per IT on sale of shares                             21.74                                   -   
Difference between Opening and Closing WDV of IT                              (0.41)                               0.01 
Others                             16.18                             24.15 
Fixed Assets - found non -existent debited to P & L                               9.58                                   -   
TDSCPC 24Q notice -disallowance of TDS                               2.18                                   -   
Provision for doubtful deposits - allowed out of amount disallowed last year                           (16.19)                                   -   
Reversal of deferred tax asset on tax loss for the LY                                   -                               35.44 
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years                               4.96                                   -   
Others-opening adjustment for Merger with Optiqua                                   -                                 2.15 
Setoff of Loss on which DTA not created                           (45.97)                                   -   
At the effective income tax rate of 14.49% (31 March 2024 : 27.99%) 63.06                           960.03                         
Deferred Tax on Long Term Capital Loss                                   -                                     -   
Income Tax Reported in Statement of Profit & Loss 63.06                           960.03                         

During the year 2019-20, new section 115BAA is introduced by the CBDT. As per this section, option is given to all existing companies to either
pay Income tax as per the existing rates (i.e. 25% or 30% plus applicable surcharge and cess) or as per concessional rate of 22% plus applicable
surcharge and cess. This new rate is available only if company forgoes certain exemptions and deductions. Since this new rate is beneficial,
company has adopted the new tax rate of 25.168% (i.e. 22% including surcharge and cess) for computing Income tax & deferred tax for year
ended 31 March 2025 (the rate for 31 March 2024 was 25.168%).

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate as notified under Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India
for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
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Note 35: Notes to and forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(i)   Basis of Accounting and Preparation of the Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS)
to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) and the relevant
provisions of the 1956 Act / 2013 Act. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are consistent. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the respective Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the 2013 Act.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
amendments thereof issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with rule 7
of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for,
(i)                 the investments which have been measured at fair value as they are classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair
value through other comprehensive income.
(ii)                defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakhs rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

Corporate Information

The parent company is a 100% subsidiary company of Kirloskar Oil Engines Ltd. 

The group company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sales of Submersible Pumps, Electric Motors, Electrical panels,
wires, cables, pipe and spares thereof.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on 29-04-2025.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financials statements of La-Gajjar Machineries Private Limited (‘The Parent
Company’) and its joint venture ESVA Pumps India Private Limited (the Company and its Joint Venture together referred to as “the
Group”). The parent company is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act 1956. The registered office and principal place of business of the parent company is located at Plot No. SM - 33, 34,
35, 36/1, Sanand - II Industrial Estate, Sanand GIDC, Sanand, Ahmedabad -382110. The books of accounts of the parent company are
maintained at the above mentioned registered office. The equity shares of the company are not listed on any stock exchanges in
India.



Name of investee companies Relation with the 
Company

Proportion of 
effective ownership 

interest as at 
31 March 2024

ESVA Pumps India Private
Limited (ESVA) Joint venture 49%
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3.1

3.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group bases its assumptions and estimates on information available till the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. The assumptions and estimates, however, may change based on future developments, due to
market conditions or due to circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions and estimates when they occur.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Leases

The Group had applied provisions of Ind AS 116 effective 01st April, 2019. The said standard provides for certain recognition
exemptions for short term leases as well as provides for certain criteria when the lease contracts are non-enforceable. The
determination of lease term for the purpose of availing such exemptions and evaluation of such criteria for non-enforceability of a
contract involves significant judgment.
Revenue Recognition

The Group generally recognizes revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the control is
transferred i.e. either on shipment or upon delivery in domestic and in case of export on the date of bill of lading.

c.      The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent applicable, in accordance with the requirements of
Schedule III of the 2013 Act as applicable to the Group’s separate financial statements. Differences if any, in accounting policies have
been disclosed separately.

d.     Particulars of Investee companies considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements have been
summarized below:

For the consolidated financial statements, the appropriate percentage of profit / (Loss), based on the shareholding under the joint
venture agreement, has been accounted for up to the termination date.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Group continually evaluates these estimates
and assumptions based on the most recently available information. The management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Judgements

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th August 2024 approved the participation for the buyback offer of
22,38,506 fully paid-up equity shares at a price of Rs. 13/- per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- per share) of ESVA Pumps India
Private Limited (ESVA) to the extent of Company’s entitlement and equity shares renounced by other shareholders of ESVA, as per
the terms and conditions mentioned in the ‘Letter of Offer’ dated 28th August 2024 issued by ESVA to the Company. Accordingly,
22,38,506 fully paid-up equity shares were bought back by ESVA from the Company and the consideration amount of Rs.
2,91,00,578/- (Rupees Two Crore Ninety One Lakh Five Hundred and Seventy Eight only) was received by the Company on 6th
September 2024. 

Further the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28th September 2024 approved the termination of Joint
Venture arrangement with ESVA Pumps India Private Limited. In pursuant to the Joint Venture Termination Agreement 21,71,494
(32.12%) equity shares held by the Company in ESVA were sold to Mr. V Baranitharan and Ms. C. Shanthi, the Promoters of ESVA for
consideration amounting to Rs. 3,69,15,398/- (Rupees Three Crore Sixty Nine Lakh Fifteen Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety
Eight only) on 30th September 2024. Consequentially, the aforesaid Joint Venture arrangement has been terminated w.e.f. 28th
September 2024.

Proportion of effective ownership interest as at 
31 March 2025

49% - From 1st Apr to 6th Sep 2024
   32% - From 7th Sep to 28th Sep 2024

(ii) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a.     The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures required for the preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements as laid down under the Ind AS 110, "Consolidated Financial Statements”.

b.     The results, assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using equity
method of accounting after making necessary adjustments to achieve uniformity in application of accounting policies, wherever
required.



Deferred Tax
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4.1

a.      Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b.      Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c.       Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d.      There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are treated as non - current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non - current assets and liabilities.

a.      Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
b.      Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c.       Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d.      Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 

All other assets are classified as non - current.

A liability is current when it is:

Material Accounting Policies

Current Vs Non-Current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 35.5.6

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences including the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Warranty

The Group recognises provision for warranties in respect of the products that it sells. The estimates are established using historical
information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible future
incidences based on actions on product failures.

Impairment of Goodwill recognized under Business Combination

The Group estimates whether goodwill accounted under business combination has suffered any impairment on annual basis. For this 
purpose, the recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on value in use calculations which require the use of
assumptions.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the obligation are determined
using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future post-retirement
medical benefit increase. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The most sensitive parameter is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest
rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated
as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response
to demographic changes. Future salary increases are mainly based on expected future inflation rates for the country.



4.2

4.3

Property, plant and equipment; and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated 
impairment losses, if any, other than those acquired in a business combination. Cost represents all expenses directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition capable of operating in the manner intended. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
parts of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

b.   Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the balance sheet date.

c.    Own manufactured assets are capitalised at cost including an appropriate share of allocable expenses.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset 
or transfer the liability takes place either:

·         In the principal market for the asset or liability, Or
·         In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The Group measures the fair value of an asset or a liability assuming that market participants would use it when pricing the asset or
liability and that market participants act in their best economic interest.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative
instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. 

External valuation experts are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuation experts is
decided upon annually by the management.

Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistently followed.

Property , Plant and Equipment

a.   The Group has adopted Ind AS from transition date 1st April 2016. Accordingly the Group has elected to continue with the
carrying value of all of its Property, plant and equipment measured as per the Indian GAAP as at 31 March 2016 and use those
values as deemed cost.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

·           Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
·          Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.
·          Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.
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-          Depreciation on additions is provided from the beginning of the month in which the asset is ready to use.

-         Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided at their respective rates on pro-rata
basis up to the end of the month prior to the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished.
-         Foreign exchange fluctuation gain/ loss on imported plant and equipment were charged to Profit & Loss statement up to
transition date of Ind AS.

The Group, based on technical assessments made by technical experts and management estimates and depreciates certain items of
plant and equipment over a useful lives which is different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

As at 31 March 2025, Properties, Plant & Equipment with a carrying amount of ₹2544.1 Lakhs (31 March 2024 ₹ 1676.53 Lakhs) are 
subject to first charge to secure bank loan. Refer note 15 Borrowings.

Security:

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013

-         Used assets obtained under Business Combination are measured based on their remaining useful life as on the date of
acquisition.

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013

Basis for useful life
Amortised over lease period

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013

Lower useful life considered based on past
history of usage and supported by Technical
Evaluation

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013

Office Equipment

Vehicles
Motorcars, Jeep
Two Wheelers
Other Vehicles

Asset Category
Leasehold improvements

Plant & Equipment including Pattern Tooling

Jigs & Fixtures

Computers
Network
End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, etc.
Servers

Electrical Installations

Furniture & Fixture

Furniture, Fixtures and Electrical Fittings

AC, Refrigerators and Water coolers - Company and
Guest House Premises

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is charged on the basis of useful life of assets on Straight Line method which are as follows:

Factory Building

Non-Factory building

Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013
Life as prescribed under Schedule-II of
Companies Act, 2013



4.4

4.5

Sr. No. Life in years
1 3 - 5 years
2 5 years
3 10 years
4 5 years

4.6

The amortisation period and amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, if any are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing Costs net of any investment income from temporary investment of related borrowings that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized till the month in which the asset is ready to use, as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing   costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which these are incurred.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for its acquisition. In case of internally generated intangible assets,
expenditure incurred in development phase, where it is reasonably certain that the outcome of development will be commercially
exploited to yield future economic benefits to the Group, is considered as an intangible asset. Such developmental expenditure is
capitalized at cost including a share of allocable expenses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised by using Straight Line method over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset maybe impaired. Amortisation of Intangible assets is included
in the depreciation and amortisation in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Asset category
Computer Software
Customer Relationship
Brands
Technical Knowhow-Acquired

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of the property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based
on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or on permanent withdrawal from use or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. Transfers between investment property,
owner-occupied property and inventories are at carrying amount of the property transferred.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Investment properties



4.7

4.8

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
-        the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and
-        the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

·         Financial assets at amortised cost :
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
-      the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows, and
-      the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured by applying the effective interest rate (EIR) to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset if applicable. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

·            Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(ii)       Subsequent measurement of financial assets

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
·         Financial assets at amortised cost
·         Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
·         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication due to internal or external factors that an asset or a
group of assets comprising a Cash Generating Unit (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the assets. If such recoverable amount of the assets or the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs is less than the carrying amount of the assets or the CGU as the case may be, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the profit and loss account. If at any
subsequent balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost and is
accordingly reversed in the profit and loss account.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 'An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and
only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised or relates to a change
in the estimate of the recoverable amount in the previous periods.

Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

a)         Financial assets

(i)         Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets

Impairment of non-financial assets



-         the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

-        The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

(iv)  Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification
is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or
internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group 
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Equity Instruments

Investment in equity instruments issued by subsidiary are measured at cost.

In addition, the Group may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

(iii)     Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

or

After initial measurement, such financial assets, until they are derecognised or reclassified, are subsequently measured at fair value
with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income except for interest income, impairment gains or losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

·            Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income.



Original classification Revised classification

Amortised cost FVTPL

FVTPL Amortised Cost

Amortised cost FVOCI

FVOCI Amortised cost

FVTPL FVOCI

FVTOCI FVTPL

·         All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
12 months after the reporting date.

·         Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVOCI
·         Lease receivables under Ind AS 116
·         Trade receivables under Ind AS 115

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
·        Trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 115, if they do not contain a significant financing
component

·        Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 115 that contain a significant
financing component, if the Group applies practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money, and

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No
other adjustment is required.

Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit and loss
at the reclassification date.

(v)      Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
·         Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Accounting treatment

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in the statement of
Profit and loss.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount.
EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in
EIR due to reclassification.

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying
amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair
value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost.



Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable
to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

·            Loans and Borrowings at amortised Cost

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part 
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

b)         Financial Liabilities

(i)         Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

(ii)       Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified and measured as follows:

·         Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

·         Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of
profit and loss. This amount is reflected in a separate line in the P&L as an impairment gain or loss. The balance sheet presentation
for various financial instruments is described below:

·        Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not derecognize impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

·         Loan commitments: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis.

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit
impaired on purchase/ origination.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an
entity is required to consider:

·        All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected
life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated
reliably, then the Group is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument.
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However, when the lessee and the lessor each have the right to terminate the lease without permission from the other party with
no more than an insignificant penalty the Group considers that lease to be no longer enforceable. Also according to Ind AS 116, for
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the
lessee is not required to recognize right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The Group applies both recognition exemptions. The lease
payments associated with those leases are generally recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term or another
systematic basis if appropriate.

c. Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement and conversion of foreign currency transactions are recognised as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise.

Leases

Lease is a contract that provides to the customer (lessee) the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

a. Group as a lessee

A lessee is required to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases and to recognise depreciation of leased assets separately from
interest on lease liabilities in the statement of Profit and Loss. The Group uses the practical expedient to apply the requirements of
this standard to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics if the effects on the financial statements of applying to the portfolio
does not differ materially from applying the requirement to the individual leases within that portfolio.

All derivatives are measured at fair value through the profit or loss unless they form part of a qualifying cash flow hedge, in which
case the fair value is taken to reserves and released into the statement of profit and loss at the same time as the risks on the hedged
instrument are recognised therein. Any hedge ineffectiveness will result in the relevant proportion of the fair value remaining in the
statement of profit and loss. Fair values are derived primarily from discounted cash-flow models, option-pricing models and from
third-party quotes. Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair values are positive and as liabilities when their fair values are
negative. All hedging activity is explicitly identified and documented by the Group.

Foreign Currency Transactions

a. Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian currency, by applying the exchange rate between the Indian currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

b. Conversion
Current assets and current liabilities, Secured Loans, being monetary items, designated in foreign currencies are revalorized at the
rate prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet or forward contract rate or other appropriate rate. 

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The dividend on these
preference shares are recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

(iii)     Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e.
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Derivatives

The Group uses derivative contracts to hedge its exposure against movements in foreign exchange rates. The use of derivative
contracts is intended to reduce the risk or cost to the Group. Derivative contracts are not used for trading or speculation purpose. 
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Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities; on the basis of the taxable profits computed for the current accounting period in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961
and book profit in case of minimum alternate tax under section 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1961 if applicable. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

d. Unserviceable, damaged and obsolete inventory is valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Taxes

Current income tax

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group accounts for the re-measurement of the lease
liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

b. Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment
and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of profit
and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

a. Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost includes all cost
of purchase and incidental expenses incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

b.    Work-in-process including finished components and finished goods are valued at cost or realisable value whichever is lower.
Cost includes direct materials, labour costs and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

c. Materials-in-transit and materials in bonded warehouse are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet.

Right-of-use Asset
Right-of-use assets, which are included under property, plant and equipment, are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and, if necessary, any accumulated impairment. The cost of a right-of-use asset comprises the present value of the
outstanding lease payments plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
any initial direct costs and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling or removing the underlying asset. In this context, the
Group also applies the practical expedient that the payments for non-lease components are generally recognized as lease payments.
If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated to the end of the useful life of the
underlying asset. Otherwise, the right-of-use asset is depreciated to the end of the lease term.

Lease Liability

Lease liabilities, which are assigned to financing liabilities, are measured initially at the present value of the lease payments.
Subsequent measurement of a lease liability includes the increase of the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

Lease Modification



The net amount of Sales tax / GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales tax / GST

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except:

·     When the GST incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the GST
is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

·      When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

·     In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
arrangements, deferred tax liabilities are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences including, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

·     When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss;

·     In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognised in other
comprehensive income or in equity, respectively, and not in the statement of Profit and Loss. The Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

·     When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
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The Group makes payment to state government provident fund scheme and employee state insurance scheme which are defined
contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service. The Group has no further obligations under these schemes beyond its
periodic contributions.

(ii)    Defined benefit plan

The employee’s gratuity fund scheme is Group’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such defined
benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance
sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to
recognise the obligation on a net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the profit or loss in subsequent periods.

An entity does not depreciate (or amortise) a non-current asset while it is classified as held for sale or while it is part of a disposal
group classified as held for sale.

Employee Benefits

a)      Short Term Employee Benefits

The distinction between short term and long term employee benefits is based on expected timing of settlement rather than the
employee’s entitlement benefits. All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay
etc. and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. 

b)      Post-Employment Benefits

(i)      Defined contribution plan

Assets and liabilities classified as held for distribution are presented separately from others assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified
as held for sale, and:

a)      Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
b)      Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations
c)      Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Non-Current Assets held for sale and Discontinuing operations

A. Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate use in its present condition. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

B. Discontinuing operations

Discontinuing operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or
loss after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss account.
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Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer of goods or services and the receipt of
payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit either to the customer or the Group. If a contract
contains more than one distinct good or service, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on relative
stand-alone selling prices. If stand-alone selling prices are not observable, the Group reasonably estimates those. Revenue is
recognized for each performance obligation either at a point in time or over time.

Performance obligations are identified based on individual terms of contract. If a contract contains more than one distinct good or
service, the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on relative stand-alone selling prices. If stand-alone
selling prices are not observable, the Group reasonably estimates them. Revenue is recognized for each performance obligation
either at a point in time or over time.

The incremental cost to obtain a contract are recognised as an asset if the Group expects to recover those cost over the period of
contract. Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense, when incurred, if the amortisation period of
the asset that the entity otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.

Contract Balances

Trade Receivable

The amounts billed on customer for work performed and are unconditionally due for payment i.e. only passage of time is required
before payment falls due, are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables.

Necessary provisions are made for the present obligations that arise out of past events entailing future outflow of economic
resources. Such provisions reflect best estimates based on available information. 

However a disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Revenue Recognition 

The Group recognizes revenue, when or as control over distinct goods or services is transferred to the customer; i.e. when the
customer is able to direct the use of the transferred goods or services and obtains substantially all of the remaining benefits,
provided a contract with enforceable rights and obligations exists and amongst others collectability of consideration is probable
taking into account our customer’s creditworthiness.

Revenue is the transaction price the Group expects to be entitled to. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price if it is
highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are resolved.

The amount of variable consideration is calculated by either using the expected value or the most likely amount depending on which
is expected to better predict the amount of variable consideration.

·         The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

·        Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and 
·         Net interest expense or income.

(iii) Other than the Defined contribution plan and Defined benefit plan disclosed above, the Group does not offer any other Long
term employment benefits or Termination benefits to its employees.

Provisions and Contingencies

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
·         The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
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Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non
cash nature and any deferral or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular operating,
investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of cash flows exclude items which are not available for
general use as at the date of the Balance sheet.

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the year of exports as grant related to income
and is recognized as other operating income in the statement of profit and loss if the entitlements can be estimated with reasonable
accuracy and conditions precedent to claim are fulfilled.

Cash dividend

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to the equity holders of the Group when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, a distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions, if any, are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the
assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings Per Share

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Government Grant

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized if the following conditions are satisfied, 
-       There is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attached to it.
-       Such benefits are earned and reasonable certainty exists of the collection.

Export Incentives

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised when the Group performs under the contract.

Other Income

Interest Income from a Financial Asset

Interest Income from a Financial Asset is recognized using effective interest rate method.

Others
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Business combinations under common control will be accounted as per IND AS 103, wherein where there are two entities under the
common control of a main entity and one of the two entities gets amalgamated with the other entity, the transferee entity is
required to restate the comparative figures from the first day itself.

Business combinations 

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquire. Acquisition related costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of,
-         the sum of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)

-          over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or liability is re-measured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments or Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

a.      Identification of Segments 
The company has identified Wires & Cables, Pipes, and Pumpsets Business as its reportable segments. The company is engaged in
the business of manufacturing and sales of Submersible Pumps, Electric Motors, Electrical panels, wires, cables, pipe and spares
thereof.
b.      Allocation of common costs
Common allocable costs are allocated to the Wires & Cables, Pipes, and Pumpsets based on sales of respective business segment to
the total sales of the company.
c.       Unallocated items
Corporate assets and liabilities, income and expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocable to segments, are
included under other reconciling items.

Segment Reporting 
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5 Additional notes to the Financial Statements

5.1 Contingent Liabilities
₹ in Lakhs

a 2024-25 2023-24

                      1,025.41                  1,039.55 
iv. Disputed Case Pending under Consumer Forum                               1.28                          1.28 

                      1,325.27                  1,360.06 
5.2 Commitments
(i) Capital commitments

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

129.42                          2444.58

(ii) Leases
a Profit and Loss information

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets:
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24
                          326.86                     510.35 

Land                             33.77                        33.77 
                          360.63                     544.12 

 ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

                            42.97                        38.99 
                            42.97                        38.99 

b Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24
                            75.89                     242.41 
                          200.16                              -   
                          274.17                              -   

c Total cash outflow for leases
 ₹ in Lakhs 

2024-25 2023-24
                          302.81                     455.82 
                                  -                                -   

                          302.81                     455.82 

d Other information
Nature of leasing activity

Short term leases and low-value asset leases not included in the measurement of the 
Total

The Company has leases for Office Building and Factory Buildings.  Certain lease contracts provide for payments to increase each 
year by inflation or and in others to be reset periodically to market rental rates. While other lease contracts comprise only fixed 
payments over the lease terms.

Less than 1 year
Between 1 year to 5 years
More than 5 years

Particulars
Amortization of the lease liabilities (including advance payments)

Particulars

Interest expense on lease liabilities:

Particulars
Buildings
 Total 

Particulars
Buildings

 Total 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for (net of advances)

Contingent liability provided for
i.    Disputed Sales & GST Tax Demands
(₹ 30.71 Lakhs paid as deposit)
ii.   Disputed ESI Demands
(₹ Nil paid as deposit)
iii. Performance Bank Guarantee Outstanding

                          298.58                     294.76 

                                    -                        24.47 



Extension and termination options

5.3 Payment to Auditors (Net of taxes)
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Sr. No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
a Statutory Auditor
i As auditors 20.00                            21.70                       

Audit fees                             13.75                        15.75 
Tax audit fees 3.25 3.25
Limited review                               3.00                          2.70 

ii Certification fees  & assurance services                               1.95                          2.69 
iii Reimbursement of expenses                               0.52                          0.48 

Total (a) 22.47                            24.87                       
b Cost Auditor
i As auditors                               2.25                          1.75 
ii In other capacity

Certification fees                                     -                                - 
Reimbursement of expenses                                     -                                - 
Total (b) 2.25                              1.75                         
Grand total (a+b) 24.72                            26.62                       

5.4

5.5

 ₹ in Lakhs 
2024-25 2023-24

                      2,898.22                  4,830.94 
                      1,418.50                  1,634.19 
                                    -                                - 
                                    -                                - 
                          235.77                     235.77 

The Information has been given in respect of such vendors on the basis of information available with the company.

Interest due on principle amount remaining unpaid as on year end date
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under 

The company has amounts due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED Act) 
as at 31 March 2025. The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under.

Particulars
Principal outstanding to MSME suppliers 
Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during 
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for the payments already 

The use of extension and termination options gives the Company added flexibility in the event it has identified more suitable
premises in terms of cost and/or location or determined that it is advantageous to remain in a location beyond the original lease
term. An option is only exercised when consistent with the Company’s regional markets strategy and the economic benefits of
exercising the option exceeds the expected overall cost.

The Company’s exports qualify for export benefits offered in the form of duty credit scrips and duty drawback under foreign trade
policy framed by Department General of Foreign Trade (DGFT). Income accounted towards such export incentives and duty
drawback amounts to ₹ 398.58 Lakh in FY 2024-25 (2023-24 ₹ 436.96 Lakh) included in revenue from operations.
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5.6 : Disclosure pursuant to Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plans:
Amount of Rs. 187.52 Lakhs (31 March 2024 : Rs. 181.07 Lakhs) is recognised as expenses and included in Note No. 30 “Employee Benefits Expense

B. Defined benefit plans:
The Company has following post employment benefits which are in the nature of defined benefit plans:
(a) Gratuity

31 March 2025 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets ₹ in Lakhs

April 1, 2024 Assumed in 
business 

combination

Service cost Net interest 
expense

Sub-total 
included in 

statement of 
profit and loss 

(Note 30)

Benefit paid Benefit Paid 
Directly by the 

Employer

Return on plan 
assets 

(excluding 
amounts 

included in net 
interest 
expense)

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
changes in 

demographic 
assumptions

Actuarial 
changes arising 
from changes in 

financial 
assumptions

Experience 
adjustments

Sub-total 
included in OCI

Contributions 
by employer

 March 31, 
2025 

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation           (481.93)          (54.78)                   (34.85)                   (89.63) 60.57                    -                             -                                                     -                     (75.48)               (13.78)                 (89.26)                          -              (600.25)
Fair value of plan assets 280.58            -                    20.29                    20.29                                      (60.57)                            -                       (4.24) -                          -                             -                                           (4.24)                   56.17              292.23 

Benefit liability           (201.35)                      -            (54.78)                   (14.56)                   (69.34) -                             -                                                 (4.24)                         -                     (75.48)               (13.78)                 (93.50) 56.17                             (308.02)

Total benefit liability           (201.35)                      -            (54.78)                   (14.56)                   (69.34) -                                                        -                       (4.24) -                                            (75.48)               (13.78)                 (93.50) 56.17                             (308.02)

31 March 2024 : Changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets ₹ in Lakhs

April 1, 2023 Assumed in 
business 

combination

Service cost Net interest 
expense

Sub-total 
included in 

statement of 
profit and loss 

(Note 30)

Benefit paid Benefit Paid 
Directly by the 

Employer

Return on plan 
assets 

(excluding 
amounts 

included in net 
interest 
expense)

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
changes in 

demographic 
assumptions

Actuarial 
changes arising 
from changes in 

financial 
assumptions

Experience 
adjustments

Sub-total 
included in OCI

Contributions 
by employer

 31 March 
2024 

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation           (377.22)          (46.68)                   (28.28)                   (74.96) 12.65                    0.38                      -                             -                                            (12.75)               (30.03)                 (42.78) -                                      (481.93)
Fair value of plan assets 245.50            -                    18.41                                        18.41                   (12.65)                            -                       (3.68)                         -                              -                          -                     (3.68) 33.00                               280.58 

Benefit liability           (131.72)                      -            (46.68)                     (9.87)                   (56.55) -                             0.38                                          (3.68)                         -                     (12.75)               (30.03)                 (46.46) 33.00                             (201.35)

Total benefit liability           (131.72)                      -            (46.68)                     (9.87)                   (56.55)                            -                         0.38                     (3.68)                         -                     (12.75)               (30.03)                 (46.46)                   33.00            (201.35)

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit 
and loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income

Gratuity cost charged to statement of profit 
and loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income
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₹ in Lakhs

 Year ended 31 
March 2025 

 Year ended    
31 March 2024 

Rs. Rs.

Special Deposit Scheme -                             -                             
(%) of total plan assets -                             -                             
Insured managed funds 292.24                 280.58                  
(%) of total plan assets 100.0% 100.0%
Others -                             -                             
(%) of total plan assets -                             -                             

 Year ended 31 
March 2025 

 Year ended    
31 March 2024 

Discount rate 6.61% 7.23%
Future salary increase 10.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.61% 7.23%
Expected average remaining working lives (in years) 6 12

Withdrawal rate (based on grade and age of employees)
For service 4 years and below 30.00% 15.00%
For service 5 years and above 9.00% 3.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Gratuity ₹ in Lakhs

Particulars Sensitivity 
level

 Year ended 31 
March 2025 

 Year ended    
31 March 2024 

1% increase 38.91                    44.68                    
1% decrease                   (44.22)                   (52.28)

1% increase                   (34.47)                   (45.48)
1% decrease                     32.93                     40.76 

1% increase                     (7.38)                     (2.10)
1% decrease                       8.14                       2.28 

Future salary increase

Withdrawal rate

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit 
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars

The principal assumptions used in determining above defined benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are 
shown below:

Particulars

(increase) / decrease in defined benefit obligation (Impact)

Discount rate

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets of Gratuity are as follows:
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The followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan : ₹ in Lakhs

 Year ended 31 
March 2025 

 Year ended    
31 March 2024 

Rs. Rs.

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 70.40                    35.16                    
Between 2 and 5 years 212.24                 116.47                  
Beyond 5 years 767.55                 1,021.59              

Total expected payments 1,050.19              1,173.22              

Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation (based on discounted cash flows)

 Year ended 31 
March 2025 

 Year ended    
31 March 2024 

Years Years

Gratuity 8.36                      12.00                    

The followings are the expected contributions to planned assets  for the next year:
 Year ended 31 

March 2025 
 Year ended    

31 March 2024 
Rs. Rs.

Gratuity 110.47                 114.39                  

C. Funding Policy

D. Risk Exposure

Mortality risk : Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

Concentration Risk : Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very low as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory guidelines
which mitigate risk.

Salary Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Investment Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will
create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset Liability Matching Risk : The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.
The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk : A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of
asset.
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5.7 Segment Information

(a) Profit (before exceptional items and tax) of reportable segment
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars
Wires & Cables

Business Segment
Pipes

Business Segment
Pumpsets

Business Segment
Other Reconciling Items  Consolidated Total 

Segment revenue 1,130.64                              1,036.01                              48,523.68                            -                                                                    50,690.33 
Total revenue                                1,130.64                                1,036.01                             48,523.68                                            -                               50,690.33 
Profit/(loss) Before exceptional items and tax                                   102.61                                   196.81                                   134.83                                   (27.52)                                   406.73 
Depreciation and Amortisation                                     19.07                                     23.91                                1,192.07                                            -                                  1,235.05 
Finance Cost                                       2.82                                       2.82                                1,249.46                                            -                                  1,255.10 
Share of profit from joint ventures (net of tax)                                            -                                              -                                       28.55                                            -                                       28.55 

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars

Wires & Cables
Business Segment

Pipes
Business Segment

Pumpsets
Business Segment Other Reconciling Items  Consolidated Total 

Segment revenue 1,531.01                              1,039.75                              52,723.29                            -                                                                    55,294.05 
Total revenue                                1,531.01                                1,039.75                             52,723.29                                            -                               55,294.05 
Profit/(loss) Before exceptional items and tax (199.15)                                28.95                                   3,823.16                              (353.19)                                                               3,299.77 
Depreciation and Amortisation 34.54                                   33.89                                   897.12                                 15.19                                                                     980.74 
Finance Cost 4.08                                      1.75                                      603.54                                 156.35                                                                   765.72 
Share of profit from joint ventures (net of tax) -                                        -                                        130.09                                 -                                                                          130.09 

(b) Capital employed of reportable segment
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Particulars
Wires & Cables

Business Segment
Pipes

Business Segment
Pumpsets

Business Segment
Other Reconciling Items  Consolidated Total 

Assets 396.53                                 391.32                                 31,685.42                            1,206.50                                                          33,679.77 
Liabilities 128.53                                 117.71                                 21,139.91                            1,685.05                                                          23,071.20 
Capital employed 268.00                                 273.61                                 10,545.51                            (478.55)                                                            10,608.57 

 ₹ in Lakhs 
Particulars

Wires & Cables
Business Segment

Pipes
Business Segment

Pumpsets
Business Segment

Other Reconciling Items  Consolidated Total 

Assets 428.11                                 328.70                                 35,623.42                            274.03                                                             36,654.26 
Liabilities 54.22                                   57.49                                   24,825.09                            1,411.03                                                          26,347.83 
Capital employed 373.90                                 271.21                                 10,798.33                            (1,137.01)                                                         10,306.43 

The business activities of the Company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available involve predominantly one operating segment. 

2024-25

2023-24

2024-25

2023-24

(c) The company has made net sales exceeding 10 percent of its total revenue to Kirloskar oil engine limited (KOEL) of Rs. 6120.71 Lakhs during FY 2024-25. (Previous Financial year Rs. 7346.09 Lakhs).
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5.8

5.9 (A) Description of Related Parties

i)  Name of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists:

Sr.
No. Related Party Category

1 Holding Company
2 Post- Employment benefit plan of Company

Paragon Greensutra Private Limited w.e.f. 8 Sep 2023

Kirloskar Energen Private Limited upto 11 March 2025
Kirloskar Solar Technologies Private Limited
Indifour Consult Private Limited w.e.f. 27 April 2023
Alotoxl Ventures LLP w.e.f. 10 May 2023

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - IV LLP  w.e.f. 21 Sep 2022 upto 22 March 2024

5

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Sr.
No. Name Relationship

Husband
Daughter
Daughter
Father
Mother

Entity controlled by close member of Key 
Managerial Personnel

Christopher Kolenaty
Maya Kolenaty

Arka Investment Advisory Services Private Limited w.e.f. 30 March 2022

Binaza Consult Private Limited (earlier known as Binaza Travels Private 
Limited) w.e.f. 31 Aug 2023

4

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - VII LLP  w.e.f 3 October 2024

Name of Relatives 

Gumtree Capital Advisors LLP 
Snow Leopard Infrastructure-1 LLP w.e.f. 29 June 2020

Kirloskar Americas Corp., USA (earlier known as KOEL Americas Corp., 
USA) name change w.e.f. 21 May 2021
Arka Fincap Limited (earlier known as Kirloskar Capital Limited)

Snow Leopard Lever Boost LLP w.e.f. 24th March 2023

Engines LPG LLC, dba Wildcat  Power Gen w.e.f. 29th November 2023

a Gauri Kirloskar w.e.f. 20th May 2022
Atul Kirloskar
Arti Kirloskar

6

ii) Key Management Personnel of the ultimate holding company and their relatives:

Kirloskar International ME FZE w.e.f. 7th January 2025

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - V LLP  w.e.f. 27 Feb 23 upto 24 March 2025

Fellow Subsidiaries Arka Financial Holdings Private Limited w.e.f 13 July 2021

CEPHALOPOD TEKNIK - VI LLP  w.e.f. 4th March 2024 upto 24 March 2025

Navsai Opportunities Pvt Ltd (formerly known as Navsai Investments Pvt 
Ltd) name change w.e.f. 22 Feb 2025

ESVA Pumps India Private Limited w.e.f. 4th Oct 2021 upto 28th 
September 2024

Pia Kolenaty

Related parties have been identified as defined under paragraph 9 of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, “Related Party 
Disclosures”

Company

Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited
La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt. Ltd. Employees Group Gratuity Trust
Snow Leopard Technology Ventures, LLPEntity controlled by Key Managerial Personnel3 Beluga Whale Capital Management Pte. Ltd.



iii) Key Management Personnel of entity and their relatives:

Sr. Name 

e Rahul Sahai w.e.f. 24th January 2025

(B) Transactions with Related Parties 
₹ in Lakhs

Amount Amount from 
major parties Amount Amount from 

major parties
1 Gross Sales (Net of sales return)

Holding Company 6,120.71         7,346.09                 
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 6,120.71     7,346.09        
Total 6,120.71         6,120.71    7,346.09                 7,346.09       

2 Warranty Returns
Holding Company -                   17.95                       
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited -                       17.95                      
Total -                   -                       17.95                       17.95                      

3 Rendering of Services from
Key Management Personnel 3.00                 13.00                       
Gauri Kirloskar 1.30                     1.50                        
Akshay Sahni 1.30                     11.50                      
Sachin Kejriwal 0.40                     -                          
Total 3.00                 3.00                     13.00                       13.00                      

4 Expenses paid to
Holding Company 545.96    304.67            
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 545.96        304.67            
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of
Entity

2.75                 -

Indifour Consult Private Limited 2.75                     -                          
Total 548.71    548.71       304.67            304.67           

5 ESOP Issued to LGM Employees
Holding Company 23.61      6.50                
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 23.61          6.50               
Total 23.61      23.61         6.50                6.50               

Name of Relatives 
Wife – Alka Srivastav

Daughter – Maya Kolenaty
Wife – Aditi Kirloskar (Sahni)

a Aseem Srivastav w.e.f. 16th Sep 2022 (upto 31st 
Dec 2024)

b Gauri Kirloskar

c Akshay Sahni w.e.f. 28 Jan 2022

Sr.
No.

Nature of the transaction / relationship / major
parties

d Sachin Kejriwal w.e.f. 18 October 2024

2023-242024-25

Wife – Geetu Sehgal (Sahai)

Son – Arjun Sahni

Son – Krishang Kejriwal

Daughter – Pia Kolenaty

Son – Sanchit Srivastav
Son – Shivalik Srivastav

Daughter – Anoushka Sahni
Wife – Ruchi Kejriwal

Father-Atul Kirloskar
Mother-Arti Kirloskar
Husband – Christopher Kolenaty



6 Loan repaid to Holding company
Holding Company 1,071.75          1,913.25                  
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 1,071.75    1,913.25        
Total 1,071.75          1,071.75              1,913.25                  1,913.25                 

7 Interest paid / (recovered)
Holding Company 402.34             586.09                     
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 402.34       586.09           
Total 402.34             402.34                586.09                     586.09                    

8 Contributions Paid
Post-Employment benefit plan of the Company 56.17      33.00              
La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt. Ltd. Employees Group
Gratuity Trust

56.17          33.00             

Total 56.17      56.17         33.00              33.00             
9 Divestment in equity shares *

Associates 291.01             -                                
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 291.01       -                 
Total 291.01    291.01        -                       -                      

10 Purchase of Goods
Associates 118.99             1,889.04
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 118.99       1,889.04        
Total 118.99    118.99       1,889.04        1,889.04       

11 Purchase Return of Goods
Associates 70.59                -                                
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 70.59          -                 
Total 70.59       70.59          -                       -                      

12 Purchase of Services
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of
Entity

73.48                -                                

Indifour Consult Private Limited 73.48          -                 
Total 73.48       73.48          -                       -                      

13 Capital Advance
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of
Entity

-                        31.74                        

Indifour Consult Private Limited -              31.74             
Total -          -              31.74              31.74             

14 Reimbursement of Expenses for Deputed
Employees
Holding Company 193.45    90.63
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 193.45       90.63             
Associates 4.18        6.42
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 4.18            6.42               
Total 197.63    197.63       97.05 97.05             

15 Dividend income received
Associates -          50.11              
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited -              50.11             
Total -          -              50.11              50.11             

16 Interest paid to
Fellow Subsidiaries -          4.83                
Arka Fincap Limited -              4.83               
Total -          -              4.83                4.83               

17 Acceptances
Fellow Subsidiaries -          477.44            
Arka Fincap Limited -              477.44           
Total -          -              477.44            477.44           



₹ in Lakhs

Outstanding 
1 Accounts Receivable

Holding Company 267.16             1,410.34        
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 267.16        1,410.34        
Associates 0.64         6.42                 
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited 0.64            6.42                
Total 267.80             267.80       1,416.76        1,416.76       

2 Accounts Payable
Key Management Personnel -                   9.00                         
Commission
Akshay Sahni -                   9.00                
Associates -                   21.60              
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited -                   21.60              
Holding Company 184.97             95.82              
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 184.97        95.82              
Entity controlled by Close Member of KMP of
Entity

29.45       -                       

Indifour Consult Private Limited 29.45          -                      
Total 214.42             214.42       126.42            126.42           

3 Carrying value of Investment in equity shares
Associates -                   441.00            
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited -                   441.00            
Total -                   -              441.00            441.00           

4 Outstanding Cumulative Preference Shares
Holding Company 4,850.00         4,850.00        
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 4,850.00     -                  4,850.00        
Total 4,850.00         4,850.00     4,850.00        4,850.00        

5 Interest payable on preference shares
Holding Company 398.00             398.00            
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 398.00        -                  398.00            
Total 398.00             398.00        398.00            398.00           

6 Payable towards ESOP to LGM employees
Holding Company 33.95               18.09              
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 33.95          18.09              
Total 33.95               33.95          18.09              18.09              

7 Loan from Holding company
Holding Company -                   1,071.75                 
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited -                   -                  1,071.75        
Total -                   -              1,071.75                 1,071.75       

8 Payable
Post-Employment benefit plan of the Company 145.18    82.53               
La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt. Ltd. Employees Group
Gratuity Trust

145.18        82.53              

Total 145.18    145.18        82.53               82.53              

Sr.No
.

Nature of the transaction / relationship / major
parties

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

The above figures do not include provision for leave encashment and gratuity, as actuarial valuation of such provision for the 
Key Management Personnel is included in the total provision for Leave encashment & gratuity.

* The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th August 2024 approved the participation for the buyback
offer of 22,38,506 fully paid-up equity shares at a price of Rs. 13/- per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- per share) of ESVA
Pumps India Private Limited (ESVA) to the extent of Company’s entitlement and equity shares renounced by other shareholders
of ESVA, as per the terms and conditions mentioned in the ‘Letter of Offer’ dated 28th August 2024 issued by ESVA to the
Company. Accordingly, 22,38,506 fully paid-up equity shares were bought back by ESVA from the Company and the
consideration amount of Rs. 2,91,00,578/- (Rupees Two Crore Ninety One Lakh Five Hundred and Seventy Eight only) was
received by the Company on 6th September 2024. 

Further the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28th September 2024 approved the termination of Joint
Venture arrangement with ESVA Pumps India Private Limited. In pursuant to the Joint Venture Termination Agreement
21,71,494 (32.12%) equity shares held by the Company in ESVA were sold to Mr. V Baranitharan and Ms. C. Shanthi, the
Promoters of ESVA for consideration amounting to Rs. 3,69,15,398/- (Rupees Three Crore Sixty Nine Lakh Fifteen Thousand
Three Hundred and Ninety Eight only) on 30th September 2024. Consequentially, the aforesaid Joint Venture arrangement has
been terminated w.e.f. 28th September 2024.



Commitments with related parties

Compensation of key management personnel of the company
₹ in Lakhs

2024-25 2023-24
- -

3.00 3.00
0.00 10.00

3.00 13.00

The above figures do not include provision for leave encashment and gratuity, as actuarial valuation of such provision for the
Key Management Personnel is included in the total provision for Leave encashment & gratuity.

Transactions entered into with related party are made in ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those that
prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year
ended 31 March 2025, the company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties (31 March 2024: ₹ Nil). This assessment is undertaken during each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

As at 31 March 2025, commitments with related parties is 45.91 Lakhs. (31 March 2024: ₹ NIL).

Transactions with key management personnel

Particulars
Short-term employee benefits
Sitting Fees
Commission

Total compensation paid to key management personnel

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key 
management personnel.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
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5.10 Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted)
2024-25 2023-24

372.22                      2,469.83                  

10,76,000                10,76,000                

10,76,000 10,76,000

34.59                        229.54                      

10,76,000 10,76,000

34.59                        229.54                      

5.11 Revenue Recognition

₹ in Lakhs
Domestic 
Business

Export Business Total

33,113.81 16,229.92 49,343.73

₹ in Lakhs
2024-25 2023-24

50,781.29 55,571.47
1,437.56                    1,568.04 

                 49,343.73                  54,003.43 

5.12 Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities

5.13 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

a) Market risk

(E) The group provides to its customers warranties in the forms of repairs or replacement under its standard terms and recognizes it as warranty provision as per Ind AS 37 
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”

Particulars
Profit for the year after tax (₹ in Lakhs)
Total number of equity shares at the end of the year 
(One Equity share of face value of ₹ 10/- each)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of computing Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share (in ₹)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of computing Diluted Earnings Per Share

Particulars

Revenue from contracts with customers

Diluted Earnings Per Share (in ₹)

(A) Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with its customers :

(B) The company has generated revenue of ₹ 0.00 Lakhs during the year from its Contract Liabilities as on 1 April, 2024. (Rs. NIL in P.Y.)

(C) The Group generally recognizes revenue when the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the control is transferred i.e. either on shipment or upon delivery 
in domestic and in case of export on the date of bill of lading. The payment is due from the date of sales and are generally on terms of 30 days to 120 days.

(D) The group is in the business of manufacturing and trading of Electric Pumpsets and related spares and has a single obligation of delivery of goods as per the commercial 
contract terms with its customers. In some cases the Group also provides extended warranty to its customers.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity provisions.

(F) As on 31st March, 2025, the company has unsatisfied performance obligation of ₹17.02 Lakhs and will be recognized as revenue in financial year 2024-25 onwards based on 
contractual terms (31st March, 2024 : ₹41.63 Lakhs).

(G) Reconciliation of the Group’s revenue from contract price with revenue recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss is as follows : 

Particulars
Revenue as per Contract
Less : Discounts and Incentives
Revenue from contracts with customers

The management believes that the fair values of non-current financial assets (e.g., investments at FVPL, loans and others),current financial assets (e.g., cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, loans), non-current financial liabilities and current financial liabilities(e.g. Trade payables and other payables and others) approximate their carrying
amounts.

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance and support the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, cash and short-term
deposits and other financial assets that have been derived directly from its operations. At 31 March 2025, out of the total receivables of 48.72 Lakhs USD, the company has
booked forward cover of 15 Lakhs USD against forex trade receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged). At 31 March 2024, out of the total receivable of 33.99 Lakhs USD, the company has
booked forward cover of 10 Lakhs USD against forex trade receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged).

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Audit Committee and Board
review financial risks and the appropriate risk governance framework for the Group’s financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies
and risk objectives. It is the Group’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: 
interest rate risk, currency risk, price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, investments, 
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial 
liabilities held at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.



i) Interest rate risk
a. Exposure

₹ in Lakhs
2024-25 2023-24

                   4,000.00                    4,850.00 
                       850.00                    1,071.75 
                   6,566.16                    4,412.83 
                   2,213.64                    4,582.17 

b. Interest Rate Sensitivity
₹ in Lakhs

Change in 
Interest rate

Effect on profit 
before tax

Effect on pre-tax 
equity

+50 bps (44.44)                       (44.44)                       
-50 bps 44.44                        44.44                        
+50 bps (32.30)                       (32.30)                       
-50 bps 32.30                        32.30                        

ii) Foreign currency risk

Amounts in Foreign Currencies
Currency 2024-25 2023-24
USD 48,72,067.46           33,99,473.46           
EUR - -
USD 10,395.00                 66,759.00                 
EUR 13,400.00                 33,200.00                 

Foreign currency sensitivity

₹ in Lakhs

Change in USD 
rate

Effect on profit 
before tax

Effect on pre-tax 
equity

5%                        207.91                        207.91 
-5%                      (207.91)                      (207.91)
5%                        138.88                        138.88 

-5%                      (138.88)                      (138.88)

₹ in Lakhs

Change in EURO 
rate

Effect on profit 
before tax

Effect on pre-tax 
equity

5%                           (0.62)                           (0.62)
-5%                            0.62                            0.62 
5%                           (1.49)                           (1.49)

-5%                            1.49                            1.49 

iii)        Commodity price risk

iv)        Other Price Risk

The sensitivity is calculated only in respect of floating interest rate loan. It is calculated by changing the interest rates by 50 bps keeping all other factors constant.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

Particulars
Long Term Fixed Interest Loans
Short Term Fixed Interest Loans
Long Term Floating Interest Loans
Short Term Floating Interest Loans

 Financial Year 

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk 
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

Nature of Exposure

Receivable

Payable

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by hedging transactions related to sales & purchases.

At 31 March 2025, out of the total receivables of 48.72 Lakhs USD, the company has booked forward cover of 15 Lakhs USD against forex trade receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged). 
At 31 March 2024, out of the total receivable of 33.99 Lakhs USD, the company has booked forward cover of 10 Lakhs USD against forex trade receivables and Nil EURO (Hedged).

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD & EURO exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s 
profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The impact on the Group’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in profit before tax. The Group’s 
exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

 Financial Year 

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

 Financial Year 

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

The Group is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the on-going purchase and manufacture of Pumps & Motors, Wire, Cable & Pipe 
and therefore require a continuous supply of copper, steel and Iron. However, Company being the indirect user of these commodities, volatility in price of such commodity does
not have direct or immediate impact on the profitability of the company. Hence, the company does not foresee any direct or immediate risk with respect to such commodity price
fluctuation.

The Group does not hold investments in equity or mutual fund as on the date of Balance Sheet and hence it is not exposed to any such risks.



b)      Credit risk

Trade receivables

Financial instruments and cash deposits

c)      Liquidity risk

Excessive risk concentration

₹ in Lakhs

Particulars On demand
less than 3 

months
3 months to 1 

year 
 1 year to 5 

years 
 more than 5 

years 
Total

Year ended 31 March 2025
Interest bearing borrowings 1,105.31 -                                1,958.33 10,566.16 -                                  13,629.80
Lease Liability -                                17.86 58.03 200.16 274.17 550.22
Other financial liabilities 452.57 554.54 179.64 27.11 -                                  1,213.86
Trade payables 402.38 4,091.85 -                                -                                -                                  4,494.23

1,960.26 4,664.25 2,196.00 10,793.43 274.17 19,888.11
Year ended 31 March 2024
Interest bearing borrowings 5,653.92 -                                -                                4,008.19 5,254.64 14,916.75
Lease Liability -                                109.23 133.18 -                                -                                  242.41
Other financial liabilities 133.12 497.70 544.68 24.45 -                                  1,199.95
Trade payables 643.00 6,174.14 -                                -                                -                                  6,817.14

6,430.04 6,781.07 677.86 4,032.64 5,254.64 23,176.25

(ii) Net Debt Reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for the year ended 31 March 2025

2024-25 2023-24
2.06                    1.91                     

(3,063.64)           (5,653.92)            
(10,566.16)         (9,262.83)            
(13,627.74)         (14,914.84)         

Particulars Cash and cash 
equivalents

Current 
borrowings

Non-current 
borrowings

Total

Net debt as on 31 March 2024 1.91                    (5,653.92)           (9,262.83)           (14,914.84)         
Cash flows 0.15                     2,590.28             (1,303.33)           1,287.10             
Net debt as on 31 March 2025 2.06                    (3,063.64)           (10,566.16)         (13,627.74)         

Current borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Net Debt

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Receivables are reviewed, managed and controlled for each class of customers separately. Credit exposure risk is mainly influenced by class / type of customers, depending upon
their characteristics.  Credit risk is managed through credit approval process by establishing credit limits along with continuous monitoring of credit worthiness of customers to
whom credit terms are granted. Wherever required, credit risk of receivables is further covered through letter of credit, bank guarantee, business deposits and such other forms
of credit assurance schemes.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are combined into
homogenous category and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The Group does not hold collateral as security. The
Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are spread over vast spectrum.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group in accordance with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made as per the
approved investment policy. Investment limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss if any.

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans. The Group has access to a sufficient
variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio. Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the Group to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and
industry levels.

(i) The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:



5.14 Capital management

5.15 Expenditure on CSR Activities

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
(a) Amount required to be spent by the company 27.32                       22.69                       
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred (Nature of CSR 
activities)

27.52                       22.69                       

(i) Construction/Acquisition of any asset -                                -                                
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 27.52                       22.69                       

(c)Shortfall / (Surplus) at the end of the year (0.20)                   -                                
(d) Total of previous year shortfall / (Surplus) -                                -                                
(e) Related party transaction -                                -                                
(f) Provision if any Not Applicable Not Applicable

Details of CSR Activities of FY 2024-25

Nature of CSR Activities

Details of Expenditure:
The above expenditure of CSR was paid to an implementing agency "Saath Charitable trust".

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

3. STEM Lab Setup in Schools, DIY Kits for Saath STEM Classes, benches & tables for students and teachers etc.

There are no CSR transaction with Related Party.

As per provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company was required to spend ₹ 27.32 Lakhs (31 March 2024: ₹22.69 Lakhs) being 2% of average net profits made 
during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy on the activities specified on Schedule VII of the Act, which has 
been provided for in the books.
The Company has spent ₹27.52  Lakhs (31 March 2024: ₹ 22.69 Lakhs) towards activities in line with its CSR policy.

1. Training programme for women for livelihood enhancement and distribution of kits.
2. RO plant setup at public places / panchayat office in the villages, Creating awareness about health and hygiene through wall paintings, Distribution of sport 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current year ended 31 March 2025 in comparison to
the previous year ended 31 March 2024.
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5.16 Non-current investments
 ₹ in Lakhs 

Unquoted
Investment in equity shares of joint venture
4410000 fully paid up equity shares of ₹ 10 each of ESVA Pumps 
India Private Limited

-                       441.00                             

Undistributed profit of ESVA -                       66.51                                
Profit from ESVA -                       129.81                             
Dividend received -                      (50.11)                              

Less :  elimination of inter company profits from investment -                      (18.33)                              

Total -                       568.88                             

Aggregate value of unquoted investments -                       568.88                             

Notes:
1. The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th August 2024 approved the participation for the buyback offer of 22,38,506 fully paid-
up equity shares at a price of Rs. 13/- per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- per share) of ESVA Pumps India Private Limited (ESVA) to the extent of
Company’s entitlement and equity shares renounced by other shareholders of ESVA, as per the terms and conditions mentioned in the ‘Letter of Offer’
dated 28th August 2024 issued by ESVA to the Company. Accordingly, 22,38,506 fully paid-up equity shares were bought back by ESVA from the Company
and the consideration amount of Rs. 2,91,00,578/- (Rupees Two Crore Ninety One Lakh Five Hundred and Seventy Eight only) was received by the
Company on 6th September 2024. 

Further the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 28th September 2024 approved the termination of Joint Venture arrangement with
ESVA Pumps India Private Limited. In pursuant to the Joint Venture Termination Agreement 21,71,494 (32.12%) equity shares held by the Company in
ESVA were sold to Mr. V Baranitharan and Ms. C. Shanthi, the Promoters of ESVA for consideration amounting to Rs. 3,69,15,398/- (Rupees Three Crore
Sixty Nine Lakh Fifteen Thousand Three Hundred and Ninety Eight only) on 30th September 2024. Consequentially, the aforesaid Joint Venture
arrangement has been terminated w.e.f. 28th September 2024.

Particulars As At 31 March 2025 As At 31 March 2024



La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5.18 :  Statement of registration and satisfaction of charges :

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024
As at the reporting date, none of the charges or satisfaction of charges are yet to registered with ROC beyond the statutory time limit.

As at the reporting date, none of the charges or satisfaction of charges are yet to registered with ROC beyond the statutory time limit.
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Note 5.19 :  Details of Benami 
Properties :

Nature of Transactions
with Struck off Company

Relationship with the
struck off company, if
any

Balance O/s as on 
31st Mar 25

Balance O/s as on 
31st Mar 24

Accounts Receivable Not Related 0.00 0.00

Accounts Receivable Not Related 0.00 0.00

Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

Accounts Payable Not Related 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00
Note 5.22 :  Compliance with 
number of layers of 
Companies :

Note 5.23 :  Compliance with 
approved scheme of 
Arrangements :

Note 5.24 :  Undisclosed 
income :

Note 5.25 :  Details of Crypto 
Currency or Virtual currency :

The Company does not hold any Benami properties. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.

Note 5.20 :  End use of Funds :

a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Company has not entered into any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956,below are the details of balances as of 31 March 2025 with Struck off companies which pertain to transaction of previous
years.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th August 2024 approved the acceptance of the buyback offer. Further, the
Joint Venture termination agreement was executed on 28th September 2024 and post execution of the said agreement, 21,71,494 (32.12%)
equity shares held by the Company in ESVA were sold to  Mr. V Baranitharan and Ms. C. Shanthi, the Promoters of ESVA.

During FY 2023-24, La-Gajjar Machineries Private Limited (LGM/Transferee Company) and Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited
(OPEPL/Transferor Company) have approved the draft scheme of arrangement in their respective meetings of Board, Shareholders and
Creditors. This scheme has been further approved by the Regional Director, Ahmedabad (North Western Region) on 22nd March 2024. OEPEL
and LGM has filed the order copy issued by Regional Director, Ahmedabad (North Western Region) with Ministry of Corporate Affairs /
Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat on 26th March 2024 which is the effective date of said Scheme. Pursuant to the approval of
Scheme of Amalgamation, OPEPL amalgamated with LGM and accordingly, OPEPL ceased to be the wholly owned subsidiary of LGM. 

Further ESVA Pumps India Private Limited (ESVA) is a Joint Venture (JV) formed on 4th October 2021 between Mr. V Bharanitharan (25.5%),
Mrs. C Shanthi (25.5%) and Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited (49%). Consequent to the aforesaid Scheme, OPEPL’s interest of 49%
in ESVA is transferred to LGM.

During FY 2023-24, two entities La-Gajjar Machineries Pvt Ltd (LGM) and Optiqua Pipes and Electricals Private Limited (OPEPL) (both under
common control of KOEL) wherein OPEPL got amalgamated into LGM as per the scheme of amalgamation, the transferee Company (LGM) post
merger has restated the comparative figures in the financial statements as required under Appendix C of IND AS 103 and as stated in the
accounting policy.

There are no transactions that has been not recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

There are no any transaction/holding of crypto or virtual currency.

Total

(Amount in Lakhs)

Note 5.21 :  Details of struck 
off companies :

Name of the Struck off Company

EXCELSERV INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

OM SAI CARS INDIA (P) LTD

BENGAL CITY NIRMAN PRIVATE LIMITED

USHA NETCOPVT LTD

FEDROL ELECTRIC PRIVATE LIMITED

GATRAD KNOWLEDGE CENTRE PVTLTD

NAGPAL CARGO MOVERS
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Note 5.26 :  loans to 
promoters, directors, KMPs 
and the related parties:

The Company has not granted any loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either 
severally or jointly with any other person, that are:
(a) repayable on demand; or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment
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Note 36: Standards issued but not yet effective

There are no standards which are issued but not yet effective.
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